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Minutes of a Special Called State Meeting 

The Oklahoma State Association ofFree Will Baptist met in a special session on 
Monday, March 26, 2007, at Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College in Moore Oklahoma 

Moderator Jimmy Holbrook welcomed everyone and shared devotional thoughts. He 
read Matthew 16:24, made comments and led in prayer. 

Clerk James Coffelt called the meeting to order at 11 :00 a.m. and read the following 
recommendation of the Executive Board: 

The purpose of this called meeting is to elect a new Executive Director for the 
Oklahoma Free Will Baptist State Association, to replace Brother Ernest 
Harrison, who will be retiring in June. The State Executive Board's 
recommendation will be Brother Mike Wade, the present pastor of Calvary Free 
Will Baptist Church in Norman, Oklahoma. 

Motion and second to approve this recommendation. 

Motion carried unanimously to adopt this recommendation. 

Motion carried to give Brother Ernest Harrison a standing ovation of appreciation. 

Brother Mike Wade shared remarks and led in prayer. 

Moderator Jimmy Holbrook adjourned the business. 
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Proceedings 
Tuesday Morning 

Clerk James Coffelt called the association into official session, introduced the officers, 
and gave the report of the Committee on Committees. The committee members were: 

Frank Wiley (Chairman) 
Joel Kircher 
Clarence Shepherd 
Glen Hood 
Jeff Blair 

David Sutton (Chairman) 
Russell Payne 
Dean Thompson 
Dale Smith 
Leroy Holman 

Joe Conn (Chairman) 
George Fergueson 
John Staggs 
Stacy Ross 
Steve Robinson 

Nominating Committee 

Resolutions Committee 

Obituary Committee 

First Oklahoma 
Kiamichi 

Progressive 
Greater Tulsa 

South Grand River 

First Oklahoma 
First Mission 

Southwest 
Progressive 

Center 

First Mission 
Southeast 
Kiamichi 

Union 
First Oklahoma 

Waldo Young led the delegates in singing "Leaning on the Everlasting Arms". 
Moderator Jimmy Holbrook led in prayer and delivered the Moderator's Adinonition reading 
from Acts 6:1-7. 1 

The Clerk read a partial report of the General Board. Motion carried to adopt Item # I of 
the General Board Report. 

The delegates were seated and the moderator recognized visitors who were in attendance. 
Motion carried to adopt the printed program with time allotments being flexible. 

The Clerk read a partial report of the General Board. Motion carried to adopt Item # 2 of 
the General Board Report. 

Executive Board chairman David Archer gave the Executive Board report. Charlie 
Murphy presented a plaque and a gift to former Executive Director Ernest Harrison for his nine 
years of service. Executive Director Mike Wade gave the Executive Office and Free Will Baptist 
Literature Center reports and presented a plaque to Frank Wiley for his years of service on the 
Executive Board. John Hewitt gave a report on the Arms of Compassion Ministries. Motion 
carried to adopt these reports. 
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The Clerk read a partial report of the Nominating Committee. C.L. Thomas (Poteau 
River Valley) was elected to serve a 7-year term on the Executive Board. 

The Clerk read Item# 3 of the General Board Report. Motion carried to adopt Item# 3. 
National Executive Secretary Keith Burden gave a report on the various National 

Departments. 
Trustee Member Junior Phillips gave the Trustee Board report for Hillsdale Free Will 

Baptist College. President Tim Eaton gave the President's report and Missionary in residence 
Jeff Sloan shared about ministries and campus life. Motion carried to adopt these reports. 

The Clerk read a partial report of the Nominating Committee. Leonard Pirtle (Greater 
Tulsa) was elected to serve a 5-year term on the Hillsdale Board of Trustees. Terry Bigger 
(Greater Tulsa) was elected to serve a 5-year term on the Hillsdale Board ofTrustees. 

David Williford brought greetings from the Free Will Baptist Bible College. 
David Joslin brought greetings from Free Will Baptist Family Ministries 
Board Member Casey Cariker gave the Christian Education Board report. Motion carried 

to receive the report. 
The Clerk read a partial report of the Nominating Committee. Delbert Akin (First 

Oklahoma) was elected to serve a 5-year term on the Christian Education Board. Zack Archer 
(First Oklahoma) was elected to serve a 5-year term on the Christian Education Board. Phil 
Scowden (First Oklahoma) was elected to serve a 3-year term on the Christian Education Board. 
Matt Baccus (Poteau River Valley) was elected to serve a 2-year term on the Christian Education 
Board. Steve Mayhew (Kamichi) was elected to serve a I-year term on the Christian Education 
Board. 

Tim Campbell brought greetings from the Arkansas State Association of Free Will 
Baptist and presented pens to Ernest Harrison and Mike Wade. 

The Moderator declared a recess for morning worship. 

Tuesday Morning Worship 

At 11:00 a.m. the congregational was led in singing "The Family Of God". 
State Missions Director Brad Ransom led in prayer. 
Hillsdale Ladies Trio brought the special music singing "God's Gonna Do What God's 

Gonna Do" and "Your Grace Still Amazes Me". 
Brad Ransom introduced the morning worship speaker, Dr. Milburn Wilson. He read 

from Matthew 4:17-19 for his text, and spoke on the subject, "Learning Where the Fish are and 
How to Catch Them". 

Delegates were dismissed in prayer. 

Tnesday Afternoon 

Barry Simpson brought greetings from Free Will Baptist International Ministries. 
George Hyatt brought greetings from Harvest Free Will Baptist Children's Ministry. 
Chairman Jim Puckett gave the State Mission Board report. Jeff Sloan brought greetings. 

Allen Moore brought greetings from the Texas State Mission Board. Director Brad Ransom 
gave the State Mission Director's report. Garni Botello brought greetings from the Hispanic 
work in Woodward. Sam Smith missionary to Grove OK brought greetings. Motion carried to 
receive these reports. 
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The Clerk read a partial report of the Nominating Committee. Jim Harris (First 
Oklahoma) was elected to serve a 7-year term on the State Mission Board. Allen Mabra (Union) 
was elected to serve a 5-year term on the State Mission Board. 

Ray Lewis brought greetings from the Board of Retirement and Insurance. 
Director Ron Hunter brought greetings from Randal House Publications. 
Richard Atwood brought greetings from the North American Home Missions 

Department. 
Delegates were dismissed by moderator. 

Tuesday Evening Worship 

State Missions Director Brad Ransom opened the service with prayer. 
The Woodward Free Will Baptist Church Hispanic worship team led the congregation in 

singing and brought the special music. 
Brad Ransom introduced the speaker, Missionary in Residence Jeff Sloan to bring the 

evening message. For a text he read John 21:1-14 and spoke on the subject "Fishing From The 
Other Side Of The Boat". 

Delegates were dismissed in prayer. 

Wednesday Morning 

David Brown brought greetings from The Free Will Baptist Foundation. 
Delbert Akin gave the Historical Commission report. Motion carried to receive the 

report. 
The Clerk read Item # 4 of the General Board Report. Motion carried to adopt Item # 4. 
The Clerk read a partial report of the Nominating Committee. Edwin Wade (First 

Oklahoma) was elected to serve a 3-year term on the Historical Commission. 
The Clerk read Resolution #1. Motion carried to adopt Resolution #1. 
The clerk read the Obituary Committee report. Motion carried to adopt the Obituary 

Committee report. A moment of silence was observed followed by prayer. 
The clerk read Item# 5 of the General Board report. Motion carried to adopt Item# 5. 
The clerk read Item# 6 of the General Board report. Motion carried to adopt Item# 6. 
The clerk read Item# 7 of the General Board report. Motion carried to adopt Item# 7. 
Belva Mabra gave the report of the Oklahoma Women Active for Christ. This report was 

received as information. 
The clerk read the State Minister's Conference report. This report was received as 

information. 
The clerk read a list of nominees (submitted by the various District Associations) for 

General Board Members of the 2008 State Association Meeting. Motion carried to elect these 
nominees. (Listed previously in the minutes). 

The Clerk read the final report of the Nominating Committee. The following were 
elected to serve as State Officers for 2007-2008: 

Brad Hannah (First Oklahoma) 
James Coffelt (Greater Tulsa) 
Earl Scroggins (Progressive) 
Jimmy Holbrook (First Oklahoma) 

Motion carried to adjourn. 
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Wednesday Morning Worship 

State Missions Director Brad Ransom opened the service with prayer and the Hillsdale 
Free Will Baptist College Mixed Trio performed two specials. 

Brad Ransom introduced the speaker, Eddie Payne to bring the morning message. For a 
text he read from Acts 17:26).7 and spoke on the subject "Fishing In My Mission Pond" 

Delegates were dismissed in prayer. 

Wednesday Evening Worship 

The Hillsdale New Life Singers opened the service with a special. Brad Ransom 
welcomed everyone and led in prayer. The Hillsdale New Life Singers sang another special for 
the offering. 

Brad Ransom introduced The Hannah Project Director Mike Cousineau to speak about 
what The Hannah Project is doing. 

The Rejoice Free Will Baptist Church worship team led the congregation in singing 
"Song For The Nations". Bob Usery gave a Testimony about the Hannah Project Rejoice Led 
the congregation in "How Great Is Our God". 

Harrah Free Will Baptist Church Pastor Jimmy Holbrook brought the evening message. 
For a text he read Matthew 22:37-40 showed three videos and spoke about The Hannah Project 

Mike Cousineau closed the presentation. 
Brad Ransom gave away four gifts and read the registration report: 

Ministers 125 
Deacons 14 
Delegates 28 
Missionaries 14 
Visitors ill 
Total Registration 392 

Delegates were dismissed in prayer. 
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The General Board Report 

The General Board of the Oklahoma State Association of Free Will Baptists met Monday 
October 15, 2007 at Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College in Moore, Oklahoma. As a result of that 
meeting we offer the following items for your consideration: 

I. We received communication from twenty-four of the twenty-four District Associations 
comprising the membership of this body. We recommend their letters be received and 
their delegates seated. 

2. We heard the reports of the Executive Board, Executive Director, Free Will Baptist 
Literature Center, Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College, State Mission Board, State 
Christian Education Board, and the Historical Commission. We forward these reports to 
you for your consideration and refer the adoption of their budgets to the Budget 
Committee's recommendations. 

• 3. We recommend that the Arms of Compassion Ministry (ACM) Projected Cash Flow 
Budget be as presented on pages 7 of the 2007 Digest ofReports. 

4. We recommend the Resolution of the Historical Commission as found on page 43 of the 
2007 Digest of Reports. 

S. As the Budget Committee we recommend that a Cooperative Budget of $630,000.00 be 
adopted for the 2008-2009 year. 

6. As the Budget Committee we recommend that the Cooperative Funds be distributed 
according to the following percentages: 

State Executive Office (22%) 
State Mission Board (15%) 
Christian Education Board ( 6%) 
Hillsdale FWB College (33%) 
National Ministries (24%) 
TOT AL ALLOCATIONS (100%) 

$138,600.00 
$94,500.00 
$37,800.00 

$207,900.00 
$151,200.00 
$630,000.00 

7. As the Budget Committee we recommend the budgets of each department as requested in 
these amounts: 

Executive Office 
Free Will Baptist Literature Center 
State Missions Administrative Budget 
State Missions Support Budget 
Christian Education Board 
Hillsdale FWB College 
TOTAL BUDGETS 
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$228,700.00 
$329,500.00 
$93,702.00 

$738,563.00 
$187,800.00 

$3,826.449.00 
$5,404, 714.00 
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Resolutions Committee Report 
Resolution # 1 

Whereas Hillsdale FWB College has done an excellent job in hosting this State 
Association; and, 

Whereas we have been wannly welcomed by the college family and tremendously 
blessed by some outstanding music from the music department. 

Be it resolved that we give a standing vote of thanks to President Tim Eaton, Staff 
Faculty and Students. 

Obituary Committee Report 

Association Members Deceased Ministers 

Arkansas Valley 5 0 
Canadian 10 0 
Center 11 0 
Dibble 0 Homer Young 
Eureka 7 0 
Fellowship 0 0 
First Mission 19 0 
First Oklahoma 31 0 
Gaines Creek 3 0 
Greater Tulsa 0 J.B. Chism, Don Jones 
Hopewell# 1 0 0 
Hopewell#2 3 0 
Kiamichi 12 0 
Little River 6 0 
New Life 3 0 
Northeast 5 0 
Poteau River Valley 0 0 
Progressive 10 0 
Robert's McGee 4 0 
Southeastern 3 0 
Southwest 0 0 
South Grand River 0 Edward Lance, Dr Malcom Fry 
Tulsa Area 0 0 
Union 3 0 
Total 135 s 
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Oklahoma Ministers' Conference Report 

The Oklahoma Minister's Conference met Monday Octciber 15, 2007 at Hillsdale Free 
Will Baptist College. We want to thank Tun Eaton, Traci Morris and the Hillsdale staff for their 
hospitality in hosting this year's conference. 

We also wish to thank the participants, Brother Waldo Young for leading our worship, 
Josh Ransom, Leslie McKenzie, Terry Bigger and Linda Bigger for the special music. And to 
our speakers David Bigger and Brad Ransom who encouraged us in our evangelistic efforts. 

The attendance was I 02. 

Oklahoma Women Active for Christ Report 

Oklahoma Women Active for Christ met at 9:30 am at Hillsdale FWB College October 15. 
Registration totaled 85, with 61 delegates, 3 missionaries and 21 visitors. 

Receipts for the year totaled $63,025.93. Specific giving to state projects was: 
Arms of Compassion $989.21 
Hillsdale Lighting $3,823.20 
TSP (Grove Mission Work) $1,662.69 
Panama Seminary Building $5,541.02 
Total: $12,016.12 

2008 State Projects are: 
I. Hillsdale Renovation - Furnishings for Women's Dormitory Lounge/Study Area 
2. TSP- Grove Mission Work 
3. TSP - Piedmont Mission Work 
4. Panama Seminary Building 
5. National Host Fund Project for 2010 in Oklahoma City 

Newly elected officers are: 
President: Tracy Payne 
Vice President: Judy Smith 
Secretary: Louise Richmond 
Asst. Secretary: Susie Robinson 
Treasurer: Shelia Rooker 
Asst. Treasurer: Diann Pierson 
Field Worker: Rhonda Addington 
Members at Large: Linda Bigger, Jennye Hickman and Lois Westbrook 

Tentative Retreat Plans are April 4th and 5th at Tuisa's Marriott Southern Hills. 

Submitted by Outgoing President Belva Mabra. 
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Association Sunday School CTS OWAC Master's Men 

Arkansas Valley 221 0 0 0 
Canadian 431 35 8 8 
Center 1,048 105 291 15 
Dibble 75(1) 0 27(1) 8m 
Eureka 171 0 6 0 
Fellowship 83 0 0 0 
First Mission 924 54 128 NIA 
First Oklahoma 2920(1) 119 84 48 
Gaines Creek 260 170 10 NIA 
Greater Tulsa 1786 215 114 50 
Hopewell #1 200 0 0 0 

;::; Hopewell #2 208 8 49 0 
Kiamichi NIA NIA 39 NIA 
Little River 120 0 12 0 
New Life 215(1) 0 12(1) 0 
Northeast 403 26 93 9 
Poteau River Valley 334(1) 35(1) 16(1) 0 
Progressive 293 11 51 0 
Robert's McGee 94 NIA 9 NIA 
Southeastern 43 0 0 0 
Southwest 100 0 7 0 
South Grand River 1691(1) 245(1) 167(:fi 30(1) 
Tulsa Area 141 0 12 0 
Union 286(1) 38 55 0 
TOTAL 12,047 1,061 1,190 168 

(I)=Incomplete NIA=No Answer N/R=No Report 

r-----~~~-------



Association Ch Income # Budl!ets #Dav Cares # Kinderl!artens # Christian Schools 

Arkansas Valley 85,845.81 0 0 0 0 
Canadian 109,302.38 2 0 0 0 
Center 395,254(1) 3(1) 1 0 0 
Dibble 238,094.89<I1 NIA NIA NIA NIA 
Eureka NIA NIA 0 0 0 
Fellowship NIA NIA 0 0 0 
First Mission 1,515,744.04 8 NIA NIA NIA 
First Oklahoma 4,300,715.00(1) NIA 2 0 1 
Gaines Creek 347,508.10(1) 1 NIA NIA NIA 
Greater Tulsa 4,575,877.00 11 I 1 5 
Hopewell #I NIA NIA 0 0 0 
Hopewell #2 170,085.79(1) 1 0 0 0 
Kiamichi NIA NIA 0 0 0 :: 
Little River 121,068.64 0 0 0 0 
New Life 196,040.2 l(I) 1 0 0 0 
Northeast 411,610.76 1 0 0 0 
Poteau River Valley 428,940.53(1) 1 0 0 0 
Progressive 328,012.13(!) 5 0 0 0 
Robert's McGee 174,613.43 NIA 0 0 0 
Southeastern 56,522.90 0 0 0 0 
Southwest 156,352.12 0 0 0 0 
South Grand River 1,982,299.77(1) 10 NIA NIA 1 
Tulsa Area NIA 0 0 0 0 
Union 636,755.37 2 0 1 1 
TOTAL $16,230,642.87 46 4 2 8 

(I)=Incomplete N/A=No Answer N/R=No Report 
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Association Full-Time Bi-Vocational #City #Rural Ordained Licensed Deacons 
Pastors Pastors Churches Churches Ministers Ministers 

Arkansas V allev 1 4 4 1 9 0 8 
Canadian 5 2 6 1 10 4 8 
Center 6 0 7 8 8 1 22 
Dibble 8 0 8 0 11 0 15 
Eureka 0 8 3 7 11 0 10 
Fellowship 0 2 0 2 2 1 1 
First Mission 15 5 14 6 29 1 35 
First Oklahoma 22 8 24 6 77 4 64 
Gaines Creek 4 2 3 3 8 2 18 
Greater Tulsa 12 0 12 0 42 15 55 
Hopewell #1 7 0 2 7 11 4 10 

:;: 
Hopewell #2 5 2 2 5 9 0 15 
Kiamichi 8 3 7 4 18 1 40 
Little River 2 0 0 2 3 0 12 
New Life 1 5 4 4 10 3 9 
Northeast 7 3 10 0 20 5 11 
Poteau River Vallev 8 10 9 9 10 1 27 
Progressive 9 1 7 3 11 1 18 
Robert's McGee 0 4 3 1 5 5 7 
Southeastern 0 3 1 2 2 0 4 
Southwest 2 0 3 0 4 0 3 
South Grand River 15 7 13 9 33 3 54 
Tulsa Area 2 0 2 0 3 0 3 
Union 4 0 4 2 7 1 12 
TOTAL 143 69 148 82 353 52 461 

(!)=Incomplete N/A=No Answer N/R=No Report 

r---· 



Association # Churches Reporting Members Added Lost Baptisms # Parsonages Par/Ch Value 

Arkansas Valley 5 NIA 186 21 10 13 0 711,000.00 
Canadian 7 7 525 14 21 14 2 1,265,000.00 
Center 16 6 872(1) 63 9 13 0 3,234,500.00(1) 
Dibble 8 6 280(1) 20 2 10 0 1,218,000.00(1) 
Eureka 10 9 196(1) 14 16 2 1 810,000.00 
Fellowship 2 2 83 8 0 7 0 NIA 
First Mission 20 20 1,894 45 39 44 12 6,661,000.00 
First Oklahoma 29 25 4,621(1) 266 40 164 3 27,572,000.00(l) 
Gaines Creek 6 6 317 33 11 33 1 836,800.00(1) 
Greater Tulsa 13 12 4,625 502 131 252 4 32,174,692.00 
Hopewell #1 9 9 580 NIA NIA 10 2 NIA 
Hopewell #2 7 7 569 18 1 3 4 1,355,000.00 
Kiamichi 11 11 1,269 47 12 26 3 NIA 

V) 

Little River 2 2 351 15 6 5 2 725,000.00 
New Life 8 7 319(1) 33 10 35 1 1,672,600.00(I) 
Northeast 10 10 674 47 67 13 2 1,633,000.00 
Poteau River Valley 16 10 732 19 7 11 5 1,297,200.00 
Progressive 10 10 637 48 13 27 4 1,993,000.00 
Robert's McGee 4 4 235 12 12 NIA 1 385,000.00 
Southeastern 3 3 91 0 3 3 0 255,000.00 
Southwest 3 3 201 8 2 1 1 1,270,000.00 
South Grand River 22 19 2,222 87 59 50 8 10,847,362.00 
Tulsa Area 2 2 194 NIA 11 7 1 550,000.00 
Union 6 5 552 25 11 11 2 2,756,000.00 
TOTAL 229 195 20,225 1,345 493 754 59 $93,222,154.00 

(I)=lncomplete N/A=No Answer N/R=No Report 
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Executive Director's Report 

Let me begin this report by expressing thanks first to the State Association for giving me 
this opportunity to serve Christ and our Oklahoma Free Will Baptist churches, and 
secondly to Brother Ernest and Sister Brenda Harrison for their ministry among us for the 
past nine years. They along with the many directors and assistants before them have 
helped move the cause of Christ forward among us. Brother Ernest was steadfast in 
reminding us all that "Together Everyone Achieves More". 

I am praying that God will allow this office to be instrumental in helping our churches 
across the state of Oklahoma to see their potential in fulfilling the Great Commission of 
our Lord. As we keep our focus on Biblical authority, Biblical unity and Biblical 
direction for our programs, may our vision of what can be achieved be so great that when 
realized all will recognize it was God's doing. 

Our Co-op giving for last year was approximately $654,000. Total income channeled 
through the state office was once again over 2 million dollars. Thank you for your 
faithful giving to the various aspects of denominational work. 

The Arms of Compassion ministry continues to progress under the direction of Bro. John 
Hewett. Bro. John not only channels money to various worthy projects, he is personally 
doing compassion ministry throughout the year whether it is in the form of promoting the 
work of ACM, counseling, giving direction to potential foster and adoptive parents or in 
directing disaster relief work efforts. He is active throughout the state and would be 
delighted to come and present the work of ACM to your local church. 

Sheri Jenson has been hired as the executive assistant and she along with Rusty and 
myself are here to serve our state work. Do not hesitate to drop by the office, call or 
email when we can be of assistance. 

Thank you for all you do for Christ and His Kingdom. 

Mike Wade 
Executive Director 

Executive Board Members: 

David Archer, Chairman 
David Bigger, Clerk 
Charles Murphy 
Glenn Lewis 

Earl Hood 
Randy Wilson 
Frank Wiley 
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Executive Board Report 

Actions of the Executive Board for the year: 

I. Nomination ofExecutive Director-

Brother Ernest Harrison Jr. submitted his resignation as Executive Director in 
December 2006 to be effective June 30, 2007. The Executive Board began the process of 
hiring a new director. Mike Wade was interviewed in February at which time the board 
voted to recommend him to the State Association for election to the position. They called 
for the Association to convene for a special called conference on March 26, 2007 at 
which time Bro. Mike was elected as the new state Executive Director. He worked with 
Bro. Harrison for the months of May and June, then officially took office on July I, 2007. 

2. Sponsored the 12th annual Minister's Retreat 

3. Sponsored the "Focus on the Church" seminar for Hillsdale's Iron Man's 
Fellowship. 

4. Sponsored Hillsdale ministerial students to Oklahoma Minister's Retreat. 

5. Sponsored pastors and youth pastors in the Master's Program at Hillsdale by 
giving $200. per semester scholarships. 

The Executive Board Recommendations: 

I. The Cooperative budget for 2007-2008 be $630,000 and that the allocations for 
State and National ministries be as follows: 

Hillsdale 33% $207,900 

Missions Dept 15% $94,500 

C.E. Board 6% $37,800 

Executive Office 22% $138,600 

National Coop 24% $151,200 
$630,000 
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2. We recommend that the Anns of Compassion ministry (ACM) budget be as follows: 

Salary Package 
Salary 
Housing 
Travel 
Office Expense & Postage 

Outside Ministry Giving 
Food for the Hungry 
Adoption/Foster Care 
Disaster Relief 
Hanna Project 
Step into the Water(Mexico) 
Various US FWB Orphanages 
Ruth Ministries(Romania) 
Mexico Orphanage 
Brazil Orphanage 
Misc. Ministry Projects 

2007-2008 
24,000 
16,000 
12,000 
4,000 

56,000 

3,000 
4,000 
2,500 
3,000 
1,500 
1,500 
1,500 
1,500 
1,500 
ill!Q 
24,000 

Total ACM 80,000 

Note: Arms of Compassion (ACM) 

2008-2009 
Projected Income $75,000 

(Please note change to 
percentage buget) 

Expenses 
Administrative 40% $30,000 

Director 30% $22,500 
Expenses 10% $7,500 

Ministry 60% $45,000 
ACM 40% $30,000 
GLOBAL 20% $15,000 

Total Expenditure $75,000 

Cash Flow receipts and expenditures for Anns of Compassion Ministry for 2006-2007: 

Received: 
$62,681.19 

Expenditures: 
ACM Ministry 
ACM Ministry Expense 
ACM Salary 
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$ 9,670.20 
$10,699.42 
$39,100.00 
$59,469.62 



Arms of Compassion Report 

Dear Compassionate Oklahomans: 

Thank you so much for your kind compassion over the past year. Due to 
your care and giving, the hearts and lives of hurting children and families 
from around the world have been touched with the compassion of 
Christ. ACM has continued its efforts in the recruitment and support of 
foster and adoptive families, issuing compassion grants as well as sending 
out numerous Journey Packs, Care Kits, and Bibles. We responded 
with hundreds of volunteer hours and funding during the 
recent Oklahoma ices storms, flooding, and various other natural disasters. 
We have also continued our support of various worldwide hunger relief 
ministries, compassion ministries, and orphanages. We are constantly 
looking for opportunities to give and to serve "the least of these'; and God 
continues to open doors for us to do so. We look forward to another year of 
compassionate giving and hope you, your church, and your association will 
consider joining us in our obedience to His second greatest commandment, 
"Love your neighbor." Remember - ''Every dollar (and every minute) truly 
does make a difference!" 
Thank you for caring!!! 

In Christ, 

John M. Hewett 
Director, Arms of Compassion 
a ministry of Oklahoma Free Will Baptists 
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Montgomery & Montgomery, CPAs, P.C. 
Certified Public Accountants M 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

\ 
To the Executive Board 
Oklahoma State Association of Free Will Baptists 

We haw audited the acrompanying statement of financial position of the .Oklahoma State Aswdation of Free 
Will Baptists as of Jlllle 30, 2fXrl and 2006 and the related statements of activities and cash flows for the years 
then ended These financial statements are the responsibili1y of the State Association's management. · Our 
respollSlbility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. The financial statements 
of the Oklahoma State Associati<l11 ofFree WjU Baptists as of June 30, 2006, were ;rudited by other auditor, whose 
. report dated September 8, 2006, expressed an unqualified opinion on those statements. · 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of · 
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the financial statements are free of material mtatement Anaudit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the ammmts and disclosures iri the financial statements An audit al.Ill includes asses.5ing the accounting 
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial 
statement presentation We believe that our aooits prowh: a reasonable basis for our opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fuirly, in all material respects, the assets, 
liahilities, and net assets of the Oklahoma State Association of Free Will Baptists as of Jlllle 30, 2007 and 2006, 
and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with 3CCOlIDting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

~JmJ--ar~ 
Montgomery & Montgomery, CP As 

\ September 13, 2fXrl 

32 SW 104ili, Oklahoma City, OK 73139 
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OKLAHOMA STATE ASSOCIATION OF.FREE WILL BAYIISTS 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2007 AND 2006 

ASSETS 
CURRENT ASSETS 2007 2006 

Cash 8,542 82,688 

Accounts Receivable 12,305 3,780 

Total Current Assets 20,847 86,468 

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 
Office Building 103,726 103,726 

Building improvements 75,160 49,065 
Furniture, fixtures & equipment 59,517 59,517 

Less: accumulated depreciation (189,778) (187,136) 

Net property and equipment 48,625 25,172 

TOTAL ASSETS 69,472 111,640 

LIABILITIES A.'lll NET ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 33,587 31,521 

Accured Liabilities 720 563 
Total current liabilities 34,307 32,084 

NET ASSETS 
Unrestricted 23,908 56,180 
Temporarily unrestricted· 11,257 23,376 

Total net assets 35,165 79,556 

TOT AL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 69,472 111,640 

Sec Attached Auditor's Report 
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OKLAHOMA STATE ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2007 AND 2006 

UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS 2007 2006 

.fu!lm91! 
State cooperative support 143,495 136,321 
Other Contributions 4,190 26,489 
Promoter publications 8,455 9,047 
Rent income 2,100 2,050 
Srate and national convention fees 35,602 42,055 
Interest income 1,593 2,393 
Minister's retreat 16,465 15,940 
Other income 131 1,173 

Total unrestricted support 212,031 235,468 
Net assets released from donor restrictions 1,887,895 1,792,904 

Total unrestricted support and reclassfications 2,099,926 2,028,372 

Expenses 
General and administrative: 
Salaries 56,036 55,784 
Retirement 9,930 9,120 
Housing 20,752 16,008 
Payroll taxes 1,792 J,576 
Depreciation 2,642 1,370 
Contributions 0 65,400 
Contributions - Arms of Compassion 0 1,300 
Executive board meetings 0 1,855 
Executive secretary travel 11,390 12,743 
Insurance 13,072 15,276 
Maintenaoce and repairs 1,433 1,993 
Minister's retreat 16,705 18,647 
Minister's wives retreat 0 92 
Miscellaneous 5,208 7,602 
Professional fees 2,350 2,250 
Promoter 21,304 17,479 
Srate and national conventions 67,020 Al,985 
Supplies 4,754 6,434 
Telephone 3,205 3,909 
Utilities 6,711 6,916 

Total general and administrative expenses 244,304 287,739 

See Attached Auditor's Report 
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OKLAHOMA STATE ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES- continued 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2007 AND 2006 

2007 2006 

Released restricted assets expended: 
Donor specified ministries and churches 1,387,739 1,309,584 
Co-Operative disb=ments 500,157 -483,320 

Total 1,887,896 1,792,904 

Total expenses 2,132,199 2,080,643 

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS (32,273) (52,271) 

TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS 
Support from cooperative program 500,157 483,320 
Other contributions 1,375,621 1,332,%0 
Net assets released from donor restrictions (1,887,896) !1,792,904) 

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN TEMPORARILY 
RESTRICTED NET ASSETS (12,118) 23,376 

TOTAL INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS (44,391) (28,895) 

NET ASSETS, beginning 79,556 108,451 

NET ASSETS, ending 35,165 79,556 

See Attached Auditor's Report 
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OKLAHOMA STATE ASSOCIATION OF FREEWILL BAPTISTS 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2007 AND 2006 

2007 2006 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTMTIES 
Increase (Decrease) in net assets $ (44,391) $ · (28,895) 

Adjustments to reconcile decrease in net assets to 
cash flows from operating activities: 

Depreciation 2,642 1,370 

(Increase) Decrease in current assets: 
· Accounts receivable (8,525) (1,105) 
Pledge receivable 0 125,000 

Increase (Decrease) in current liabilities: 
Accounts payable 2,066 3,620 
Accrued liabilities 157 (707) 

(3,660) 128,178 

Net cash flows from operating activities (48,051) 99,283 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
· Acquisition of equipment (26,095) (16,599) 

Net cash flows from investing activities (26,095) (16,599) 

Net Increase (Decrease) in cash (74,146) 82,684 

Cash at beginning of year 82,688 

Cash at end of year 8,542 82,688 

See Attached Audito.-'s Report 
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OKLAHOMA STATE ASSOCIATION OF FREEWILL BAPTISTS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2007 AND 2006 

(I) ORGANIZATIONAL AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Organization - The Oklahoma State Association of Free Will Baptists (the State 
Association) provides central leadership and representation for the Free Will Baptists of 
Oklahoma and processes certain receipts and disbursements of the Free Will Baptists 
Churches. The Oklahoma State Association of Free Will Baptists also governs the 
following auxiliary functions: the Literature Center; the Board of Church Extension, 
Missions. and Evangelism; and the Christian Education Board. Combined financial 
statements are not prepared for these functions because meaningful information would 
not result from presenting combined financial statements. 

Arms of Compassion Ministry - During the year ending June 30, 2006, the Executive 
Board adopted the Arms of Compassion Ministry as an official ministry of the Oklahoma 
State Association of Free Will Baptists. The purpose of the ministry is to equip the local 
church for, and to serve as its .extension ministering to the physica~ emotional, and 
spiritual needs of hurting children and families around the world. This Ministry remains 
an integral component of the State Association. 

Basis of Accounting - The financial statements of the State Association have been 
prepared on the accrual basis of accounting, where income and expenses are recorded as 
they are earned or incurred. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash includes 
cash on hand and cash in checking and savings accounts of the unrestricted and 
temporarily restricted funds. Cash equivalents include all highly liquid investments with 
maturity of three months or less. 

Property and Equipment - Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation is 
computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related 
assets. Expenditures for repairs and maintenance are charged to operations when incurred 
while major improvements and renewals are capitalized. 

The following useful lives were used to calculate depreciation: 

Building 
Building Improvements 
Furniture, Fixtures & Equipment 

15 years 
IO to 15 years 
7 years 

Donations of property and/or equipment would be recorded as support by the State 
Association at its estimated fair value, when a voluntary and unconditional transfer of the 
asset has occurred. 

See Attached Auditor's Report 
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OKLAHOMA STATE ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2007 AND 2006 

11) ORGANIZATIONAL AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES /con'tl 

Income Taxes -The State.Association is a not-for-profit organization associated with the 
Free Will Baptist religious denomination and is exempt from federal and state income 
taxation. Therefore, no provision has been. made for income taxes in the accompanying 
financial statements. 

Estimates - Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing financial 
statements. Those estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported revenues 
and expenses. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Basis of Presentation - Net assets and revenues, gains and losses are classified based on 
the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions as follows: 

• Unrestricted net assets - Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed 
stipulations. 

• Temporarily restricted net assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed 
stipulations that can .be fulfilled by actions of the Board pursuant to those 
stipulations or that expire by the passage of time. 

• Permanently restricted net assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed 
stipulations that they be maintained permanently by the Board. Generally, the 
donors of such assets permit the Board to use all or part of the income earned on 
the assets. 

/2)- COOPERATIVE CONTRIBUTIONS AND EXPENDITURES 

The State Association receives contributions from Free Will Baptist churches in 
Oklahoma to be cooperatively allocated among board-approved organizations. The 
percentage allocation of Cooperative Contributions for the years ended June 30, 2007 and 
2006 was as follows: 

State Association 22% 22% 
Hillsdale College 33% 33% 
State Mission Board 15% 15% 
Christian Education Board 6% 6% 
National Association of Free Will Baptists 24% 24% 

100% 100% 

The total Cooperative Contributions received for the years ending June 30th were as 
follows: 

June 30, 2007 $661,177 June 30, 2006 $639,222 

See Attached Auditor's Report 
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OKLAHOMA STATE ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2007 AND 2006 

(2)-COOPERA TIVE CONTRIBUTIONS AND EXPENDITURES (con'tl 

Five percent of the churches Cooperative Contribution can be sent to the National Free 
will Baptists' Retirement Board in their pastor's individual account. These contributions 
made during the fiscal years ending JuneJ0, 2007 and 2006 were $13,805, and $13,233, 
respectively. 

(3)- CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

The State Association has signed note agreements as guarantor for several developing 
churches. Historically, none of these churches have defaulted on these note agreements 
and the State Association believes it is unlikely that any of these churches will default on 
their loans in the future. However, if these churches become unable to meet their debt 
service, the State Association will be liable for payment of the debt. Following is a 
complete list of the obligations that the State Association has guaranteed and remain 
outstanding as of June 30, 2007: 

Heartland - $546,011 Loan Mortgagee - Lincoln National Bank 
Originated September 2003, maturing 2008 

(4)-TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS 

The State Association disburses restricted funds according to the donor's specifications 
during the last week of every month. Temporarily restricted net assets would represent 
any funds that were received before the fiscal year-end that had not been disbursed. As 
of June 30, 2007 the following restricted donations had not been disbursed. 

Arms of Compassion Ministry 
Disaster relief 
Total 

$3,212 
8.045 

ID.ill 

(5) - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

HIS Foundation is a non-profit organization founded in June of 2000 to receive funds for 
the purpose of providing perpetual income for Free Will Baptists Ministries in the state of 
Oklahoma. The State Association is a beneficiary of this foundation. 

SceAtlachedAuditor'sReport 
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OKLAHOMA STATE ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 
NOTES.TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2007 AND 2006 

(6)-DONATED REAL ESTATE 

A Free Will Baptist Church campground has shown intent to donate property to the State 
· Association. However, this· property has not been reflected in the accompanying 
· financial statements, since it has not yet met the criteria for recognition established by 

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 116, Accounting for Contributions 
Received and Contributions Made. 

See Attached Auditor's Report 
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Executive Board 
Proposed Budget 

INCOME: 2008-2009 2007-2008 

Executive Director Speaking $ 1,000 $ 1,000 
Interest Income 2,000 2,400 
State Convention Fees* 15,000 12,000 
National Convention Fees 22,000 24,000 
Cooperative Giving (22% of $630,000) 138,600 132,000 
Designated Giving 8,000 8,000 
Promoter 12,000 18,000 
Miscellaneous 5,000 5,000 
Literature Center (Advertising & Ins.) 6,000 5,000 
State Mission Board Rent 2,100 2,100 
Eastor' s Retreat Fees 17,000 19,000 

TOTAL INCOME $228,700 $228,500 

EXPENDITURES: 

Executive Director 25,600 32,200 
Housing 30,000 16,000 
Secretary 25,000 25,000 
Building, Hospitalization & 12,000 15,000 

Worker's Comp. Ins. 
Retirement 5,000 8,000 
Payroll Taxes 12,000 12,000 
Utilities 3,200 6,000 
Telephone 2,600 4,000 
Executive Director's Travel & Promotion 13,000 13,000 
Executive Board Meetings 3,000 3,500 
Postage 2,500 2,500 
Promoter 18,800 17,000 
Supplies & Office Expenses 3,500 3,500 
Building Maintenance & Repair 5,000 6,000 
Equipment Maintenance & Repair 5,000 5,000 
State Convention Expense 11,000 8,000 
National Convention Expense 24,000 25,000 
Audit 2,500 2,000 
Scholarship/Benevolent Fund 3,000 3,000 
Pastor's Conference 18,000 18,000 
Miscellaneous 4,000 3,800 

TOT AL EXPENDITURES $228,700 $228,500 

'Special Account for 2010 National Convention Host Fund, $6,000 per year for five years. 
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Montgomery& Montgomery, CPAs, P.C. 
Cer1ifiedPublicAcrountants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Executive Board 
Oklahoma State Association ofFree Will Baptists' 
Literature Center 

We have :nxlited the ~g s!atement of financial position of the Oklahoma State Association of Free 
Will Bajmts' Llterature Center as of June 30, 2007 and 2006, and the related statements.of activities and cash 
floM for the years then ended These financial slateme!l!s are the respons1bilily of the Literature Center's 
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. The 
financial statements of the Oklahoma StateAsrociation offree Will Bar,tists' Llterature Center were audited by 
other auditors whose report dated September 6, 2006, expres.ied an UIIJU3lified opinion on those statements. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the auditing stlIXlanls generally accepted in the United States of 
America. Those stlIXlanls require that we plan and perlonn the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the financial statements are free of material mis.ltatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, eviderice 
supportirig the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting 
principles used and significant estimates trnde by managenm, as well as evaluating the overall financial 
statement presentation We believe that our :nxlits provide a rearonable basis for our opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the Oklahoma State Association ofFree Will Baptists' Literature Center as of June 30, 2007 and 2006, 
and the changes in its net assets and its cash flOM for the years then ended, in confonnity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Montgomel)' & Montgomery, CPAs 
August 23, 2007 

32 SW 104ili, Oklahoma City, OK 73139 
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OKLAHOMA STATE ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS' 
LITERATURE CENTER 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
JUNE 30, 2007 AND 2006 

ASSETS 
2007 2006 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash 38,063 58,514 
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $2,500 39,637 40,297 
Inventory 3,657 3,966 
Current portion of notes receivable 0 0 

Total Current. Assets 81,357 102,777 

PROPER1Y AND EQUIPMENT 
Furninire, fixtures and equipment 94,848 94,848 
Building 104,484. 104,484 

Less: Accumulated Depreciation (110,344) (106,993) 
Net Fixed Assets 88,988 92,339 

TOT AL ASSETS 170,345 195,116 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 1,413 6,438 
Accrued liabilities 377 598 
Current portion of long-teim debt 0 0 
Total current liabilities 1,790 7,036 

WNG TERM OBILGATIONS 
Contnlmtion pledge to Hillsdale FWB College 66,111 72,111 

66,111 72,111 

NET ASSETS 
Unrestricted 102,444 115,%9 
Temporarily restricted 0 0 
Pennanently restricted 0 0 
Total net assets 102,444 115,969 

TOT AL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 170,345 195,116 

See Attached Auditor's Report 

31 



~;..· :;iiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii,,iii-----..... 

OKLAHOMA STATEASSOCL\TION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS' 
LITERA TIJRE CENTER 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
JUNE 30, 2007 AND 2006 

SALES 2007 2006 
Curriculum and Retail Sales 298,651 302,035 
Postage and Handling 22,578 21,585 
Total Sales 321,229 323,620 

COST OF GOOD SOLD 250,407 238,101 
GROSS PROFIT 70,822 85,519 

SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRAtlVE EXPENSES 
Salaries 21,231 20,366 
Contract Labor 5,480 3,000 
Employee Benefits 8,758 6,000 
Depreciation 3,350 3,440 
Equipment Rental 0 1,871 
Legal and Accounting 2,025 1,550 
Office Supplies and Other . 13,264 8,314 
Payroll and other tru<es 1,622 1,708 
Postage and Delivery 17,185 15,591 
Telephone 0 276 
Total Expenses 72,915 62,116 

Net Operating Income (Loss) (2,093) 23,403 

Other Income and Disbursements 
Contnbutions Made (13,127) (33,090) 
Interest Expense 0 (452) 
Contributions received 0 60,000 
Interest and Other Income 1,695 2 029 
Total Other Income and Disbursements (11,432) 28,487 

TOTAL CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (13,525) 51,890 

1f 

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING 115,969 64,079 

NET ASSETS, ENDING 102,444 115,969 

See Attached Auditor's Report 
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OKLAHOMA STATE ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS' 
LITERATURE CENTER 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2007 AND 2006 

2007 2006 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTMTIES 

Changes in net assets (13,525) . 51,890 

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash flows from operating activities 
Depreciation 3,350 3,440 
(Increase) Decrease in current assets: . 

Accounts Receivable 660 (24,322) 
Inventory .309 1,035 

Increase (Decrease) in current liabilities: 
Accounts payable (5,025) 1,915 
Accrued Liabilities !220) (60) 

Total adjustments (926) (17,992) 

Total cash flows from operating activities (14,451) 33,898 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Purchase of fixed assets 0 (1,587) 
Principal payments received on note receivable 0 19,117 
Total cash flows from investing activities 0 17,530 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Principal 0 (48,596) 
Cash contribution to Hillsdale FWB College · (6,000) !6,000) 
Total cash flows from financing activities !6,000) (54,5%) 

Total increase (decrease) in cash (20,451) (3,168) 

Cash at the beginning of the year 58,514 61,682 

Cash at the end of the year 38,063 58,514 

See Attached Auditor's Report 
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OKLAHOMA STA TE ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS' 
LITERATURE CENTER 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2007 AND 2006 · 

· (l) ORGANIZATIONAL AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Organization - The Oklahoma State Association of Free Will Baptists Literature Center 
(the Literature Center) is an auxiliary function of the Oklahoma State Association ofFree 
Will Baptists. This Center was created to assist in the supply of Free Will Baptist 
literature. The Literature Center does not combine their financial statements with those of 
the Oklahoma State Association of Free Will Baptists because meaningful information 
would not result from presenting combined financial statements. 

Basis of Accounting - The financial statements of the Literature Center have been 
prepared on the accrual basis of accounting, wherein income and expenses are recorded 
as they are earned or incurred. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - For purposes of the statements of cash flows, cash includes 
cash on hand and cash in checking and savings. accounts of the unrestricted and 
temporarily restricted funds. Cash equivalents include all highly liquid investments with a 
maturity on three months on less. 

Inventories - Inventories are recorded at the lower on cost on market using the first-in, 
first-out method of accounting. 

Property and Equipment - Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Repairs and 
maintenance are recorded as expenditures when incurred while major betterments are 
capitalized. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method based on the 
estimated useful lives of the related assets as summarized below: 

Furniture, Fixtures & Equipment 
Building 

3 to JO years 
37.5 years 

Income Taxes - The Literature Center is a not-for-profit organization associated with the 
Free Will Baptist religious denomination and is exempt from federal and state income 
taxation. Therefore, no provision has been made for income taxes in the accompanying 
financial statements. 

See Attached Auditor's Report 
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OKLAHOMA STATE ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS' 
LITERATURE CENTER 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2007 AND 2006 

(I} ORGANIZATIONAL AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (con't} 

Basis of Presentation - Net assets and revenues, gains and losses are classified based on 
the existence or absence of donor:imposed restrictions as follows: 

• Umestricted net assets - Net assets that are not subject to· donor-imposed 
stipulations. 

• Temporarily restricted net assets - Net. assets subject to donor-imposed 
stipulations that can be fulfilled by actions of the Literature Center pursuant to 
those stipulations or that expire by the passage of time. 

• Permanently restricted net assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed · 
stipulations that they be maintained permanently by the Literature Center. 
Generally, the donors of such assets permit the Literature Center to use all or part 
of the income earned on the assets. 

Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to 
make estimates and assumptions that affect certain· reported amounts and disclosures. 
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Shipping and handling - Shipping and handling costs are recorded as an expense and are 
included in cost of goods sold on the statement of activities. 

(2)- CONTRIBUTIONS 

All contributions made by the Literature Center are approved by the executive board 
members. For the years ending June 30, 2007 and June 30, 2006, contributions were paid 
to Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College in the amount of$10,105 and $7,850, respectfully. 

(3) · STA TEI\IENT OF CASH FLOWS 

Cash flows from operating activities include contributions received. 

See Attached Auditor's Report 
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LITERATURE CENTER 
PROPOSED BUDGET 

Cash Flow Budget 

Projected Income 2008-2009 2007-2008 2006-2007 

Curriculum and Retail Sales 300,000 300,000 290,000 
Shipping & Handling 20,000 20,000 18,500 
Note Receivable 8,500 
Credit From Vendors 8,000 8,000 1QQQ 

Interest Income LlQQ lJQQ 
Total 329,500 329,IO0 324,000 

Projected Expenses 2008-2009 2007-2008 2006-2007 
Selling, General & 
Administrative 

Salaries 21,650 21,650 20,600 
Employee Benefits 6,000 6,000 5,000 
Postage 15,000 15,000 14,500 
Supplies 4,000 4,000 4,000 
Telephone & Utilities 2,000 2,000 2,000 
Legal 2,000 2,000 2,000 
Payroll Taxes 3,400 3,000 3,000 
Advertising-Promoter 2,000 2,000 2,000 
Equipment Maintenance 3,450 3,450 3,400 
Miscellaneous 2,000 2,000 2,000 
Curriculum & Retail Sales 232,000 232,000 230,000 
Advertising & Insurance 3,800 3,800 3,800 
Future Capital Investments 25,000 25,000 25,000 
Hillsdale College Pledge 6,000 6,000 6,000 
ACM Pledge lJQQ lJQQ lJQQ 

Total 329,500 329,100 324,000 
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State Missions Board Annual Report for 2006 

The Oklahoma State Mission Board has now completed nine years with the Total Support Program in 
place. Total missions giving, including TSP and designated to missionary accounts was $663,739.02 of 
which $30,000 was a gift from the IIlS Foundation. In the beginning ofTSP one of our major goals was to 
get all missionary accounts out of the red. In January, 1998, the beginning of TSP there was a cumulative 
deficit in missionary accounts that exceeded $44,000. For the past few years, no missionary accounts have 
continued in the red and as of this meeting no missionary accounts have deficit balances. 

The State Mission Board chose Bro. Brad Ransom as the new Mission Director. His organi7.ational skills, 
creative ideas and energy level led the board lo select him lo continue the vision and work of TSP. If you 
would like lo have Bro. Brad in your church for a service, please feel free to contact him at the State 
Mission office at (405) 912-9036. 

Communication continues with South Grand River Association to plant a FWB church in Grove, 
Oklahoma. Discussions are underway with potential candidates to serve as church planter and we hope to 
have this work underway in the very near future. Communication also continues with First Oklahoma 
Association about the possibility of partnering together to plant a FWB church in Piedmont, Oklahoma. 

Heartland FWB Church and Dennis and Leanne Cariker have gone self supporting as of October, 2006. 
Plaques and recognition were given last year at the State meeting for a job well done. Heartland continues 
to do well and we appreciate the labor and sacrifice of all who made this church successful. 

Many of our TSP projects continue lo do well. The Hispanic work in Bartlesville with Bro. Alfredo Botello 
continues to see people saved and attendance continues to climb. Internationally, the works in Panama, 
France and the Hanna Project continues to give good reports and many churches are being established and 
souls won to the kingdom. Nationally, our TSP works across the U.S. and Mexico are exciting and we 
constantly hear of people being saved in theses works. 

Since the inception ofTSP, the following works have gone self supporting and are now full time works: 
Chris Clay, Indianapolis, IN 
Jeff Sloan, Ft Wayne, IN 
Ron Parker, LA 
David Arteoga, Hispanic Oklahoma City 
Darrell Smith, Portland, OR 
Bill Phillips, Salt Lake City, UT 
Ricky Morris, Chandler, AZ 
George Harvey, Gilbert, AZ 
Brad Hanna, Oak Hills, Edmond, OK 
Dennis Cariker, Heartland, Norman, OK 

Bro. Jeff Sloan gives credit to TSP stating that in Indiana, there were only six FWB churches and they were 
unable to support a mission work. With the support of Oklahoma FWB and TSP, both Chris Clay and Jeff 
Sloan were able to establish self supporting churches and Indiana now has two additional Free Will Baptist 
Churches and the state now is able to support fully their own missionaries. 

Our commission as Christians is to go into all the world. There are no boundaries in the eyes of God. TSP 
gives us an opportunity to carry out God's command as we join together in witnessing, praying and giving 
that His name might be preached among all nations. Please continue your support of TSP as we endeavor to 
preach Christ to a lost and dying world. 

That all may hear, 

9i~u::-
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OKLAHOMA STA TE ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS' 
BOARD OF CHURCH EXTENSION, MISSIONS, AND EVANGELISM 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2006 AND 2005 

Ill ORGANIZATIONAL AND SIGNlFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Organization - The Oklahoma State Association of Free Will Baptists Board of Church 
Extension, Missions and Evangelism (the Mission Board) is an auxiliary function of the 
Oklahoma State Association of Free Will Baptists. This Board was created to assist in the 
establishment of Free Will Baptist churches in the State of Oklahoma and provide 
mission work around the world from donations received in Oklahoma. The Mission 
Board does not combine their financial statements with those of the Oklahoma State 
Association of Free Will Baptists, due to the opinion that meaningful information would 
not result from presenting combined financial statements. 

The Mission Board receives a percentage of the cooperative giving program sponsored by 
the Oklahoma State Association ofFree Will Baptists. 

Basis of Accounting- The financial statements of the Mission Board have been prepared 
on the modified cash basis of accounting, which is a comprehensive basis of accounting 
other than generally accepted accounting principles. Modifications to the cash basis of 
accounting included recording depreciation on property and equipment and presenting 
investments at fair value. Revenue is recorded when received rather than when earned 
and expenses are recorded when paid rather than when the obligation is incurred. 

Investments - The Mission Board carries investments in marketable securities with 
readily determinable fair values and all investments in debt securities at their fair values 
in the statement of assets, liabilities and net assets. Unrealized gains and losses are 
included in the change in net assets in the accompanying statements of receipts, 
expenditures and other changes in net assets. 

Property and Equipment - Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation is 
computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related 
assets. Expenditures for repairs and maintenance are charged to operations when incurred 
while major improvements and renewals are capitalized. 

The following useful lives were used to calculate depreciation: 

Automobiles 5 years 
Furniture, Fixtures & Equipment 5 years 

Income Taxes - The Mission Board is a not-for-profit organization associated with the 
Free Will Baptist religious denomination and is exempt from federal and state income 
taxation. Therefore, no provision has been made for income truces in the accompanying 
financial statements. 

SecAttachcdAuditcr'sReport 
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OKLAHOMA STATE ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS' 

BOARD OF CHURCH EXTENSION, MISSIONS, AND EVANGELISM 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2006 AND 2005 

(1) ORGANIZATIONAL AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (con'tl 

Estimates - Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing financial 
statements. Those estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported revenues 
and expenses. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Basis of Presentation - Net assets and revenues, gains and losses are classified based on 
the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions as follows: 

• Unrestricted net assets - Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed 
stipulations. 

• Temporarily restricted net assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed 
stipulations that can be fulfilled by actions of the Board pursuant to those 
stipulations or that expire by the passage of tinie. 

• Permanently restricted net assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed 
stipulations that they be maintained permanently by the Board. Generally, the 
donors of such assets permit the Board to use all or part of the income earned on 
the assets. 

(2)- INVESTMENTS AND BOARD DESIGNATED NET ASSETS 

During the year ended December 31, 2003, the board designated funds for the future 
purchase of land by the Mission Board establishing new churches. These designated 
funds and their earnings are held and managed by a financial institution. The balance of 
these investments funds as of December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005 was $196,038 
and $178,916, respectively. 

These investments are stated at fair value and consist of mutual funds, as follows: 

Cost 
Fair Value 

2006 
173,455 
196,038 

2005 
173,443 
178,916 

The summary of income on these investments consists of the following for the years 
ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 are as follows: 

Interest and Dividends 
Net realized gain (loss) 
Net unrealized gain (loss) 
Net Investment income (loss) 

See Attached Auditor's Report 

2006 
10,224 
9,533 
5 895 

25 652 
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2005 
3,053 
8,030 

(4,854) 
6.229 



OKLAHOMA STATE ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS' 
BOARD OF CHURCH EXTENSION, MISSIONS, AND EVANGELISM 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
DECEMBER 31, 2006 AND 2005 

(3)- ENDOWMENT TRUST 

Funds of $1,000 are on deposit with the National Free Will Baptist Association as a 
permanent endowment trust for future use of the Board. The earnings of this endowment 
trust are used to support the expenses and costs for missionaries. 

(4\-INVESTMENT TRUST 

During 2005, a restricted donation was received from HIS Foundation in the amount of 
$250,000. One hundred thousand dollars was restricted as additional funds for the future 
purchase of land by the Mission Board establishing new churches. The remaining one 
hundred fifty thousand dollars was donated to the Sugarland Mission work, of which 
$100,000 came as a designated gift from Charity Advisors in Dallas, TX. During 2006, a 
donation of$79,000 was received from Hugo FWB Church. This donation was deposited 
into the Investment Trust account 

The funds held for future purchases of land are currently on deposit with the National 
Free Will Baptist Home Missions, including the earnings to date. 

(5)-ARMS OF COMPASSION MlNISTRY 

The Missions Board was asked to receive and disburse funding for the Arms of 
Compassion Ministry through October 2005. The amounts received and disbursed in 
2005 totaled $35,188. This ministry has been approved and is now operating under the 
direction of the Oklahoma State Association's Executive Board. 

(6)-RELATEDPARTYTRANSACTION 

During the years ending December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Mission Board rented 
operating space from the Oklahoma State Association of Free Will Baptists. The rent 
agreement is on a month to month basis therefore, there are no future lease obligations. 
Total rent paid during the fiscal years 2006 and 2005 was $2, I 00 and $2, I 00 
respectively. 

HIS Foundation is a non-profit organii.ation that was founded in June, 2001 to receive 
funds for the purpose of providing perpetual income for Free Will Baptist Ministries in 
the State of Oklahoma. The Mission Board is a beneficiary of this foundation, and 
received funds in the amount of $250,000 from the foundation in 2005. No additional 
funds were received in 2006. 

SeeAttachedAuditcr'sRepcrt 
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Oklahoma Free Will Baptist Mission Board 
2008 Administrative Budget 

Income: 
Co-Op (1/2 of'07-'08= $45,000, ½ of'08-'09= $47,500) 
Sand Springs Property 

TOTAL 

Expenses: 
Salaries 
Retirement 
Travel/Promotion 
Mission Trips/Projects 
Board Expense 
Printing and Postage 
Rent 
Promoter 
Phone 
Office 

TOTAL 

$63,662 
$1,200 

$10,000 
$5,040 
$2,000 
$2,500 
$2,100 
$3,000 
$1,200 
$3,000 

$93,702 
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$92,250 
$1452 

$93,702 



Oklahoma Free Will Baptist Mission Board 
TSP Missionary Budget for 2008 

Income 
Designated Support 
TSP Giving 

TOTAL INCOME 

Expenses (Missionary Salaries and Expenses) 

STATE MISSIONS 

Woodward Hispanic 
Other 

TOTAL 

HOME MISSIONS 

TOTAL 

INTERNATIONAL MISSIONS 

TOTAL 

TOTAL EXPENSES 

$24,000.00 
$24,000.00 

$48,000.00 

$198,120.00 

$492,443.00 
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$125,000.00 
$613,563.00 

$738,563.00 

$738,563.00 



Oklahoma FWB Christian Education Board 
Fall Breakaway '06 was held October 20-21, 2006 at Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College. Two 
hundred twenty-five students and Youth Workers gathered for fellowship, worship and fun. The Justin 
Mann Band led worship and Mike Keahbone challenged our students from God's Word. Many students 
were encouraged in their walk with Christ that weekend. Due to lack of participation, we will not 
continue this event. This Spring we will be partnering with Hillsdale College in their On-Campus Days. 

Toe Senior Adult Retreat was held March 12-14, 2007, at the Western Hills Guest Lodge. One 
hundred fifty-one people attended. The Oklahoma Minister's Quartet blessed the hearts of attendees as 
they sang and preached. 

Toe 2008 Senior Adult Retreat will be March 10-12, 2008. As the Minister's Quartet will no longer 
be able to serve at our retreat, plans are being made to revamp the retreat. New speakers and musicians 
will be used this coming year. We encourage all pastors to help us promote this event to their senior 
adults. All pastors are invited, even if they don't qualify as "senior adults". 

State CTS Competition was held May S, 2007, on the campus ofHillsdale Free Will Baptist College. 
The numbers were up from the past few years with 58 entries from OK churches. The winners 
represented our State Association well at the National Youth Conference in Birmingham, AL, in July. 
Toe 2008 State Competition will be May 3, 2008, at Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College. 

Our State Camps continue to grow! We set a new record at Teen Camp with 1170 campers and 
sponsors from 40 churches. Junior Camp had 613 campers and sponsors. That's a total of 1,712. 
God was definitely at work during each week as evidenced by numerous salvation decisions and 
rededications. We are grateful for the many volunteer workers from our churches. We also greatly 
appreciate the work of the Hillsdale Recreation Team under the direction of Andrea Douglas and Ryan 
Akers. 

State Teen Camp 08 will be June 18-13, 2008. (Note that we will start Teen Camp on a Sunday again.) 
Junior Camp will be June 23-27, 2008. Our camp committees are in the process of planning and 
organizing these events. 

Toe Church Together Event was held September 28-29, 2007, at Hillsdale College. Two hundred 
eighty-nine attendees met for a full day of training for all church workers (nursery-adults). Pastor Rob 
Morgan from Toe Donelson Fellowship Church was the keynote speaker. He is an incredible 
communicator! Our next Church Together Event will be September 14-15, 2008. 

We count it an honor to serve Oklahoma Free Will Baptists in this capacity. Thank you for your 
confidence in us. We ask for your continued prayers for the ministry of the State CE Board .. 

Zack Archer 
Delbert Akin 
Matt Baccus 
Casey Cariker, Promotional Secretary 
Curt Gwartney, Chairman 
Clint Harrison 
Steve Mayhew 
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Lance Rogers 
Phil Scowden 
Daniel Sweet 
Daniel Voss 



To the Executive Board 

Mon1gomecy & Montgomery, Q> As, P.C 
Certified Public Accountan~ 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Oklahoma State Association offree Will Baptists' 
Christian Education Board 

,, 
pJ.ll 

We have audited the accompanying statement of =ts, liabilities and net assets - cash basis of the Oklahoma 
State Association of Free Will Baptists' Ollistian Education Board as of June 30, 2007 and 2006, and the related 
statements of revenues, support, experulitures, and other changes in net assets - cash basis for the years then 
ended These financial statements are the respons1bility of tre Board's management. Our respo!1Slbility is to 
express an opinion on these linancial statements based on our audits. The financial statements of the Oklahoma 
State Association of Free Will Baptists' Ouistian Education Board as of June 30, 2006, m:re audited by other 
auditors whose report dated September 6, 2006, expressed an tnj1Jalified opinion on those statements. 

We conducted our audits in accordance mth the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America Those standards require that we plan and perfonn the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting 
principles used and significant estimates made by rnanagem;n~ as well as evaluating the overall financial 
statement presentllion We believe that our audits provide a rearonable basis for our opinion 

A. described in Note I, these financial statements were prepared on the cash basis of accounting, wbich is a 
comprehensive basis of accounting other than aocounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the assets, 
liabilities, and net assets of the Oklahoma State Association offree Will Baptists' Ouistian Education Board as of 
June 30, 2007 and 2006, and the revenues, support, experulitures, and other changes in net assets for the years then 
ended, on the basis of accounting descnbed in Note I. 

Montgome,y & Montgomecy, CPA. 
August 31, 2007 

32 SW 104ili, Oklahoma City, OK 73139 
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OKLAHOMA STATE ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS' 
CHRISTIAN EDUCATION BOARD 

STATEMENT OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET ASSETS-CASH BASIS 
JUNE 30, 2007 AND 2006 

Current Assets 
Cash 

Unrestricted 
Deposits in Transit 
Total cash 

Fixed Assets 
Equipment 
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 

Net Fixed Assets 

TOT AL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

Net Assets 
Unrestricted 
Temporarily restricted 
Pennanently restricted 

TOT AL NET ASSETS 

TOT AL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

Sec Attached Auditor's Report 
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2007 2006 

14,094 10,007 
0 3,670 

14,094 13,677 

ll,015 3,222 
(3,635) (2,224) 
7,380 998 

21,474 14,675 

21,474 14,675 

21,474 14,675 

21,474 14,675 



OKLAHOMA STATE ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS' 
CHRISTIAN EDUCATION BOARD 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, SUPPORT, EXPENDITURES 
AND OTHER CHANGES IN NET ASSETS- CASH BASIS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2007 AND 2006 

UNRESTRIC'IED NET ASSETS 2007 

Revenues and Support 
Programs sponsored: 
Competition fees 1,675 
Senior adult retreat fees 15,590 
Seminar and CE Training 5,956 
Youth Camp Fees 110,043 
Youth conference fees 1,890 

135,154 
General support: 

Cooperative giving 38,308 
Designated giving 550 

38,858 
Total unrestricted support 174,012 

Organinltional Expenditures 
Programs sponsored: 
Competition 2,576 
Senior adult retreat 18,487 
Youth Camp 105,047 
Youth Conference 5,189 
Seminar and Training 9,817 
Total program expenditures 141,116 

General and administrative 
Administrative Fees 7,875 
Board expense 5,870 
Postage and printing 2,317 
Telephone and office supplies 3,219 
Audit 1,250 
Promoter page 4,155 
Depreciation 1,411 

Total general and administrative expenses 26,097 
Total Expenditures 167,213 

Other Income (Expenditures): 
Gain CToss) on disposal of unused assets 0 
Total Other Income 0 

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS 6,799 

NET ASSETS, Beginning 14,675 

NET ASSETS, Ending 21,474 

See Attached Auditor'a Report 
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2006 

1,385 
13,802 
2,686 

119,707 
4,090 

141,670 

37,278 
500 

37,778 
179,448 

2,188 
18,067 

122,483 
6,358 
5,204 

154,300 

6,300 
5,804 
2,521 
1,935 
1,250 
3,547 

631 
21,988 

176,288 

(584) 
(584) 

2,576 

12,099 

14,675 



OKLAHOMA STATE ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS' 
CHRISTIAN EDUCATION BOARD 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2007 AND 2006 

(l) ORGANIZATIONAL AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Organization - The Oklahoma State Association of Free Will Baptists Christian 
Education Board (the Board) is an auxiliary function of the Oklahoma State Association 
of Free Will Baptists. This Board. was created fo assist in the programs for Christian 
Education. The Christian Education Board does not combine their financial statements 
with those of the Oklahoma State Association of Free Will Baptists, due to the opinion 
that meaningful information would not result from presenting combined financial 
statements. 

The Christian Education Board receives a percentage of the cooperative giving program 
sponsored by the Oklahoma State Association of Free Will Baptists. 

Basis of Accounting - The financial statements of the Christian Education Board have 
been prepared on the modified cash.basis of accounting, which is a comprehensive basis 
of accounting· other than generally accepted accounting principles. Modifications to the 
cash basis of accounting included recording depreciation on property and equipment. 
Revenue is recorded when received rather than when earned and expenses are recorded 
when paid rather than when the obligation is incurred. 

Property and Equipment - Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation is 
computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related 
assets, which is 5 to JO years. Expenditures for repairs and maintenance are charged to 
operations when incurred while major improvements and renewals are capitalized. 

Income Taxes- The Christian Education Board is a not-for-profit organization associated 
with the Free Will Baptist religious denomination and is exempt from federal and state 
income taxation. Therefore, no provision has been made for income taxes in the 
accompanying financial statements. 

Estimates - Management uses · estimates and assumptions in preparing financial 
statements. Those estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported revenues 
and expenses. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

See Attached, Auditor's Report 
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OKLAHOMA STATE ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS' 
CHRISTIAN EDUCATION BOARD 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
. JUNE 30, 2007 AND 2006 

Ill ORGANIZATIONAL AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES /con'!) 

Basis of Presentation - Net assets and revenues, gains and losses are classified based on 
the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions as follows: 

• Unrestricted net assets - Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed 
stipulations. 

• Temporarily restricted net assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed • 
stipulations that can be fulfilled by actions of the. Board pursuant to those 
stipulations or that expire by .the passage of time. · 

• Permanently restricted net assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed 
stipulations that they be maintained permanently by the Board. Generally, the 
donors of such assets permit the Board to use all or part of the income earned on 
the assets. 

See Attached Auditor's Report 
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CHRISTIAN EDUCATION BOARD 
Proposed Budget 

INCOME: 2008-2009 2007-2008 

Cooperative Giving 37,800.00 36,000.00 
Designated Giving 600.00 600.00 
Fall Breakaway Income .00 6,000.00 
Seminar and CE Training Income 6,000.00 6,000.00 
Senior Retreat Income 15,300.00 15,000.00 
State Camp Income 126,500.00 120,000.00 
State Competition Income 1,600.00 1,600.00 

TOTAL INCOME 187,800.00 185,200.00 

EXPENDITURES: 

Audit Expense 1,300.00 1,300.00 
Board Expense 6,000.00 6,000.00 
Capital Expenditures (Possible audio/visual eq.) 2,500.00 .00 
Convention and Other 500.00 .00 
Fall Breakaway Expense (Recruiting@Hillsdale) 1,500.00 8,000.00 
Postage and Printing 4,500.00 4,000.00 
Promoter Page 5,000.00 4,600.00 
Salaries 7,200.00 7,200.00 
Seminar and CE Training Expense 8,500.00 8,500.00 
Senior Retreat Expense 18,000.00 18,000.00 
State Camp Expense 128,300.00 123,000.00 
State Competition Expense 2,500.00 2,600.00 
Telephone and Office Supplies 2.000.00 2,000.00 

TOT AL EXPENDITURES 187,800.00 185,200.00 

NET INCOME .00 .00 
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REPORT OF IIlSTORICAL COMMISSION 

TO: OKLAHOMA STA TE ASSOCIATION OF FREE WILL BAPTISTS 
MEETING IN ITS 99™ SESSION AT HILLSDALE FWB COLLEGE, 
OCTOBER 15-17,2007 

• The Commission members met three times in the past year on February 9, May 9, and August 
14. All the meetings were held at the State Office. Travel expense for these meetings totaled 
$160.00. 

• The Archives Room at Hillsdale FWB College was dedicated during the 2006 session held at 
Hillsdale on October 9. Room 103 with its special air control system will continue to be 
updated and reserved for all the historical documents donated and collected by the 
Association. The commission wishes to thank the Paul Kennedy Family again for its 
valuable contribution to this project. A lack of funds has delayed the completion of the 
project but work will continue as funds are available. Nancy Draper, Learning Center 
Director and member of this commission, deserves much credit for her directions and 
assistance she has supplied. Thanks to Hillsdale College for its willingness to allow the 
Archives Room to be housed on its campus in Moore. Thanks also to the individuals, 
churches, and associations that continue to send articles, minutes, and pictures to be stored 
here for use by future generations ofFree Will Baptists. · 

• The $1000.00 contribution received last year which was earmarked for a program to preserve 
on DVD a biographical and pictorial record of ministers who have served in the State 
Association remains reserved for its designated purpose. No requests for participation have 
been received. 

• Our major efforts in the past year have been focused on the publication of a I 00 year history 
of Oklahoma Free Will Baptists which will be concluded at the I 00~ session to be held at 
Ada, Oklahoma, in October 2008. The commission is making the following recommendation 
to be considered by the body in this 99ili session: 

• WHEREAS, there is need for a I 00 years history of events and happenings among the 
churches and associations of the Oklahoma FWB State Association, and WHEREAS, the 
Historical Commission has be given responsibility for this project, BE IT THEREFORE 
RESOLVED that the Executive Board of the State Association be authorized to enter into a 
contractual agreement with the Donning Company Publishers to print and publish 1000 
copies of"A Pictorial History ofOklahoma State Free Will Baptist Association" at a cost of 
$25,180,00 with a 25% deposit of $6294.14 to be made at the signing of the contract with the 
balance due upon receipt of the publication at the State Office in April 2009 or before. We 
further recommend that the National Association convention fee of $25.00 for financing the 
National Association in its session in 2010 at Oklahoma City be extended for one year which 
will be used to purchase a copy of the pictorial directory for every church participating 
(approximately 250). A sample book and a copy of proposed contract will be available to 
study at the State Office booth. 

• A $500 request for this Commission's 2007-08 budget is requested from the General Fund 

Delbert Akin, Chainnan; Members Edwin Wade and Ray Gwartney 
Nancy Draper, Learning Center Director, Member 
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Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College 
Report of the President 

To the Oklahoma State Association of FWB 2007 

Hillsdale finished last year with an unduplicated headcount of 340 students, which 
is equivalent to the previous year. The initial census of students for the 2007-2008 
college year shows an increase in both first-time and returning undergraduates. 
The preliminary enrollment shows an increase of 13% overall. One student has 
returned home after our Deans explained the rules, but in general this student 
body has been very cooperative. The academic accomplishments of the incoming 
freshmen make it one of the best prepared groups in the history of the College. 

The most dramatic changes are in Dorm occupancy and freshmen enrollment. The 
dorm counts are up 35% over last year. The on-campus population is 
approximately 76% of our maximum configuration (130 students in the Dorms and 
Apartments that could be fitted for 172 beds). An extensive remodeling of Friends 
Hall was completed this summer and Hillsdale is in the process of addii,11 a 
number of security features to the residence halls. 

With the help of our Oklahoma Women Active for Christ the lighting has been 
improved on the front Quad and central parking lot. The Moore Police and Fire 
Departments conducted a series of 4 drills on the campus during the summer. One 
event included the Norman Fire Department in preparation for a variety of possible 
emergencies. Also, in light of the recent shootings on campuses around the 
country the Moore SWAT Team mapped, planned, and drilled in every b~ilding on 
the Hillsdale Campus. Our goal is to provide a secure environment in wnich our 
students can thrive. 

Thank you to the Arms of Compassion effort that brought supplies to our students 
that helped them get settled into the Dorms. These gifts allowed the students to 
save money and feel welcome to the campus. Thanks to John specifically and 
thanks to all who shared with our students. 

Freshmen enrollment is up 42% to 117 students out of which 84 are fir~,t-time 
college students. The general Christian Ministry population is 80. Many of these 
students start out in Youth Ministry, but will later transition into Pastoral Ministry. 
The Youth Ministry major has been enhanced with additional courses (i.e., Bible 
and Homiletics) to better prepare these individuals for broader ministry in the 
future. 

Our Missionaries in Residence at Hillsdale for the 2007-2008 college year are Jeff 
and Sherri Sloan. These Hillsdale alumni are known most recently for their great 
work in establishing a church in Ft. Wayne, Indiana. In addition to enric: ::ng 
missions awareness on the campus the Sloans will fill two critical tasks. Sherri will 
be serving as the Executive Assistant to the President. (Since she is retired 
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Nadine Followwill has stopped coming to work every day). Jeff is charg2d with the 
responsibility of being our Campus Pastor and leading Chapel services. Hillsdale 
is blessed to have this team on campus, pray for spiritual fruit from their ministry. 

Dr. Mark Braisher has served previously as a Board member, adjunct faculty, and 
intern Director of the Graduate Program. He is now the Hillsdale Vice President of 
Administration. This position will encompass two major responsibilities. First, he 
will function as the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) replacing Dan Arnold who retired 
last year. Second, Mark will replace Steve Ashby as the Graduate Dean. Dr. 
Ashby, the founding Dean of the Graduate School, requested reassignr, ,en! from 
his administrative duties in order to concentrate on teaching his graduate courses. 
Both tasks are vital to the future of the College. Hillsdale is one of the few 
evangelical institutions in Oklahoma that offers graduate training for ministry. The 
stewardship of our finances allows Hillsdale to fulfill her mission into the future. 

Hillsdale has secured the services of a Financial Aid Service (Weber & 
Associates) to handle the increasing work load associated with Federal Student 
Financial Aid and to ensure that the College is in compliance with the cu-rent 
regulations. In relation to this, the audit included with this report is for the 2006 
fiscal year. In order to complete this audit the College had to employ a second 
audit firm. The new firm is Knutte & Assoc. who have completed and updated our 
audit documents for submission to the Department of Education. The Department 
has chosen to review Hillsdale for compliance and some repayment of moneys will 
be required. The audit firm will complete the audit for the current year after the 
conclusion of the federal review. The plan is to work through these issues and get 
the audit cycle back in line with that of the other state agencies. 

I was amazed at the response to my appeal letter during April, May, and June. 
There were three large gifts received by Hillsdale between $40,000 and $64,000. 
These came from an estate disbursement, an anonymous gift, and one of our long 
time supporting churches. There have been numerous first time donors who 
contributed during this period and many of our regular contributors have given 
beyond their normal contribution level. Through all of these efforts what looked like 
a disaster has turned into a demonstration of God's care for Hillsdale through His 
people. This response gives me hope that the $10,000 per day neeced to fund 
Hillsdale will one day be underwritten. 

We continue to improve student services, enhance campus life and stimulate 
greater academic achievement. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Timothy W. Eaton 
President 

P.S. I want to express my gratitude for the outpouring of concern and prayers for 
Martha during her cancer treatment. -he doctors report good progress in her fight. 
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HILLSDALE FREE WILL BAPTIST COLLEGE 

REPORT ON THE EXAMINATION 
OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
JUNE 30, 2006 

AND COMPLIANCE ATTESTATION EXAMINATION 
OF THE TITLE IV STUDENT 

FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

JUNE 30, 2006 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Board of Directors 
Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College 

[1mm. lllrn,m 60561 
(6\Ci !60-Jll7 

FAX (6101 9c0-996C 

w•·~· lnuttt.~L'lt 

We have audited the accompanying statement of financial position of Hillsdale Free Will 
Baptist College (an Oklahoma Not-for-Profit Corporation) as of June 30, 2006, and the 
related statement of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then 
ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of Hillsdale Free Will Baptist 
College's management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 
statements based on our audit 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America and Government Audiung Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining, on a test 
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An 
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College as of June 30, 2006, 
and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended, in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial 
statements of Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College taken as a whole. The accompanying 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional 
analysis as required by the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, 
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit OrganizaUons , and is not a 
required part of the basic financial statements. The accompanying footnote 10 on 
related party transactions is required by the U.S. Department of Education and is 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic 
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and in our opinion, is fairly stated, 
in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 
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In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report 
dated February 7, 2007 on our consideration of Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College's 
internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreement and other matters. The 
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal controls over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an 
opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is 
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit 

February 7, 2007 
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HILLSDALE FREE WILL BAPTIST COLLEGE 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2006 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash 
Investments 
Accounts Receivable 

ASSETS 

Students (Net of Allowance for Doubtful Accounts of $0) 
Employee Advances 
Interest 

Notes Receivable 
Prepaid Supplies 
Prepaid Expenses 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 

FIXED ASSETS 
Building 
Equipment 
Improvements 
Library Books 
Land 

Less - Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization 

TOTAL FIXED ASSETS 

OTHER ASSETS 
Cash with Noncurrent Restriction 
Notes Receivable, Less Current Portion 
Deferred Loan Costs (Net of Amortization of $30,817) 

TOTAL OTHER ASSETS 

TOTAL ASSETS 
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$ 51,217 
500,939 

81,146 
406 

5,137 
39,234 
47,046 

88 

725,213 

6,444,807 
1,442,786 

581,153 
336,403 
55,000 

8,860,149 
2,569,054 

6,291,095 

23,907 
92,121 
6,283 

122,311 

$ 7,138,619 



.~------------------------------------... 

CURRENT LIABIUTlES 
Accounts Payable 
Interest Payable 
Notes Payable 
Capital Lease Obligations 
Lines of Credit 
Student Deposits 
Accrued Liabilities 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 

LONG TERM LIABILITIES 
Notes Payable 

TOTAL LONG TERM LIABILITIES 

TOTAL LIABIUTlES 

NET ASSETS 
Unrestricted 
T emporanly Restricted 
Permanently Restricted 

TOTAL NET ASSETS 

TOTAL LIABILmEs AND NET ASSETS 

$ 94,535 
14,425 

115,541 
11,496 

452,505 
29,802 
2,051 

720,355 

3,397,442 

3,397,442 

4,117,797 

2,443,346 
17,247 

560,229 

3,020,822 

$ 7,138,619 

See The Accompanying Notes To The Financial Statements. 
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HILLSDALE FREE WILL BAPTIST COLLEGE 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 

TEMPORARILY PERMANENTLY 

UNRESTRICTED RESTRICTED RESTRICTED TOTAL 

PROGRAM REVENUES 

Tuition. Fees and SeMces 1,111,131 1,111,131 

Awdia,y Enterprises 401,081 401,081 

PlivaleGifls 1,051,065 92,073 11,178 1,154,316 

Interest Income and Other Income 45,443 0 45,443 

Income on Investments 262 262 

Federal Fll1ding for Stooent Salaries 43,321 0 43,321 

Net Asse~ Re~ased lrom Restriclions 89,100 (89,100) 0 

TOTAL PROGRAM REVENUE 2,741,403 Z973 11,178 Z755,554 

PROGRAM EXPENSES 

Educational and Gereral Expendrtures 

Instruction 586,461 586,461 

ABLE Instruction 131,129 131,129 

Leamilg Resource Center 66,414 66,414 

S11.Xlent SeMCes 60,523 60,523 

Admissions 95,738 95,738 

lns@ulional Support 811,914 811,914 

Administration 313,438 313,438 

C.-.iopment 247,891 247,891 

Q)eration and Maintenance of Facffities 156,654 156,654 

Aux!ary Enterprises 

Residence HaHs 80,021 80,021 

FoodSeNice 122,023 122,023 

Mletics 240,555 240,555 

Bookstore 31,715 31,715 
f I Depredafion 320.567 320,567 
I 
I 

TOTAL PROGRAM EXPENSES 3,265,043 3,265,043 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (523,640) 2,973 11,178 (5-09,489) 

NET ASSETS, 

BEGINNING OF YEAR 2,966,986 14i74 549,051 3,530,311 

END OF YEAR 2,443,346 17,247 56Qizg 3,020,822 

See The Accompanying Notes To The Financial Statements. 
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HILLSDALE FREE WILL BAPTIST COLLEGE 
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 

ABLE Resource Student Institutional 
lnslrudion Instruction Center Services Admissions Support 

Salaries and Benelils 511~58 75,981 54,851 37~81 81,429 284,700 
SbJdent Salaries 14,184 1,489 7,153 11,038 2,819 2,128 
Accreditation/Attorney Fees 0 0 8,928 
Advertising and Promotion 125 
Bad Debi Expense 77,917 
Board of Trustees 

Book Purchases 36 168 847 

Dues 0 3,587 
Equipment 3,999 0 
Food Purchases 0 0 

~surance 0 0 
Intern~ 0 250,265 
Miscellaneous 4,642 2,783 1,169 1,126 5,426 18,186 
Postage 991 342 680 1,218 
Pro!esoonal Development 19,384 0 
Professional Fees 43,843 15,125 
Publications 20,884 167 2,578 
Repalrs 0 0 

Software 2,120 

Student Activities 0 10,592 
Suppf,s 4,305 900 198 204 564 7,615 
Telephone 0 0 44,681 
Travel 4,558 5,623 966 282 1,704 0 
Utilities 0 0 0 75,097 
Restricted Projects 0 403 23,560 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 586,461 131,129 66,414 60,523 95,738 811,914 
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Operation and Residence Food 
Administration Development Maintenance Hafls SeNice Athletics Bookstore Total 

270,183 160,766 50,087 48,837 113,919 1,689,392 

4,833 3,173 13,950 2,713 12,560 22,838 98,878 

0 0 0 0 8,928 

34,519 34,644 

0 77,917 

4,824 4,824 

31,715 32,766 

0 0 3,587 

795 925 2,951 1,050 5,471 15,191 

0 0 55,638 0 55,638 

51,974 51,974 

0 250,265 

5,267 1,424 5,235 1,899 2,609 998 50,764 

3,342 5,167 29 619 12,368 

1,477 0 0 0 20,861 

0 58,968 
'1 

8,315 31,944 I 
7~83 1,016 398 8,697 

0 0 0 0 2,120 

9,606 20,198 

1,572 4,601 22,399 1,143 1,952 4,454 49,907 

0 0 44,681 

21,145 29,001 2,775 16,473 82,527 

0 0 0 72,200 0 147,297 

66,177 9-0,140 

313,438 247,891 156,654 80,021 122,023 240,555 31,715 2,944,476 
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HILLSDALE FREE WILL BAPTIST COLLEGE 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Received from Students and Donors 
Interest Received 
Paid to Suppliers and Employees 
Interest Paid 
Income Taxes Paid 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING 
ACTIVITIES 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Proceeds from the Sale of Investments 
Payments Received on Notes Receivable 
Payments for the Purchase of Investments 
Payments for the Purchases of Fixed Assets 

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Proceeds from the Issuance of Long-Term Debt 
Principal Payments on Long-Term Debt 
Principal Payments on Capital Lease Obligations 
Advances on Lines of Credit 
Repayments on Lines of Credit 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH 
EQUIVALENTS 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, 

BEGINNING OF YEAR 

END OF YEAR $ 

See The Accompanying Notes To The Financial Statements. 
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$ 3,039,449 
26,316 

(2,645,516) 
(250,263) 

0 

169,986 

90,164 
32,378 

(94,700) 
{220,125) 

(192,283) 

3,516,950 
(3,516,493) 

(20,491) 
595,387 

(513,771) 

61,582 

39,285 

35,839 

75,124 



HILLSDALE FREE WILL BAPTIST COLLEGE 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED} 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 

RECONCILIATION OF CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 
TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING 
ACTNITIES 

Change in Net Assets 

Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets to 
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 

Depreciation and Amortization 
Donated Securities 
Realized Gain on Investments 
Unrealized Loss on Investments 

Changes in Certain Assets and Liabilities 
Accounts Receivable 
Other Receivables 
Interest Receivable 
Prepaid Supplies 
Prepaid Expenses 
Accounts Payable 
Interest Payable 
Student Deposits 
Accrued Liabilities 

Total Adjustments 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING 
ACTIVITIES 

$ (509,489) 

328,196 
(25,803} 
(3,779) 
2,490 

50,465 
374,594 

(2,513) 
(26,159) 

6,389 
(12,764) 

1 
(8,353) 
(3,289) 

679,475 

$ 169,986 

See The Accompanying Notes To The Financial Statements. 
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HILLSDALE FREE WILL BAPTIST COLLEGE 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES 

Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College (the "Institution") is a non-profit organization which 
operates a Christian College in Moore, Oklahoma. 

A) Method of Accounting 

The Institution's accounts are maintained on the accrual basis of accounting. 
Grants and other contributions are reported as temporarily restricted support if 
they are received with stipulations that limit the use of the funding. \Nhen the 
restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose 
restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to 
unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assets 
released from restrictions. Expenses are recorded when incurred. 

The Organization follows the requirements of the Financial Accounting Standards 
Board (FASB) Statement of Financial Accounting Standards Nos. 116 ana 117, 
"Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions Made" (SFAS 116) and 
"Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Organizations" (SFAS 117). Under SFAS 
116, the Institution is required to distinguish between contributions received that 
increase permanently restricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and 
unrestricted net assets. SFAS 117 establishes standards for the financial 
statements of Not-for-Profit organizations and requires a statement of financial 
position, a statement of activities and a statement of cash flows. 

B) Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash is defined as cash on hand, amounts 
held at financial institutions, and short-term highly liquid investments that are 
readily convertible to known amounts of cash. Investments with an original 
maturity of three months or less are considered short-term for these purposes. 

C) Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 

The Institution carries its accounts receivable at cost less an allowance for 
doubtful accounts. On a periodic basis, the Institution evaluates its accounts 
receivable and establishes the amount of its allowance for doubtful accounts 
based on a history of past write--0ffs and collections and current credit conditions. 
The allowance for doubtful accounts amounts to $0. 
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HILLSDALE FREE WILL BAPTIST COLLEGE 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 

NOTE 1 • NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES /CONTINUED) 

D) Fixed Assets 

Fixed assets are recorded at cost when purchased and at fair value when 
contributed. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as 
incurred, whereas renewals and betterments that extend the lives of furniture and 
equipment are capitalized. Depreciation is computed using accelerated methods 
over varying useful lives. Depreciation expense is $320,567. 

E) Deferred Loan Costs 

During the year ended June 30, 2006, the Institution paid $37,100 in deferred loan 
costs for its note payable to Quail Creek Bank. The cost is amortized on the 
straight line basis over the life of the loan, two years. Amortization expense is 
$7,629. 

F) Deferred Tuition 

The Institution and its students enter into a contract for the Institution to provide its 
education program for a fee. The Institution earns tuition revenue as it provides 
education and training to the student measured in months attended. That portion 
of the Institution's programs which it has not yet provided to the students is 
recorded in the financial statements as deferred tuition. At June 30, 2006 the 
spring and summer semesters are complete and there is no deferred tuition. The 
$29,802 on the statement of financial pcsition under student deposits represents 
payments made by students for future terms. 

G) Contributed SeNices 

The Institution recognizes contributed services at their estimated fair value. 
Recognition occurs if the services have value to the Institution and require 
specialized skills, are provided by individuals pcssessing those skills, and would 
have been purchased if not provided by contributions. During the year ended 
June 30, 2006, no donated services meet the criteria for recognition. 
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HILLSDALE FREE WILL BAPTIST COLLEGE 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
(CONTINUED) 

H) Advertising Costs 

Advertising costs, except for costs associated with direct-response advertising, are 
charged to operations when incurred. The costs of direct-response advertising are 
capitalized and amortized over the period during which future benefits are 
expected to be received. The Institution has no direct response costs for the year 
ended June 30, 2006. Advertising expense is $34,644. 

I) Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions 
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities along with disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and 
reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual 
results could differ from those estimates. 

J) Income Taxes 

The Institution is exempt from federal and state income tax according to IRS 
Section 501(c){3). Therefore, no provision for income taxes has been made. 

NOTE 2 - INVESTMENTS 

The Institution adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 124, 
"Accounting for Certain Investments Held by Not-for-Profit Organizations'. The 
provisions of this standard require that investments in equity securities with readily 
determinable fair values and all investments in debt securities be measure at fair value 
in the balance sheet. 

The Institution had investments as of June 30, 2006 as follows: 

Cost Market 
Money Market $ 143,865 $ 143,865 
Mutual Funds 304,610 329,892 
Stocks and Bonds 25,803 27,182 

Total $ 474,278 $ 500,939 
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HILLSDALE FREE WILL BAPTIST COLLEGE 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 

NOTE 2 - INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 

The summary of income on investments consists of the following for the year ended 
June 30, 2006: 

Unrestricted 
Interest and Dividends $ 28,829 
Net Realized Gain 3,779 
Net Unrealized Loss (2,490) 
Investment Expenses (1,027) 

Net Investment Gain $ 29,091 

NOTE 3 • NOTES PAYABLE 

Note payable of $25,000 to Arvest Bank with an interest 
rate of 5.5%, payable in 24 installments of $2,215 
beginning February 3, 2005. This note is secured by 
computer equipment. $ 15,078 

Note payable of $70,895 to Arvest Bank with an interest 
rate of 6.75%, payable in 36 installments of $2,184 
beginning August 27, 2005. This note is secured by the 
assets of the Institution. 

Note payable of $4,537 to Saline Organization with an 
interest rate of 5%. This note is due on demand and is 
not collateralized. 

Note payable of $3,407,914 to First American Bank with 
an interest rate of 6.46%, payable in 53 installments of 
$23,315 and one final payment of $3,120,205 beginning 
July 6, 2006. This note is secured by the building. 

Subtotal Forward 
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4,537 

3,407,914 

3,480,337 
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HILLSDALE FREE WILL BAPTIST COLLEGE 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 

NOTE 3 - NOTES PAYABLE (CONTINUED} 

Subtotal Forwarded 

Note payable of $8,087 to Daimler Chrysler Finance with 
an interest rate of 6.9%, payable in 60 installments of 
$160 beginning January 6, 2006. This note is secured 
by a 2005 Dodge Grand Caravan. 

Note payable of $15,978 to Quail Creek Bank with an 
interest rate of 4.9%, payable in 36 installments of $479 
beginning October 25, 2004. This note is secured by a 
2002 Mazda. 

Note payable of $23,039 to Quail Creek Bank with an 
interest rate of 6. 75%, payable in 60 installments of 
$453 beginning May 10, 2005. This note is secured by 
a 1997 Blue Bus. 

Total Debt 

Less: Current Portion 

Total Long-T errn Debt 

Future maturities of long-term debt are as follows: 

2008 $ 98,111 
2009 81,166 
2010 80,667 
2011 3,137,498 

$ 3,397,442 
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6,950 

18,292 
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HILLSDALE FREE WILL BAPTIST COLLEGE 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 

NOTE 4 • CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS 

The Institution is a lessee of a library administrative software package and a 
printer/copier under capital leases. The assets and liabilities under the capital leases 
are recorded at the lower of the present value of the minimum lease payments or the fair 
value of the assets. The assets are amortized over the estimated productive life. 
Amortization of the assets under the capital leases are included in depreciation expense 
for the year ended June 30, 2006. 

The following is a summary of property held under capital lease: 

Equipment $ 123,359 
Accumulated Depreciation (54,574) 

$ 68,785 

Minimum future lease payments under these capital leases are as follows: 

For the year ending June 30, 2007 $ 12,000 
Less: Amount Representing Interest (504) 

Present Value of Minimum Lease Payments $ 11,496 

The interest rate on the capital lease is 8% and is imputed based on the lower of the 
Institution's incremental borrowing rate at the inception of the lease or the lessor's 
implicit rate of return. 

NOTE 5 • LINES OF CREDIT 

The Institution has an open line of revolving credit to be used for operating activities. 
The line is for $475,000 with $452,505 due at June 30, 2006. The line has a variable 
interest rate based on the 'Wall Street Journal' prime rate which is 5% as of June 30, 
2006. 
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HILLSDALE FREE WILL BAPTIST COLLEGE 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 

NOTE 6 • TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS 

Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the following purposes or periods: 

Scholarship Funds $ 17,247 

Total Temporarily Restricted Net Assets $ 17,247 

Temporarily restricted net assets of $89,100 were released from restriction for 
scholarships awarded during the year. 

NOTE 7 • PERMANENTLY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS 

The permanently restricted net assets held by the Institution consist of an endowment 
fund and scholarship funds in the following amounts: 

Endowment Funds $ 275,617 
Scholarship Funds 284,612 

Total Permanently Restricted =$====5=60=,2=29= 

NOTE 8 • PRIVATE GIFTS 

Continued support for the Institution is received from the Free VI/ill Baptists. This 
support comes through organizational donations as well as individual and church 
charitable contributions. The following donations were made for support of operations to 
the Institution: 

Free VI/ill Baptist State Cooperative Program 
Oklahoma's Have a Heart Program 
Various Individual and Church Charitable Donations 

Total 

NOTE 9 • TAX SHELTERED ANNUITY PROGRAM 

$ 247,759 
91,219 

815,338 

$ 1,154,316 

The Institution offers a tax sheltered annuity program to its permanent employees under 
Internal Revenue Code Section 403{b). Employees can make elective contributions and 
the Institution matches up to 5% of the employee's salary. The expense for the year 
ended June 30, 2006 is $38,908. 
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HILLSDALE FREE WILL BAPTIST COLLEGE 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 

NOTE 10 • RELATED PABJY TRANSACTIONS 

The Institution participates in Student Financial Aid (SFA) under the Title IV programs 
administered by the U.S. Department of Education pursuant to the Higher Education Act 
of 1965, as amended (HEA). The Institution must comply with the regulations 
promulgated under the HEA. Those regulations require that all related party 
transactions be disclosed, regardless of their materiality to the financial statements. The 
related party transactions for the year ended June 30, 2006 are as follows: 

Note Payable - The Institution has a note payable to the Saline Association, an affiliated 
organization. The balance at June 30, 2006 is $4,537. See note 3 for details about the 
note. 

NOTE 11 - ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY 

During the year ended June 30, 2006, the Institution received a portion of its revenue 
from Title IV sources. Continuing participation in Title IV programs requires compliance 
with numerous federal regulations. Future non-compliance with these regulations, or a 
change in the laws governing these programs, could impact the operations of the 
Institution. 

NOTE 12 • COMPOSITE SCORE 

In order to participate in the SFA Program, an institution must demonstrate that ii is 
financially responsible. One of the general standards for not-for-profit schools is the 
composite score standard in 34 CFR 668.172. The composite score combines different 
measures of fundamental elements of financial health to yield a single measure of a 
school's overall financial health. · 

The Institution's composite score is calculated as follows: 

Primary Reserve Ratio 

Equity Ratio 

Net Income Ratio 

Sum of All Ratios 

Composite Score 

0.172 

1.014 

(0.200) 
0.986 

1.0 

As the composite score is between 1.0 and 1.5 for the year ended June 30, 2006, the 
Institution is considered financially responsible under the zone alternative. 
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 16 ic; ,ic.rn, 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS m 16101 9,c_996c 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED mlnnlte.,c1' 

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Board of Trustees 
Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College 

We have audited the financial statements of Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College as of and 
for the year ended June 30, 2006 and have issued our report thereon dated February 7, 
2007. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial 

• audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General 
of the United States. 

Internal Control Over Flnancial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit we considered Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College's 
internal control over financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for 
the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements and not to provide an 
opinion on the internal control over financial reporting. Our consideration of internal 
control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in internal 
control over financial reporting that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness 
is a reportable condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal 
control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements 
caused by error or fraud in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial 
statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by 
employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no 
matters invoMng internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we 
consider to be material weaknesses. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Hillsdale Free Will Baptist 
College's financial statements are free of material misstatement we performed tests of 
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and accordingly, we 
do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of 
noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
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This report is intended solely for the information and use of the audit committee, 
management and the U.S. Department of Education, and is not intended to be and 
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

February 7, 2007 
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS w,d""''"•'m 
APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL 

OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH 0MB CIRCULAR A-133 

To the Board of Directors 
Hillsdale Free I/Viii Baptist College 

Compliance 

We have audited the compliance of Hillsdale Free I/Viii Baptist College with the types of 
, compliance requirements described in the U,S, Office of Management and Budget (0MB) 
Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal 
programs for the year ended June 30, 2006, Hillsdale Free I/Viii Baptist College's major 
federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the 
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major 
federal programs is the responsibility of Hillsdale Free I/Viii Baptist College's 
management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on Hillsdale Free I/Viii Baptist 
College's compliance based on our audit 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States; and 0MB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non­
Profit Organizations, Those standards and 0MB Circular A-133 require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the 
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material 
effect on a major federal program occurred, An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence about Hillsdale Free I/Viii Baptist College's compliance with those requirements 
and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances, 
We believe that our audit provides a re~sonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not 
provide a legal determination on Hillsdale Free I/Viii Baptist College's compliance with 
those requirements. 

In our opinion, Hillsdale Free I/Viii Baptist College complied, in all material respects, with 
the requirements referred to above that are applicable to each of its major feder~I 
programs for the year ended June 30, 2006. 
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Internal Control Over Compliance 

The management of Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College is responsible for establishing 
and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with requirements of laws, 
regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and 
performing our audit we considered Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College's internal control 
over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major 
federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of 
expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on the internal control over 
compliance in accordance with 0MB Circular A-133. 

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose 
all matters in the internal control that might be a material weakness. A material 
weakness is a reportable condition in which the design or operation of one or rrcre of the 
internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that 
noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants 
caused by error or fraud that would be material in relation to a major federal program 
being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the 
normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the 
internal control over compliance and its operation that we consider to be material 
weaknesses. 

This report is intended for the information of the audit committee, management, ~nd 
federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should 
not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

We have audited the financial statements of the of Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College as 
of and for the year ended June 30, 2006, and have issued our report thereon dated 
February 7, 2007. Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on 
Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College's financial statements. The accompanying Schedule 
of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analy,is as 
required by 0MB Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the financial statements. 
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of 
the financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in 
relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. · 

February 7, 2007 
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HILLSDALE FREE WILL BAPTIST COLLEGE 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 

CFDA Amount 
Major Program Number Expended 

1 I 
I' I 
I' 

Student Financial Assistance Programs I 
' Federal Pell Grant Program 84.063 $ 270,251 t Federal Perkins Loan Program 84.038 13,870 

r Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity r1 
Grant Program 84.007 8,260 I Federal Work-Study Program 84.033 52,617 

Federal Family Education Loan Program 84.032 642,074 f ,,,, 
1:,, 

Total Federal Awards $ 987,072 I ,, 
( 
ti, 

I 
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HILLSDALE FREE WILL BAPTIST COLLEGE 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 

I. Summary of Auditors' Results 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditors' report issued: !.!ogu~lifi~ 

Internal control over financial reporting: 

Material weaknesses identified? yes X no -
Reportable conditions identified not 

considered to be material weaknesses? yes X none reported -
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? yes X no 

Federal Awards 

Internal Control over major programs: 

Material weakness identified? yes X no -
Reportable conditions identified not 

considered to be material weaknesses? yes X none reported -
Type of auditors' report issued on compliance 

for major programs: !.!ogualifi~d 

Any Audit findings disclosed that are required to be 
reported in accordance with A-133, Section 510(a)? X yes no -

Identification of major programs: 

84,063 Federal Pell Grant Program 

84,032 Federal Family Education Loan Program 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish 
between Type A and Type B programs: $mQQQ_ 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? yes X no -
II. Financial Statement Findings 

No matters were reported, 
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HILLSDALE FREE WILL BAPTIST COLLEGE 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 

Ill. Federal Award Findings and Questionable Costs 

FINDING 06-1 - LOAN INSTALLMENTS EXCEEDING MORE THAN HALF THE LOAN 
AMOUNT 

1. Of the forty students in our sample, two students received loan installments 
of more than half the loan amount. 

2. A lender must disburse any Stafford or PLUS loan in accordance with the 
disbursement schedule provided by the school. No installments may 
exceed one-half of the loan. (34 CFR 682.204) 

3. The result is the Institution disbursed loan proceeds in excess of what 
should have been disbursed for the payment period. 

Students Pell FPL FSEOG FWS FFELP Total 

Universe 
Sample 
Findings 

177 
40 
2 

$ 270,251 $ 13,870 $ 
67,482 1,948 

0 0 

8,260$ 
2,200 

0 

52,617 $ 642,074 $ 
13,259 140,668 

0 8,529 

4. This condition was caused by management oversight. 

987,072 
225,557 

8,529 

5. We recommend the Institution increase controls over loan disbursements. 

Summary schedules A, B and C have not been submitted as they do not apply. 
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HILLSDALE FREE WILL BAPTIST COLLEGE 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 

Ill. Federal Award Findings and Questionable Costs 

FINDING 06-2 - OVERAWARDED PELL 

1. Of the forty files tested, one student received a Pell award in excess of his 
allowed amount The student was eligible for $488, but received $650. 

2. The amount of a student's Federal Pell Grant for an academic year is based 
upon the payment and disbursement schedules published by the Secretary 
for each award year. (34 CFR 690.62) 

3. The result is that a student received ineligible Pell monies. 

Students Pell FPL FSEOG FWS FFELP Total 
Universe 177 $ 270,251 $ 13,870 $ 8,260$ 52,617 $ 642,074 $ 987,072 
Sample 40 67,482 1,948 2,200 13,259 140,668 225,557 
Finding 162 0 0 0 0 162 

4. The condition was caused by management oversight. 

5. We recommend the Institution return $162 to the Federal Pell Grant 
Program. 

Summary schedules B and C have not been submitted as they do not apply. 
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HILLSDALE FREE WILL BAPTIST COLLEGE 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 

Ill. Federal Award Findings and Questionable Costs 

FINDING 06-3 - UNDERAWARDED PELLS 

1. Of the forty files tested, two students did not receive the full amount of their 
allowed Pell grants. The students were eligible for $1,125, but received 
$200. 

2. The amount of a student's Federal Pell Grant for an academic year is based 
upon the payment and disbursement schedules published by the Secretary 
for each award year. (34 CFR 690.62) 

3. The result is that students did not receive $925 of eligible Pell monies. 

Students Pell FPL FSEOG FWS FFELP Total 

Universe 177 $ 270,251 $ 13,870$ 8,260$ 52,617 $ 642,074 S 987,072 
Sample 40 67,482 1,948 2,200 13,259 140,668 225,557 
Findings 2 (925) 0 0 0 0 (925) 

4. The condition was caused by management oversight. 

5. We recommend the Institution credit the students' accounts for the 
underawards. 

Summary schedules B and C have not been submitted as they do not apply. 

83 

I, 

'' 
i I 



HILLSDALE FREE WILL BAPTIST COLLEGE 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 

Ill. Federal Award Findings and Questionable Costs 

FINDING 06-4 - OVERAWARDED FEDERAL FAMILY EDUCATION SUBSIDIZED LOAN 

1. Of the forty files tested, one student received a subsidized loan in excess of 
his allowed amount The student was eligible for $1,750, but received 
$2,668. 

2. A second year student can receive up to $3,500 in Subsidized Loans in one 
academic year. (34 CFR 682.204) 

3. The result is that a student received ineligible loan proceeds. 

Students Pell FPL FSEOG FWS FFELP Total 
Universe 177 $ 270,251 $ 13,870 $ 8,260$ 52,617 $ 642,074 $ 987,072 
Sample 40 67,482 1,948 2,200 13,259 140,668 225,557 
Finding 1 0 0 0 0 918 918 

4. The condition was the result of improper packaging of a half-time student. 

5. We recommend the Institution reclassify $918 from a subsidized to an 
unsubsidized loan. 

Summary schedules B and C have not been submitted as they do not apply. 
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HILLSDALE FREE WILL BAPTIST COLLEGE 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 

Ill. Federal Award Findings and Questionable Costs 

FINDING 06-5 - FEDERAL FAMILY EDUCATION LOAN RECEIVED IN EXCESS OF 
SUBSIDIZED NEED 

1. Of the forty files tested, two students received subsidized loans in excess of need. 

2. A student may not receive a Federal Family Education Subsidized Loan amount 
that exceeds the student's estimated cost of attendance for the period of 
enrollment less the borrower's expected family contribution and estimated financial 
assistance for that period. (34 CFR 685.203) 

3. The result of this condition is that students received ineligible loan proceeds. 

Universe 
Sample 
Findings 

Students Pell 

177 $ 270,251 $ 
40 67,482 
2 0 

FPL FSEOG PNS FFELP 

13,870 $ 8,260 $ 52,617 $ 642,074 $ 
1,948 2,200 13,259 140,668 

0 0 0 5,091 

4. This condition was caused by management oversight. 

5. We recommend the Institution reclassify the loans from subsidized to 
unsubsidized. 

Summary schedules B and C have not been submitted, as they do not apply. 
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HILLSDALE FREE WILL BAPTIST COLLEGE 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 

Ill. Federal Award Findings and Questionable Costs 

FINDING 06-6 - UNTIMELY PAID CREDIT BALANCES 

1. Of the forty files tested, t.velve credit balances were not paid in a timely 
fashion. 

2. An lnsfitution must pay credit balances to students within fourteen days of 
the creation of such credit, or where a valid waiver has been obtained, 
within fourteen days after the course completion. (34 CFR 668.164) 

3. As a result the Institution was using ineligible funds. 

Students Pell FPL FSEOG FWS FFELP Total 
Universe 177 $ 270,251 $ 13,870$ 8,260$ 52,617 $ 642,074 $ 987,072 
Sample 40 67,482 1,948 2,200 13,259 140,668 225,557 
Findings 12 5,447 0 0 0 14,396 19,843 

4. This condition was caused by management oversight 

5. We recommend the Institution increase controls over payment of credit 
balances and set aside reserves to pay these timely. 

Summary schedules A and C have not been submitted as they do not apply. 
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HILLSDALE FREE WILL BAPTIST COLLEGE 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 

Ill. Federal Award Findings and Questionable Costs 

FINDING 06-7 - MISSING PROOFS OF LOAN EXIT COUNSELING 

1. Of the forty students in our sample, two student files were missing proof of 
loan exit counseling. 

2. Each student is required to have exit counseling when they withdraw, 
graduate, or drop. (34 CFR 685.304) 

3. The result of not conducting exit counseling is students may be uninformed 
about the responsibilities and consequences of borrowing funds. 

Universe 
Sample 
Findings 

Students 

177 
40 
2 

Pell FPL FSEOG 

$ 270,251 $ 13,870 $ 8,260 $ 
67,482 1,948 2,200 

0 0 0 

FWS FFELP 

52,617 $ 642,074 $ 
13,259 140,668 

0 4,365 

4. This condition was caused by management oversight. 

5. We recommend the Institution increase controls over retaining 
documentation on exit interviews. 

Summary schedules A and C have not been submitted as they do not apply. 
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HILLSDALE FREE WILL BAPTIST COLLEGE 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 

FINDINGS PERTAINING TO PREVIOUS AUDITS 

The June 30, 2006 audit was done concurrently with the years ended June 30, 2005 and 
2004. 

OTHER AUDITORS' COMMENTS 

None. 
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HILLSDALE FREE WILL BAPTIST COLLEGE 
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006 

NOTE 1 • BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 

The records for the federal programs are on the cash basis of accounting. 

NOTE 2 • OVERSIGHT AGENCY 

The Institution's federal oversight agency is the U.S. Department of Education. 
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HILLSDALE FREE WILL BAPTIST COLLEGE - PROPOSED BUDGET 

REVENUES 07--08BUDGET Proposed 08--09 
ITEM 

Student Tuition & Fees 1,880,432 $2,068,475 
Gifts-Unrestricted 570,000 $627,000 
Gifts • Restricted Expend 0 $0 
Gifts-Restricted 0 so 
Gifts • Have A Heart 100,000 $110,000 
Gifts - Oklahoma Coop 198,000 $207,900 
Adult Studies Revenues 92,900 $102,190 
Sales&Service 66,000 $72,600 
Organized Activities 1,500 11,650 
Other 15,250 116,775 
Graduate Program 72,120 $79,332 
Residence Halls 237,828 $261,611 
Food Services 211,560 $232,716 
Student Union 0 so 
Student Aid 42,000 $46,200 

TOTAL REVENUES J,487,590 $3,826,449 

EXPENSES 
Salaries & Benefits 1,547,328 $1,692,161 
Depreciation 324,000 $356,400 
Professional Development 6,000 $6,600 
Ind. Study/Private Lessons 1,500 11,650 
Evaluation/Assessment 1,250 11,375 
MO Distance Leaming 100 $110 
Travel 63,847 170,232 
Equipment 78,891 $86,780 
Postage 11,025 $12,128 
Supplies 48,880 $53,768 
Board ofTrustees 3,600 ll,960 
Distance Leaming Textbooks l00 SIIO 
Publications 11,800 $12,980 
Course Development 500 $550 
Music Department 250 $275 
Repairs 15,500 $17,050 
Commencement 1,500 $1,650 
Utilities 177,000 $194,700 
Telephone 54,588 $60,047 
Restricted Projects 6,240 $6,864 
Promotional Groups 18,000 $19,800 
Advertising/Promotion/Names 33,290 $36,619 
LRC Book Purchases l0,000 lll,000 
Periodicals 14,300 $15,730 
Insurance 62,000 $68,200 
lntramurals/ Officials 11,960 $13,156 
Food Purchases 52,000 $57,200 
Student Aid 425,900 !468,490 
Accreditation/Atty Fees 12,000 $1),200 
Accounting/u:gal Fees 18,000 $19,800 
Bad Debt Expense 3,000 $3,300 
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Page 1 
HILLSDALE FREE WILL BAPTIST COLLEGE - PROPOSED BUDGET 

EXPENSES 
ITEM 07-0SBUDGET Proposed 08-09 

Dues 4,000 $4,400 
Interest Expense 165,000 $191,500 
Miscellaneous 53,190 $58,509 
Sales and Services Expense 40,500 $44,550 
Consulting Fees 88,500 $97,350 
Adult St Books & Materials 600 $660 
Leases/Recurring 11,951 Sll,146 
Software 1,000 U,100 
Spiritual Life Activities 8,500 $9,350 

TOTAL EXPENSES SJ,487,590 $3,826,449 
,i 

TRANSFERS 
Transfers - Plant Fund, Investment so 
Transfers• Restricted $0 

TOTAL TRANSFERS so 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES/TRANS $3,487,590 Sl,826,449 

SURPLUS (DERCIT) $0 so 
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HILLSDALE FREE WILL BAITIST COLLEGE· PROPOSED BUDGET 

REVENUES 
ITEM 07--0SBUDGET Proposed 08-09 

STUDENT TUITION & FEES 
Matriculation 1,400 $1,540 
Comprehensive Fee 122,590 $134,849 
Tuition 1,590,000 SI,749,000 
Student Insurance 20 S22 
Late Registration Fee 100 SIIO 
Computer Lab Fee 5,400 Sl,940 
Science Lab Fee 7,000 S7,700 
P.E. L,b Fee 43,160 S47,586 
Practice Fees 1,400 $1,540 
Graduation Fee 1,450 Sl,695 
Deferred Payment Plan 1,000 Sl,100 
Schedule Cbange Fee 12 $13 
Transcript 1,000 Sl,100 
Oklahoma Assessment Fee 104,800 Slll,280 

TOTAL STUDENT T & F 1,880,432 Sl,068,475 

GIFTS 
Unrestricted General 570,000 $617,000 
Restricted Gifts Expended 0 so 
Oklahoma Coop 198,000 S207,900 
Endowment 0 $0 
Have A Heart 100,000 $110,000 
Restricted 

TOTAL GIFTS 868,000 $944,900 

ADULT STUDIES 
AS Mat Fee IOO SII0 
AS CDC Fees 0 so 
AS Tu.ition 86,800 S95,480 
AS Books&Fees 6,000 S6,600 

TOTAL ADULT STUDIES 92,900 SI02,190 

SALES & SERVICES 
Harvester Yearbook Ads 2,000 S2,200 
External Studies 9,000 S9,900 
Ext Studies Book Sales 0 so 
MO External Studies so 
Bookstore Sales 55,000 $60,500 

TOTAL SALES/SERVICES 66,000 S72,600 

ORGANIZED ACTIYITTES 
Campus Sports Even~ so 
Retreat and Campus Events 1,500 Sl,650 

TOTAL ORGANIZED ACTIYITIES 1,500 SI,650 
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HILLSDALE FREE WILL BAIBST COLLEGE- PROPOSED BUDGET 

REVENUES 
ITEM 07-0SBUDGET Proposed 08-09 

OTHER 
Other Interest Income 12,000 SIJ,200 
Library Fines 250 $275 
Miscellaneous 3,000 13,300 

TOTAL OTHER 15,250 116,775 

GRADUATE PROGRAM 
Application Fee 200 1220 
Comprehensive Fee 1,920 $2,112 

I, Tuition 70,000 177,000 

' 
TOTAL GRADUATE PROGRAM 72,120 $79,332 

RESIDENT HALLS 
Room 171,828 1189,011 
Appliances 6,000 16,600 
Rental facilities 60,000 166,000 

TOTAL RESIDENT HALLS 237,828 $261,611 

FOOD SERVICES 
Board 211,560 1232,716 
Dining Hall Sales 0 10 

TOTAL FOOD SERVICES 211,560 1232,716 

STUDENT UNION 
Vending Machine Sales 10 
Student Life Center 10 

TOTAL STUDENT UNION 10 

STUDENT AID 
Fees for Financial Aid Programs 10 
CWSP Reimbursements 42,000 $46,200 

TOTAL STUDENT AID 42,000 $46,200 

TOTAL 
REVENUES 3,487,590 13,826,449 
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HILLSDALE FREE WILL BAPTIST COLLEGE· PROPOSED BUDGET 

EXPENSES 
ITEM 07-0SBUDGET Prop-0sed 08-09 

ADMINISTRATION 
Salaries 200,500 $220,550 
Travel 14,367 $15,804 
Equipment 21,231 $23,354 
Postage 2,000 $2,200 
Supplies 2,500 $2,750 
Board of Trustees 3,600 $3,960 
Miscellaneous 1,800 $1,980 

TOTAL ADMINISTRATION 245,998 $270,598 

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 
Salaries 51,120 $56,232 
Leases/Recurring 11,951 $13,146 
Professional Dev 500 $550 
Equipment 7,150 $7,865 
Supplies 2,700 $2,970 
Internet Service 12,588 $13,847 
Repairs 5,500 $6,050 
Software 1,000 $1,IO0 
Miscellaneous 0 $0 

TOTAL MIS 92,509 II0!,760 

INSTRUCTION 
Salaries 368,369 $405,206 
Travel 1,500 $1,650 
Equipment 400 $440 
Postage 75 $83 
Supplies 1,500 $1,650 
Music Department 250 $275 
Publications 1,000 $1,IO0 
Professional Development 5,000 $5,500 
Ind. Study/Private Lessons 1,500 $1,650 
Evaluation/Assessment 1,250 $1,375 

TOTAL INSTRUCTION 380,844 $418,928 

GRADUATE 
Salaries 58,666 $64,533 
Travel 9,500 $10,450 
Equipment 0 $0 
Postage 200 $220 
Supplies 200 $220 
Pub Ii ca tons 1,400 $1,540 
Miscellaneous 200 $220 

TOTAL GRADUATE 70,166 $77,183 
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Page 6 

IIILI.SDALE FREE WILL BAPTIST COLLEGE. PROPOSED BUDGET 

EXPENSES 

ITEM 07--0SBUDGET Proposed08-09 DISTANCE LEARNING 
Salaries 

l.600 $3,%0 TextbookPun:hases 100 $110 Equipment 
0 so Postage 

400 $440 Supplies 
200 $220 

H Course Development 500 1550 
:1, 

Publications 500 $550 
I, 

Christian Ed/Supervision 0 so ,: 
I, 

Missouri Bible Institute 100 $110 

TOT AL Distance Leaming 5,400 $5,940 

' ,, ADMISSIONS 

I Salaries 60,425 166,468 1, Travel 5,350 15,885 Equipment 
0 so Postage 

6.000 $6,600 Supplies 500 1550 Advertising and Promotion 24,165 $26,582 Solicikd Names 3,125 $3,438 Consulting fr.cs 83,500 $91,850 Miscellaneous 0 $0 

TOTAL ADMISSIONS 183,065 l201J72 

STUDEl'ff SERVICES 
Salaries 36,400 $40,040 Travel 500 1550 Equipment 250 $275 Postage 50 $55 Suppli,s 500 1550 Spiritual life Activities 8.500 $9J50 Commencement 1.500 $1,650 

i 
Miscellaneous 250 $275 

i 
TOTAL STUDENT SERVICES 47,950 152,745 

RECORDS 
Salaries 34,000 $37,400 Travel 750 $825 Equipment 500 1550 Postage 1,000 11,100 Supplies 500 1550 Miscellaneous 2,000 $2.200 

TOTAL RECRUITMENT 38,750 $42,625 
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HILLSDALE FREE WILL BAPTIST COLLEGE • PROPOSED BUDGET 
EXPENSES 

ITEM 07-08BUDGET Proposed 08-09 INSTITUTIONAL 
Benefits 

280,000 $308,000 Supplies 7,0()() $7,700 Miscellaneous 
28,000 $30,800 Telephone 42,0()() $46,200 Utilities 90,0()() $99,000 Restricted Projects 

0 $0 Accreditation/Attorney Fees 12,0()() $13,200 Accountingilegal Fees 18,0()() 119,800 Bad Debt Expense 3,000 $3,300 Dues 4,0()() $4,400 Interes1Expense 265,0()() $291,500 

TOTAL INSTITUTIONAL 749,0()() 1823,900 

1: DEVELOPMENT 
Salaries 

116,400 $128,040 Travel 18,0()() 119,800 !: Equipment 
600 $660 Postage 
500 $550 Supplies 
600 $660 Promotional Groups 18,0()() $19,800 Publications (Insight, brochures) 8,900 $9,790 Advertising & Promotion 6,0()() $6,600 Miscellaneous 

1.500 11,650 

TOTAL DEVELOPMENT 170,500 $187,550 

SALES & SERVICES 
Harvester 10,500 $11,550 Bookstore Purchases 30,0()() $33,0()() 

TOTAL SALES & SERVICES 40,500 144,550 

LEARNING RESOURCE CENTER 
Salaries 54,850 $60,335 Travel 2,0()() $2,200 Equipment 15,0()() $16,500 Postage 

300 $330 Supplies 2,900 $3,190 Book Purchases 10,0()() $11,0()() Periodical Purchases 14,300 $15,730 RestrictedProJects 0 $0 Miscellaneous 1,500 $1,650 

TOTALLRC 100,850 $110,935 
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HILISDALE FREE WILL BAPTIST COLLEGE • PROPOSED BUDGET ::i 

/1,i 
EXPENSES 

ITEM 07~8BUDGET ProposedllS--09 
MAINTENANCE '! ,,1 Salaries 50,000 $55,000 

l!·j Travel 3,600 $3,960 1, 
Equipment 20,000 $22,000 

,., 
Supplies 18,500 $20,350 

::, 
Insurance 62,000 $68,200 ,, 
Repairs 7,000 $7,700 ii',, Miscellaneous 4,800 $5,280 1,: 

,I 
TOTAL MAINTENANCE 165,900 S182,490 ,I 

ATHLETICS :i Salaries 143,261 $147,687 
Baseball 7,280 $8,008 
Men's Basketball 9J60 SJ0.296 
Men'sSocccr 7,280 $8,008 
Softball 6,240 $6,864 i: 
Volleyball 5,720 $6,292 
Women's Basketball 6,240 $6,864 
Women's Soccer 6,240 $6,864 

TOTAL ATHLETICS 191,621 $200,883 

RESIDENCE HALLS 
Equipment 3,500 $3,850 
Supplies 2,000 $2,200 
Utilities 87,000 $95,700 
Repain 2,500 S2.750 
Miscellaneous 2,400 $2,640 

TOTAL RESIDENCE HALLS 97,400 $107,140 

FOOD SERVICES 
Salaries 48,837 $53,721 
Equipment 500 1550 
Supplies 1,500 $1,650 
Food 52,000 $57,200 
Repairs 500 1550 
Miscellaneous J,500 $1,650 

TOTAL FOOD SERVICES 104,837 S115J2I 
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HILLSDALE FREE \\1LL BAPTIST COLLEGE· PROPOSED BUDGET 

ITEM 07-08BUDGET Proposed 08-09 
ADULT STUDIES 

Salaries 40,900 $44,990 
Travel 1,000 Sl,100 
Equipment 400 $440 
Postage 500 $550 
Supplies 500 SllO 
Consulting Expense 5,000 $5,500 
Books&Materials 600 $660 
Professional Development 500 SllO 
Miscellaneous 3,000 13,300 

TOTAL ADULT STUDIES 52,400 $57,640 

STUDENT AID 
Continuing 132,000 1145,200 
Academic Scholarships $0 
Merit Scholarships 201,900 $222,090 
Student Salaries 42,000 146,200 
Workships 50,000 155,000 

TOTAL STUDENT AID 425,900 1468,490 

DEPRECIATION 324,000 $356,400 

T OT A L EXPENDITURES 3,487,590 $3,826,449 

TRANSFERS 
Trans to Plant Fund• Investment $0 
Restricted Projects $0 

TOTAL TRANSFERS 10 

T OT A .L EXPENDITURES & 

TRANSFERS 13,487,590 $3,826,449 
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THE FREE WILL BAPTIST MASTER'S MEN 
State of Oklahoma 

CONSTITUTION 
Section I. The executive committee shall consist of the elected officers of this 

organization and they shall serve as the program committee for each annual convention. 
Section 2. Ex-officio members of the executive committee shall be the presidents of the 

district associations of Master's Men, presidents of any local chapter where there is only 
one chapter in the district, and the State Executive Director of the State Association of Free 
Will Baptists. 

ARTICLE V - MEETINGS 
This organization shall meet annually at 7:30 p.m. on Monday night before the Oklahoma 

State Association of Free Will Baptists convenes. 
ARTICLE VI • AMENDMENTS 

This constitution may be amended by a two-thirds vote of any regular meeting. 
BY-LAWS 

VOTING RIGHTS 
Section I. Every member of each affiliated district association, or any local chapter 

where there is only one chapter in the district, is eligible to vote on all questions and matters 
that might come before the Free Will Baptist Master's Men, State of Oklahoma. 

COMMITTEES 
Section 2. The executive committee shall transact all routine business and shall act for 

the organization in the interim between meetings. 
Section 3. The executive committee shall meet at the call of the president. 
Section 4. A nominating committee, for the annual election of officers, shall be 

composed of the presidents of each district association, and the president of any local 
chapter where there is only one chapter in the district. 

Section 5. The president shall appoint all other committees, subject to the approval of 
the body. 

FINANCE 
Section 6. This organization shall be financed on the basis of offerings, dues and 

assessments. 
QUORUM 

Section 7. One-tenth of the members of this organization shall constitute a quorum at 
any regular meeting. 

AMENDMENTS 

Section 8. These by-laws may be amended at any regular meeting by a two-thirds vote 
of the members present. 

As adopted by the Free Will Baptist Master's Men, State of Oklahoma, annual session in 
Muskogee, Oklahoma, October 19, 1970. 

MINISTER'S CONFERENCE 
CONSTITUTION 

ARTICLE I 
The Minister's Conference shall be called_ the Oklahoma State Free Will Baptist 

Minister's Conference, and shall be composed of ordained Free Will Baptist Ministers who 
are regular members of some orthodox Free Will Baptist Church in the State of Oklahoma. 

ARTICLE II 
The purpose of this conference is for preaching, fellowship and encouragement. 

ARTICLE III 
This conference shall meet on Tuesday morning at the State Association. 

ARTICLE IV 
The program and speakers for this conference shall be planned and coordinated by the 

Executive Board of the State Association. 
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AMENDED AND RESTATED BYLAWS OF 
HILLSDALE FREE WILLBAPTISTCOLLEGE,INC. 

These Amended and Restated Bylaws were duly adopted by the Board of 
Trustees, in its regular meeting held on May 5, 1994, pursuant to Section VII of the 
original Bylaws, and amend in their entirety the original Bylaws which were heretofore 
adopted. 

ARTICLE! 
POWERS OF TRUSTEES 

Section 1. 
The Board of Trustees shall have the power to manage the property and business of the 

Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College, Inc. (referred to in this and the following articles as the 
"College") and shall have the power to carry out any other functions which are permitted by 
the Charter, or these Bylaws, except insofar as such powers may be limited by law. These 
powers shall include but shall not be limited to the following: 

(i) Appoint or remove the President and/or other officers of the 
College in accordance with these Bylaws; 

(ii) Approve degrees in courses upon recommendations of the 
faculty; 

(iii) Approve the awarding of honorary degrees upon recommen­
dation of any of the following: Faculty, President, or 
appropriate Board committee; 

(iv) Establish and review the educational programs of the College 
after review by the Board Committee on Academic Affairs, or by 
special committees of review set up by the President and 
Chairman of the Board in a financial emergency situation; 

(v) Establish annually the budget of the College, which 
shall be submitted to it upon recommendation of the Board 
Business Affairs Committee; 

(vi) Authorize the construction ofnew buildings and major 
renovations of existing buildings; 

(vii) Authorize the sale and purchase ofland, buildings or major 
equipment for the use of the College; 

(viii) Institute and promote the major fund-raising efforts of 
the College; 

(ix) Authorize any changes in tuition and fees within the 
College; 

(x) Authorize officers or agents of the College to accept gifts for the 
College; 

(xi) Authorize the incurring of debts by the College and securing 
thereof by mortgage and pledge of the real, personal, tangible 
and/or intangible property: 

(xii) Any other duties or respor ! :ibilities which obtain to it under the 
Charter of Hillsdale Free VI ill Baptist College, Inc. 
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Section 2. 
The Board of Trustees of the College shall not launch any expansion project, major 

expenditure of capital funds, creation of debt for capital needs, or any significant change in 
usual operations except upon prior authority given by the Oklahoma State Association of 
Free Will Baptists or the Executive Board thereof. 

ARTICLEII 
MEMBERSIIlP OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

Section 1. 
The Board ofTrustees of the College shall consist of seventeen (17) members. Ten (10) 

of the members shall be elected by the delegates to the annual convention ofThe Oklahoma 
State Association ofFree Will Baptists, each of which shall serve for a term offive (5) years 
and until his/her successor is duly elected and qualified. These members shall serve 
staggering terms such that two (2) members shall be elected at each annual convention ofThe 
Oklahoma State Association ofFree Will Baptists. The remaining seven (7) members shall 
be el~cted by the following State Associations ofFree Will Baptists and shall serve for such 
terms as may be established by their respective state associations, to wit: Arkansas, two (2) 
members; Missouri, three (3) members; and Texas, two (2) members. 

Section 2. 
Vacancies of the Board of Trustees shall occur through resignation, ceasing to be a 

resident of the state by which he/she is elected, death of a trustee, or as the result of his/her 
inability or failure to act. Should a vacancy on the Board of Trustees occur during the 
interval between the annual sessions of the State Association by which the trustee has been 
elected, the vacancy may be filled at the next annual session of such State Association, by the 
Executive Board of such State Association, or as may be otherwise prescribed or directed by 
such State Association. 

In the event any member misses two (2) consecutive meetings of the Board of Trustees 
without giving advance notification to the office of the President of the College, the member 
shall be considered as having resigned. 

Section 3. 
No person shall be eligible for election prior to attaining the age of twenty-one (21) 

years. 

Section 4. 
Any member of the Board of Trustees may be removed from office, for cause, by action 

of the State Association, or Executive Board thereof, which elected such member. 
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Section I. 

ARTICLEID 
OFFICERS OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES AND 

HILLSDALEFREEWILLBAPTISTCOLLEGE,INC. 

The officers of the Board of Trustees shall consist of the Chainnan of the Board of 
Trustees, Vice-Chainnan, Secretary, and Assistant Secretary, all of whom shall be elected 
annually by the Board of Trustees. For the purpose of executing legal documents in 
compliance with Oklahoma Law, the office ofChainnan of the Board of Trustees shall be 
synonymous with the office of President of the Corporation, Vice Chainnan with the office 
of Vice President of the Corporation, and Secretary with the office of Secretary of the 
Corporation, and Assistant Secretary with the office of Assistant Secretary of the 
Corporation. 

Section 2. 
All officers of the Board ofTrustees shall hold office as such officer for a period of one 

year, or until their successors are duly elected and qualified. 

Section 3. 
The President of the College shall be an ex officio member of the Board without power 

to vote and shall not be counted as a member of the Board, or any committee on which he/she 
may serve, for any purpose. The Vice President of Business Affairs of the College shall 
serve as Treasurer of the Corporation and as such shall be an ex officio member of the Board 
without power to vote and shall not be counted a member of the Board or any committee on 
which he may serve for any purpose. 

Section 4. 
The Board may appoint one or more vice chainnen, assistant secretaries, and such other 

officers as may be deemed necessary for the proper management of the affairs of Hillsdale 
Free Will Baptist College, Inc. 

Section 5. 
All officers ofHillsdale Free Will Baptist College, Inc. shall hold office at the discretion 

of the Board ofTrustees and shall be subject to removal by affinnative vote ofa majority of 
the entire membership of the Board of Trustees, without prejudice to any contract rights 
such officer may have against the College. 

ARTICLEIV 
POWERS AND DUTIES OF OFFICERS 

Section I. 
The Chainnan of the Board of Trustees shall preside at all meetings of the Board of 

Trustees, sign all deeds, contracts, bonds, mortgages, and other papers evidencing the official 
acts of the Board of Trustees where the signature of a presiding officer is required by these 
Bylaws or by custom or practice, and he/she shall call all special meetings of the Board of· 
Trustees, give notice of the time and place of all meetings of the Board ofTrustees as herein 

. provided, appoint all committees and generally exercise such authority as is 
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usually exercised by a chainnan or president of the Board of Trustees of a non-profit 
corporation. He/She shall also perfonn any other and further duties as may be assigned to 
the Chainnan by the Board of Trustees. 

Section 2. 
The Vice Chainnan of the Board of Trustees shall perfonn all the duties of the office of 

Chainnan of the Board ofTrustees in the absence of the Chainnan of the Board of Trustees, 
or as a result of the inability of the Chainnan of the Board of Trustees to act because of 
sickness, misfortune, casualty, or emergency absence. 

Section 3. 
The Secretary of the Board ofTrustees shall keep minutes of the meetings of the Board, 

issue, or cause to be issued, notices of meetings under the direction of the Chainnan, have 
charge of the seal of Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College, Inc. and affix attest the same to all 
instruments which may require that the corporate seal be affixed; and shall perfonn the 
duties usually perfonned by a secretary of the Board of Trustees of a non-profit 
corporation. He/She shall also perfonn any other duties which may be assigned to the 
Secretary by the Board of Trustees. 

Section 4. 
The Secretary of the Board of Trustees, with the approval of the Board of Trustees and 

the President of the College, may authorize an officer of the College and/or a person other 
than the Secretary of the Board of Trustees to affix the corporate seal to any diploma, 
transcript, or other instrument having to do with the administration of the affairs of the 
College, and to exercise the administration of the affairs of the College, and to exercise the 
same authority with regard to the affixing of the corporate seal to such instrument as may be 
exercised by the Secretary of the Board of Trustees. 

Section 5. 
The Assistant Secretary shall perfonn all the duties of the Secretary of the Board of 

Trustees in the absence of the Secretary, or in the event of the inability of the Secretary to 
attend a meeting of the Board ofTrustees, or as a result of the inability of the Secretary to act 
because of sickness, misfortune, casualty, or emergency. 

Section 6. 
The Treasurer shall be the Chief Financial Officer of the College and shall be, as 

Treasurer, an ex officio member of the Board ofTrustees without power to vote and shall not 
be counted as a member of the Board. He/She shall have the duty to keep, or cause to be 
kept, full and accurate accounts of all receipts and disbursements and to follow the directives 
of the Trustees, the President of the College and the Business Affairs Committee respecting 
funds, property, and accounts of the College. He/She shall be responsible for the 
preparation of any corporate financial reports as may be required by departments of federal 
or state government. The Treasurer shall, in the name of the College, give receipts for monies 
or property as shall be required, deposit funds in accordance with resolution and direction of 
the Business Affairs Committee or the Board of Trustees, and safeguard the money of the 
College. He/She shall not pay out any money except by direction of the Board of Trustees 
or under such regulations or with such approval as the Business Affairs 
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Committee may prescribe. He/She shall cooperate with any independent auditors or 
certified public accountants retained by the Board of Trustees for the purpose of conducting 
audits of the accounts of the College, and shall make reports at meetings of the Board of 
Trustees or the Business Affairs Committee with respect to the financial condition of the 
College at such time and in such form as the Board or the Committee may require. The 
Treasurer shall give a bond to the College to faithfully perform the duties of his/her office, 
and to account for all monies and other matters and things which may come into his/her 
hands and possession by virtue of said office, in such amount as the Business Affairs 
Committee shall direct. 

ARTICLEV 
POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE PRESIDENT OF THE COLLEGE 

Section 1. 
The affairs of the College shall be administered by the President of the College, who 

shall be elected by the Board of Trustees and hold office at the pleasure of the Board of 
Trustees. The Board of Trustees shall adopt a system of periodic evaluations for the 
purpose of evaluating the performance of the President and to, among other things, set the 
salary and compensation for the President for a term acceptable to the Board and the 
President. 

Section 2. 
The President of the College shall be the ChiefExecutive and Operational Officer of the 

College and the official adviser to, and executive agent of, the Board of Trustees and its 
Executive Committee. He/She shall, as educational and administrative head of the College, 
exercise a general superintendence over all the affairs of the institution, and bring such 
matters to the attention of the Board as are appropriate to keep the Board fully informed to 
meet its policy-making responsibilities. He/She shall have power, on behalf of the Trustees, 
to perform all acts and execute all documents to make effective the actions of the Board or its 
Executive Committee. Except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws, he/she shall be an ex 
officio member of all committees of the Board without power to vote. 

Section 3. 
The President of the College shall have the power and authority to appoint officers to 

assist him/her in the administration of the affairs of the College, including such officers as 
Vice Presidents, Deans, Directors, Treasurers, Registrars, and their assistants. The officers 
so appointed by the President of the College shall hold office for such periods of time as the 
President determines, and the tenure of office shall be subject to the will of the President and 
the contractual employment procedures of the Administrative and Staff Handbook then in 
force. 

Section 4. 
The members of the faculty of the College shall be recommended by the President of the 

College and elected by the Board ofTrustees annually, and the members of the faculty, when 
their election has been confirmed by the Board of Trustees, shall hold office subject to the 
rules of the existing contractual employment which have been approved by the Board of 
Trustees in the Faculty Handbook then in fort:e. Nominations of faculty members, however, 
may be made by the President of the College and confirmed by the Board of Trustees at any 
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regular or special meeting. 

Section 5. 
In the event the office of President of the College becomes vacant, a Presidential Search 

Committee of three trustees shall be elected at a meeting of the Board prior to which two 
weeks notice has been given concerning this needed action. The committee, at least two of 
whom shall have at least four (4) years of consecutive service, shall be elected by open 
nomination from the floor. If the Chainnan of the Board of Trustees is not one of the three 
trustees elected, he/she shall join the Presidential Search Committee as a voting member. 

The Search Committee shall notify, in writing, all members of the Board of Trustees of 
the dates and times of the on-campus visit of any prospective candidates. A resume of the 
candidate shall accompany the notification. Members of the Board of Trustees shall have 
opportunity to participate in the on-campus visit. Before the Search Committee presents a 
candidate for election, an infonnal meeting of the candidate and the Board of Trustees shall 
beheld. 

Section 1. 

ARTICLEVI 
MEETINGS 

All regular meetings of the Board of Trustees shall be held at the campus of the College 
in Moore, Oklahoma The Board of Trustees shall hold at least two meetings each year and 
such other special meetings as may be called by the Chainnan of the Board of Trustees, or, 
in his absence from the state of Oklahoma, by the Vice Chainnan of the Board ofTrustees. 
The first meeting shall be held in September or October on a date selected by the Chainnan 
of the Board of Trustees, at which time the Board of Trustees shall receive reports and 
conduct any and all other business which it may desire to consider concerning the affairs of 
the College or its own affairs. The second meeting shall be held on a date selected by the 
Chainnan of the Board of Trustees in November or December, at which time the Board of 
Trustees shall orient newly-elected trustees, receive reports, and consider any and all other 
business which the Board ofTrustees may desire to transact. The third meeting shall be held 
on a date selected by the Chainnan of the Board of Trustees in February, at which time the 
Board of Trustees shall elect the faculty of the College, adopt an annual budget, receive 
reports, and consider any and all other business which the Board of Trustees may desire to 
transact. The dates of regular meetings and of all special meetings and the hour and place 
thereof shall be selected by the Chainnan of the Board ofTrustees, and notice thereof shall 
be mailed to each trustee not less than seven days before the meeting. Notice of the time and 
place ofall special meetings of the Board ofTrustees shall be mailed to each trustee in such 
time and manner as the Chainnan of the Board of Trustees deems reasonable and proper, 
except as hereinafter provided for amendment to the Bylaws. Notice of special meetings 
shall include a brief summary of the purpose of the meeting and the business expected to 
come before it. 
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Section 2. 
The presence of at least fifty percent of the Board ofTrustees shall constitute a quorum 

and be sufficient to enable the Board of Trustees to pass any resolution or motion, receive 
reports or recommendations, and transact any business which may properly come before it. 

Section 3. 
The meetings of the Board of Trustees shall be in accordance with and governed by 

parliamentaiy law, insofar as is practicable, as set forth in Robert's Rules of Order. 

Section 4. 
No notice of the time, place, or purpose of any meeting of the Board ofTrustees, except 

for amendment of the Bylaws, whether prescribed by law, by the Charter of the Bylaws, 
need be given to any member of the Board who attends in person, or who in writing, executed 
and filed with the records of the meeting either before or after the holding thereof, waives 
such notice. 

ARTICLEVII 
ACTION WITHOUT FORMAL MEETING 

Section I. 
Any action required or permitted to be taken by the Board of Trustees or by any 

committee thereof may be taken without a formal meeting. Meetings may be conducted by 
mail, telegram, cable, teleconference, or in any other way the Trustees shall decide. 
However, a written consent setting forth the action so taken and signed by at least two­
thirds of the members of the Board or of a committee, as the case may be, must be filed with 
the minutes of the proceedings of the Board or of the committee. 

Section I. 

ARTICLE VIII 
COMMITTEES 

There may be special or ad hoc committees as the Board of Trustees may from time to 
time establish for the discharge of particular duties. 

Section 2. 
There shall be the standing committees specified in this Article. Members and chairmen 

of standing committees shall be appointed by the Chairman of the Board after consultation 
with the President annually ator following, the Novemberor December meetingofthe Board 
of Trustees. Except as provided in these Bylaws, the Chairman of the Board and the 
President of the College shall be ex officio members of all standing committees, and each 
standing committee shall include at least three additional Trustees. Except where otherwise 
provided in this Article, additional ex officio members, including persons who are not on the 
Board of Trustees, may be enlisted as resource persons. However, the chairman of each 
standing committee and a majority of its members shall be Trustees. 
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Section 3. 
The Board of Trustees may at any time discontinue any of its standing committees for 

such time as may be determined, and the duties of any committee so discontinued shall be 
performed during such discontinuance by the Executive Committee. 

Section 4. 
The chairman of any committee, with the consent of the Chairman of the Board, may 

request the President of the College to appoint an administrative officer of the College or a 
member of the administrative staff to serve as a liaison between the committee and the office 
of the President. Such liaison person shall assist the committee in the carrying out of its 
duties. 

Section 5. 
Except as provided in this section, all standing committees shall meet at least two times 

annually. 
Section 6. 

The Board of Trustees shall be organized in the following committees: 

(ii) 

(iii) 

The Executive Committee. The Executive Committee shall consist of the 
Chairman, Vice Chairman, and Secretary of the Board. The presence of 
at least 50 percent of the members of the Executive Committee shall 
constitute a quorum. It shall be the duty of the Executive Committee to 
advise with the President of the College concerning affairsofthe College 
when the Board ofTrustees is not in session, to make recommendations 
to the Board ofTrustees, and to perform such duties as may be referred 
to it by the Board of Trustees. The Executive Committee shall at all 
times be subject to and governed by the Board of Trustees of the 
College. 

Administrative Committees. There shall be four standing administrative 
committees of the Board: Academic Affairs Committee, Business 
Affairs Committee, Development Committee, and Student Affairs 
Committee. The committees and their chairmen shall be appointed by 
the Chairman of the Board in consultation with the President of the 
College. The Administrative Committees shall receive reports from 
administrative officers and consider policies and recommendations 
regulating the life and function of the College. 

Academic Affairs Committee. The Academic Affairs Committee shall be 
composed of at least three Board of Trustee members. It shall, in 
cooperation with the President and Vice President of Academic Affairs, 
study and appraise the quality of the academic program, measure the 
program relative to other comparable institutions in terms of teaching 
load, class size, student-faculty ratios, instructional expenditures, 
research programs, and other relevant factors; formulate desirable short 
and Jong range enrollment goals, advise the Business Affairs Committee 
on the specifications and requirements for financing the academic 
programs, recommend salary, pension, and other personnel policies 
concerning the academic and faculty personnel, review matters affecting 
the faculty of the College, consider proposals on such matters, and 
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report and make a recommendation thereon to the Board of Trustees as may be required. 
(iv) Business Affairs Committee. The Business Affairs Committee shall be 

composed ofat least three Board of Trustees members. It shall review 
annual operating and capital budgets prepared and presented under the 
direction of the President and Vice President of Business Affairs, and 
shall make recommendations with respect thereto to the Board of 
Trustees. It shall review major financial transactions not provided for in 
the budget and submit proposed variances with recommendations to the 
Board of Trustees or Executive Committee. The Vice President of 
Business Affairs shall be an ex officio member of the Business Affairs 
Committee, without power to vote, and shall not be counted as a 
member of the Committee for any purpose. 

(v) Student Affairs Committee. The Student Affairs Committee shall be 
composed of at least three Board of Trustee members. It shall review 
matters affecting students of the College, other than those relating to the 
academic program, consider proposals on such matters, and report and 
make recommendations thereon to the Board of Trustees as may be 
required. 

(vi) Development Committee. The Development Committee shall be composed 
of at least three Board of Trustee members. It shall review and 
recommend student recruitment, fund-raising and public relations 
programs, and report to the Business Affairs Committee on recruitment 
and fund-raising progress and estimates of income to be received 
therefrom. It shall report on its activities at meetings of the Board of 
Trustees. 

ARTICLEIX 
INDEMNIFICATION 

Each Trustee and Officer of the College shall be indemnified by it against all expenses 
actually and necessarily incurred by such Trustee or Officer in connection with the defense 
of any action, suit, or proceeding to which he/she has been made a party by reason of being 
or having been such Trustee or Officer except in relation to matters as to which such Trustee 
or Officer shall be adjudicated in such action, suit, or proceeding to be liable for gross 
negligence or willful misconduct in the performance of duty. 

ARTICLEX 
CONFLICTS OF INTERESTS 

A Trustee shall be considered to have a conflict ofinterest if ( a) such Trustee has existing 
or potential financial or other interests which impair or might reasonably appear to impair 
such members' independent, unbiased judgment in the discharge ofhis/herresponsibilitiesto 
the College, or (b) such Trustee is aware that a memberofhis/her family (which for purposes 
of this paragraph shall be a spouse, parents, siblings, children, and any other relative if the 
latter resides in the same household as the Trustee), or any organization in which such 
Trustee (or member of his/her family) is an officer, director, employee, member, partner, 
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trustee, or controlling stockholder, has such existing or potential financial orother interests. 
All Trustees shall disclose to the Board any possible conflict of interest at the earliest 
practicable time. No Trustee shall vote on any matter under consideration at the Board or 
committee meeting, in which such Trustee has a conflict of interest. The minutes of such 
meeting shall reflect that a disclosure was made and that the Trustee having a conflict of 
interest abstained from voting. Any Trustee who is uncertain whether he/she has a conflict 
of interest in any matter may request the Board or committee to determine whether a conflict 
of interest exists, and the Board or committee shall resolve the question by majority vote. 

Section 1. Contracts 

ARTICLEXI 
ADMINISTRATION OF PROPERTY 

The Board ofTrustees may authorize any officeror agent of the College to enter into any 
contractor execute and deliver any instrument in the name oforon behalfofthe College, and 
such authority may be general or confined to specific instances. 
Section 2. Checks, Drafts, etc. 

All checks, drafts, or other orders for the payment of money, notes, or other evidences 
ofindebtedness issued in the name of the College shall be signed by such officeror agent of 
the College and in such matter as shall from time to time be determined by the Board of 
Trustees. 

Section 3. Bonding 
The Board of Trustees may require all officers, agents, or employees charged with 

responsibility for the custody of any of the funds of the College to give bonds in the amounts 
the Board of Trustees deems appropriate, the cost thereof to be paid by the College. 

Section 4. Deposits 
All funds of the College shall be deposited to the credit of the College in such banks, trust 

companies, or other depositories as the Board of Trustees may from time to time select or 
approve. 

Section 5. Gifts 
The Board of Trustees may accept, on behalf of the College, any contribution, gift, 

bequest, or device for the general purpose or for any special purpose of the College, and may 
delegate this authority to !!,ppropriate corporate and/or administrative officers. These 
officers shall make regular reports to the Board of Trustees of all gifts accepted by them in 
the name of the College. 

Section 6. Fiscal Year 
The fiscal year of the College shall begin the first day ofJuly and end the last day ofJune 

in each year. 
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Section 1. 

ARTICLEIX 
BYLAW AMENDMENT 

These Bylaws may be amended by the Board of Trustees at any meeting, regular or 
special, by a vote to amend constituting two-thirds of the members present at such a 
meeting, provided that the notice calling the Board meeting shall announce that amendments 
to the Bylaws will be voted upon and proposed amendments accompany the notice. Such 
notice must be mailed at least thirty (30) days prior to such meeting to each Trustee at his/ 
her usual place of residence. Any such change shall be subject to The Oklahoma State 
Association of Free Will Baptists. 

Section 2. 
These Bylaws shall stand in the place and stead of, and shall be substituted for all other 

and former Bylaws of the Board of Trustees of the College which have heretofore been 
adopted. 

Section 3. 
Prior to each meeting during the month of February of the Board of Trustees, the 

Executive Committee shall review these Bylaws and suggest any necessary changes thereto. 
The within and foregoing Amended and Restated Bylaws of Hillsdale Free Will Baptist 

College, Inc. have been duly adopted by the Board of Trustees on this 5th day of May, 1994. 

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION 
OFTHE 

HILLSDALE FREE WILLBAPTISTCOLLEGE,INC. 

Know all men by these presents, that, we whose names are hereunto subscribed, do hereby 
associate ourselves together for the purpose of forming a corporation under the provisions 
of the corporation laws of the State of Oklahoma, and for that purpose state: 

ARTICLEONE 
The name of this corporation shall be HILLSDALE FREE WILL BAPTIST COLLEGE, 

INC. 

ARTICLE1WO 
The purpose of this corporation shall be the creation, establishment and maintenance of 

a college and institution of higher learning devoted to the promotion and impartation of 
higher learning, Christian education and such other education, instruction, learning, training 
and research as may be deemed essential for the cause of Christ and to that end prescribe 
courses of study and grant degrees. The doctrinal and theological position of this institution 
shall be that of the sponsoring denomination, Oklahoma State Association of Free Will 
Baptists and the treatise of the National Association ofFree Will Baptists as endorsed by 
the state body, and in connection therewith, in accordance with the stipulation of the 
Constitution and By-laws of the State Association of Free Will Baptists, Inc. 
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(a.) To prescribe courses of study for both resident and correspondence students, 
which shall include general education in the arts, Christian Ministries of Service and Biblical 
studies for wisdom; said courses to be taught in both a Junior College Division and a Bible 
College Division, and to award degrees, either graduate or postgraduate, to those persons 
satisfactorily completing the prescribed courses of study and to grant such other literary 
honors, including honorary degrees, as shall be deemed advisable. 

(b.) To charge and collect tuition as detennined by the Board of Trustees and to 
create scholarships. 

(c.) To employ professors, instructors and other subordinate employees as may 
be necessary for the proper conduct of the college under the direction and control of the 
President of the College, with the advice and consent of the majority of the Board of 
Trustees. 

(d.) To institute and carry on missions and commissions for missionary purposes 
and investigations. 

(e.) To publish and distribute such pamphlets, literature or books as may be 
required in the conduct of such work and the general promotion of the College. 

(f.) To sue and be sued in its corporate name and to enter into contracts of every 
type and nature. 

(g.) To solicit support, receive, collect, hold and receive by gift or bequest 
personal property in any amount, money or other thing of value; to purchase real estate, to 
receive real estate that may be given, or devised to the college for achieving the legitimate 
ends of the college and to sell or mortgage the same as the need arise. 

(h.) To borrow money in payment of property for erecting buildings and making 
improvements and for any other purpose germane to the objectives and purposes of the 
college. 

(I.) To issue notes, bonds, debentures and other evidences of indebtedness and 
execute mortgages, liens, and other incumbrance upon the property of the corporation, real 
or otherwise, to secure the payment of any such evidences of indebtedness. 

G.) To transact any and all business connected with said College as may be 
necessary to achieve the purposes of said College. 

(k.) To obtain under Internal Revenue Laws of the United States and of the 
Revenue La\'1S of the State of Oklahoma exemption from exemption from income property 
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and other forms of taxation. 
ARTICLETHREE 

The location of this property shall be in Moore, Oklahoma. 

ARTICLE FOUR 
The duration of this corporation shall be perpetual. 

ARTICLEFIVE 
The general control of this corporation shall be vested in a Board ofTrustees consisting 

of seventeen (17) members, ten (10) of which shall be elected by the delegates to the annual 
Oklahoma State Association ofFree Will Baptists--each of which shall serve for a term of 
five (5) years, and until his successor is elected and qualified. Two members shall be elected 
at each annual sitting of the State Association for the expiring five year term and vacancies 
that occur on the board. The representatives of the other supporting states shall be as 
follows: Missouri--three (3) members, Arkansas-two (2) members, and Texas--two (2) 
members, who shall be elected by the delegates of their representative state association, each 
to serve for a term designated by the states they represent. 

The distribution for members of this board shall be reevaluated every five years 
beginning in 1999. A committee for this purpose shall be appointed each previous year; 
beginning in 1998. 

ARTICLESIX 
An executive committee consisting of the Chairman, Vice Chairman, and Secretary of the 

Board of Trustees shall possess all powers of the Board of Trustees between the stated 
meetings of the Board of Trustees. 

ARTICLE SEVEN 
All contracts for building construction shall be let only to persons or corporations 

posting a valid performance bond and recording the same in the office of the County Clerk of 
Cleveland County, Oklahoma 

SECTION IX 
AMENDMENTS 

This charter may be hereafter amended subject to the provisions contained herein and 
the laws of the State ofOklahoma It is provided, however, that the Trustees of the College 
shall not propose or apply for any amendment which has not been previously authorized by 
an act of the Oklahoma State Association. 
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OKLABOMAWOMENACTIVEFORCHRISfCONSTITUTION 
ARTICLE I 

NAME 
This organiz.ation shall be known as the Oklahoma Women Active For Christ. 

ARTICLE II 
PURPOSE 

The purpose of this convention shall be to bring the women of each district convention and independent local 
auxiliary together for fellowship, sharing information, and encouraging one another in the work of the Lord. 

ARTICLE III 
OFFICERS 

The Officers of this convention shall be a president, vice president, secretary, assistant secretary, treasurer, 
assistant treasurer, and field worker. These shall serve on the state executive committee together with three 
members elected by the convention. These shall serve for a period of2 years. 

ARTICLEN 
MEMBERSHIP 

This convention shall be composed of the officers of the convention together with each member of the 
district or independent local auxiliary. 

ARTICLE V 
MEETINGS 

The annual meeting shall be held each year on the day preceding the Oklahoma State Association ofFree Will 
Bapti~ts and at the designated by said Association. 

ARTICLE VI 
AMENDMENTS 

This constitution may be amended at any annual meeting of the convention by a two-thirds vote of members 
present. 

DITTIES OF OFFICERS 
Section I, President 

BY-IAWS 
ARTICLE I 

The President shall preside over all meetings, appoint such committees as may be needed, call the executive 
committee together when necessary, be ex-officio member of all committees, and serve as chairman of the executive 
committee, see that reports are made promptly to the national secretary and perform all duties usually pertaining 
to such an office. 

Section 2, Vice President 
The vice president shall preside in the absence of the president or by her request and otherwise assist her in the 

overseeing of the work in general. 
Section 3, Secretary 

The secretary shall keep an accurate record of all proceedings of the convention and executive committee 
meetings, preserve all valuable papers and tum same over to her successor in office, and make an annual report to 
the national secretary on a form available from the WNAC office. She shall compile the districts' slates of officers 
and addresses immediately after the convention. She shall also send a slate of officers and addresses to the national 
executive secretary. 

The secretary shall also serve as historian keeping an historical record and submitting historical information to 
the national executive secretary annually. 

Section 4, Assistant Secretary 
The assistant secretary shall assist the secretary in recording proceedings of convention and executive 

committee meetings and shall aid the secretary in all her work as needed. 

Section 5, Treasurer 
The treasurer shall have charge of all funds belonging to this convention and shall pay out same only when 

authorized by the convention. The treasurer shall keep an accurate account and shall give a written report of all funds 
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received and disbursed at each annual meeting of the convention. She shall also send a monthly report to the WNAC 
office ( executive secretary treasurer). The treasurer shall secure the services of a certified public accountant(CPA) 
on an annual basis. The treasurer shall receive an honorarium of$25.00 per month and an annual honorarium of$275 
per year out of the Retreat Fund. 

Section 6, Assistant Treasurer 
The assistant treasurer shall assist the treasurer in all her work as needed and shall have the authority to sign 

checks in the absence of the treasurer or at the request of the treasurer. 

Section 7, Field Worker 
The field worker shall be responsible fororganizing new auxiliaries and for promoting the work of the state 

and national convention. 
ARTICLED 

ELECTIONS 
The officers shall be nominated by a nominating committee and shall be elected by acclamation, unless there are 

other nominations. In case of more than one nominee for any particular office, a vote will be taken on each. All 
elections shall be held on odd numbered years at the closing business session of the convention. 

Section 2, Resolutions Committee 
A resolutions committee of five members shall be appointed by the president at the annual convention. 

Section 3, Nominating Committee 
The nominating committee shall be composed of one member from each district convention and independent 

local auxiliary. Nominations for this committee shall be submitted with annual reports. The nominating commit­
tee shall be elected by the body on even numbered years at the annual convention. 

Section 4, Registration Committee 
The registration committee, chaired by the vice president, shall be provided by the district convention which is 

host to state convention. 
ARTICLE III 

EXPENSES 
Section I. When performing official duties for the convention, executive committee shall be reimbursed for 
mileage at the current rate allowable by the IRS. Expenses incurred by executive committee, i.e. telephone calls, 
postage, stationery, etc., shall be reimbursed by the convention. 

Section 2. An amount of$200.00 shall be paid toward the expense of the state president to attend the WNAC. If 
the president is unable to attend, $200.00 shall be paid to the executive committee member appointed by the 
president to attend the meeting. 

Section 3. An amount of$75.00 shall be paid toward the expense of the president when attending the national 
retreat or the national leadership conference. 

ARTICLEIV 
COMMITTEES 
Section I, Executive Committee 

The executive committee shall be composed of the seven officers and three members elected by the convention. 
Seven of these shall compose a quorum. They shall hold meetings for the transaction of business as often as 
necessary. It shall be the duty of the executive committee to maintain an overseeing of the work at large. They shall 
act for the convention when necessary. They shall meet with district presidents the night preceding the state 
auxiliary convention. They will send out a newsletter with expenses paid by state convention. 

Section 2, Resolutions Committee 
A resolutions committee of five members shall be appointed by the president at the annual convention. 

Section 3, Nominating Committee 

'116 



To: ~amrittre !hlll re cmpm1or m: nrmx:rfumeanrutrict <XJIYaticnmilrlµImt 
lootl mtxiliaiy. Nmrnticm firthisamrittre!hlll remrittedmfuinml repm Th:1mintii~amrit­
tee !hlll re elected byth: lxxlycnevenrurlm.d)mSitth:inml a:mmicn. 

~en 4, Registraticn Camittee 
Th: regis1raticn a:mrittee, cmired byth: vice p-esicbt, !hlll repuvid:d byth: ctislrict CXJ1Ya"ticn wichis 

Int to state ccnverticn 
ARTICLEV 

FEES AND REPORTS 
Members shall pay dues of$ 10.50 per year, with 25 cents remaining in the district, $1015 to be fonvanled to state 

where 25 cents shall be retained, and $10.00 fonvanled to WNAC as required for membership fees. It shall be the 
duty of each body directly affiliated with the state auxiliary convention to send a report of membership to every 
annual session. 

ARTICLEVI 
AMENDMENTS 

These by-laws may be amended by a two-thirds vote of members present at the annual meeting of the Oklahoma 
Women Active for Christ. 

ARTICLE VII 
CONTRIBUTIONS 

Support through regular channels is encouraged for the following: 
I. Missions 

A. Pre-Easter Season of Prayer -Laura Belle Barnard Offering for Foreign Missions 
B. Pre-Thanksgiving Season of Prayer -Lizzie McAdams Offering for Home Missions 
C. Oklahoma State Projects for Home and Foreign Missions 
D. Missionary Provision Closet 

2. Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College 
A. Oklahoma State Project 
B. Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College Student Loan Fund (special program and offering in 

September to assist worthy and needy students at Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College). 
3. Free Will Baptist Bible College 

4. WNAC 

5. Other 

A. Memorial Student Loan Fund (special program and offering in September to assist worthy and 
needy students at Free Will Baptist Bible College). 

A. Co-Laborer Offering (monthly or quarterly designated to WNAC General Fund). 
B. Emphasis Month Offering (August or other times more convenient designated to WNAC 

General Fund). 
C. Tithes (paid of all Undesignated money received). 
D. Endowment Fund 
E. General Office Support ($10.00 per month per auxiliary is suggested). 
F. Minute Money($ 1.00 per year per auxiliary for National Minutes). 

A. National Student Loan Fund 
B. Oklahoma Women Active For Christ Scholarship 
C. Free Will Baptist Children's Homes 

ARTICLE VIII 
WNAC DELEGATE 
Section I. Each district convention shall submit one nomination for a State delegate to WNAC with their annual 
report. This nomination (along with others as needed to make up 15 delegates to WNAC) shall be elected by the 
body at the annual meeting. It shall be the duty of delegates elected to notify president if they cannot attend WNAC. 
President shall appoint delegates as needed in absence of regular elected delegates. 

Section 2. A National Nominating Committee member shall be elected at the annual convention on odd nwn­
bered years and serve for a period of2 years. 
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QUESTIONNAIRE FOR MINISTERS TO BE ORDAINED 

Date ______ _ 
NAME _____________________ _ 

ADDRESS ___________________ _ 

MEMBER OF ________________ CHURCH 

I. Do you have license? 

2. If you have license, how long have you carried them? 

3. By what Association were they issued? 

4. How many sennons have you preached? 

5. Where are you preaching now? 

6. Why do you want to be ordained? 
7. Are you married? ______ How many times? 

8. If you have been married more than once, is a fonner companion living? 

9. How many children do you have? 

10. Is your wife a member of the Free Will Baptist Church? 

11. How long have you been a Christian? 

12. How long have you been a Free Will Baptist? 

13. Is your wife willing that you be ordained? 

14. Do you or your wife have any habits that would hinder your ministry? 

15. If you have belonged to other denominations, give name of each and length of time 

with each. 

16. In your opinion, what is God's plan for financing His work? 

17. Do you tithe to the church you are a member of? 

18. Are you willing to make any sacrifice that may be involved in this ministry? 

19. Are you willing to abstain from any indulgences that might hinder your effective 

influence in the ministry? 

20. Will your financial circumstances hinder you in taking the pastoral care of a church? 

21. How much education do you have? 

22. Have you had any special training in doctrinal and pastoral theology? 

23. Have you had any courses of study in Homiletics? 

24. Do you have plans to better qualify yourself for the ministry? 

25. If so, what are your plans? 

26. Are you resolved to devote yourself wholly to the ministry? 
2 7. Would you be willing to continue preaching under license if this committee felt that it 

was best? 

28. Have you completed the Ministers' Preparation Course? 
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QUESTIONS ON DOCTRINE 

I. Do you believe that the Scripture, the Old and New Testament, are the infallible 

Word of God, and the only rule of faith and practice? 

2. Do you believe in the Trinity? 

3. Name the God Head. 

4. Is salvation obtained through the Blood of Christ? 

5. Name the condition of salvation. 

6. Do you believe that speaking in an unknown tongue is evidence of having received 

the Baptism of the Holy Ghost? 

7. Do you believe in a second definite work of Grace or Baptism of the Holy Ghost, 

separate and apart from regeneration? 

8. What composes the body of Christ? 

9. Does the Bible teach that God has an organized visible Church on this earth? . 
IO. Do you believe that Baptism is a Gospel Ordinance? 

11. Who are the proper subjects of Baptism? 

12. Do you believe that Immersion is the proper method of water baptism? 

13. Do you believe that the Lord's Supper and Feet Washing are divine ordinances 

and should be observed repeatedly? 

14. A. Do you teach and practice these ordinances? 

B. Do you practice these ordinances at night? 

15. Do you believe in the possibility of apostasy? 

16. Do you believe in the resurrection of the bodies of all men? 

17. Do you believe that there will be a judgment when time and man's probation will 

close, forever and then all will be judged according to their works? 

18. Do you believe that immediately after the judgement the righteous will enter into 

eternal life, and the wicked into a state of endless punishment? 

19. Do you believe that Christ at His second coming, will close the gospel dispensa­

tion, glorify His saints, and judge the world? 

20. Do you believe that on the Day of Pentecost believers spoke in distinct foreign 

languages and this special gift of tongues is what was given to the early church? 

21. I pledge myself to teach and defend the Free Will Baptist Doctrine to the best of 

my ability. If at any future time I preach or teach any doctrine contrary to the 

Free Will Baptist articles of faith, I will surrender my credentials to the Quarterly 

Conference of which I am a member. 

Signed 
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ARTICLES OF FAITH OF STATE ASSOCIATION 

1. THE BIBLE - The Scriptures of the Old and New Testament were given by the 
inspiration of God, and are our infallible rules of faith and practice. 

2. GOD - There is one living and true God, revealed in nature as the Creator, Preserver 
and Righteous Governor of the Universe, and in the Scriptures as the Father, Son and Holy 
Ghost, yet as one God, infinitely wise and good, whom all intelligent creatures are 
supremely to love, adore and obey. 

3. CHRIST- Christ is God manifest in the flesh: in His divine nature truly God, in His 
human nature truly man. The mediator between God and man, once crucified, He is now 
risen and glorified as our ever-present Savior and Lord. 

4. THE HOLY SPIRIT - The Scriptures assigns to the Holy Spirit all the attributes of 
God. He is the Reprover, Comforter, Guide and Sanctifier of all men. 

5. THE GOVERNMENT OF GOD - God exercises a wise and benevolent providence 
over all beings and all things by maintaining the constitution and laws of nature. He also 
performs special acts of Grace, not otherwise provided for as highest welfare of man 
requires. 

6. THE SINFULNESS OF MAN - Man was created innocent, but by disobedience fell 
into a state of sin and condemnation. His posterity, therefore inherited a fallen nature of 
such tendencies that all who come to years of accountability, sin and become guilty before 
God. 

7. THE WORK OF CHRIST - The Son ofGo.d, by His incarnation, life, suffering, death, I 
and resurrection effected for all a redemption from sin that is full and free and is the ground I 
of salvation by faith. : , 

I 8. THE WORK OF SALVATION - The conditions of salvation are: 
I. Repentance or sincere sorrow for sin and the hearty renunciations of it. 
2. Faith or the unreserved committal ofone's self to Christ as Savior and Lord, r 

with purpose to love and obey Him in all things. In the exercise of saving faith the soul is 
renewed by the Holy Spirit; freed from the dominion of sin and becomes a child of God. 

3. Continuance in faith and obedience until death. 

9. ELECTION -God determined from the beginning to save all who should comply with 
the conditions of salvation. Hence by faith in Christ, men become His elect. 

I 0. FREEDOM OF WILL• The Human will is free and self controlled, having power to 
yield to the influence of the truth and the Spirit and live, or to resist them and perish. 

11. SALVATION FREE - God desires the salvation of all, the Gospel invites all, the ' 
Holy Spirit strives with all, and whosoever will may come and take the water oflife freely. 

12. PERSEVERANCE• All believers in Christ, who through grace preserve in holiness 
to the end of life, have the promise of eternal salvation. 

13. BACKSLIDING AND APOSTASY - A person who has been regenerated or born 
again and is living in unconfessed, unforgiven sin, is rebellious to the principles of the 
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Kingdom of God and His righteousness, and therefore is a backslider in a lost condition who 
must repent and be restored to the right relationship with God or be eternally lost. We 
recognize, according to Hebrews 6:4-6, that it is possible for a person to get in the condition 
that he could never return to Christ. This, we believe, is Apostasy; however, we also 
recognize that a regenerate person can fall into sin, be in a lost condition and still not be an 
Apostate. This person, through repentance, can be reconciled to God. 

14. GOSPEL ORDINANCES-Baptism, or the immersion of believers in water, and the 
Lord's Supper, are ordinances to be perpetuated under the Gospel; Feet Washing, an 
ordinance teaching humility, of universal obligation, and be administered to all true believers. 

15. TITHING- God commanded tithes and offerings in the Old Testament; Jesus Christ 
endorsed in the Gospel (Matt. 23 :23), and the Apostle Paul said, "Upon the first day of the 
week let every one of you lay by him in store as God hath prospered him." I Cor. 16:2. 

16. THE CHRISTIAN SABBATH - The divine law requires that one day in seven be set 
apart from the secular employment and amusements for rest, worship, holy works and 
activities, and for personal communion with God. 

17. RESURRECTION, illDGMENT, AND FINAL RETRIBUTION -The Scriptures 
teach the resurrection of all men at the last day. They that have done good will come forth 
to the resurrection of life, and they that have done evil unto the resurrection of damnation: 
then the wicked shall "Go away into eternal punishment but the righteous into eternal life." 

RULES OF ORDER 
I. At every sitting of the Association, business shall be opened and concluded by prayer by 
the Moderator or Whomever he may request. 

2. Ministers and deacons present are invited to seats, allowed to take part in debates on all 
subjects, and to vote. 

3. Those who speak shall rise and address the Moderator. Personal reflections shall be 
avoided in all debates. 

4. No motion may be discussed until made and seconded. 
5. When a motion has been made and seconded, and a member opposes its discussion, the 
Moderator shall put the question, "Shall it be discussed?" Ifnegative, the question shall not 
be discussed. 

6. If any proposition or motion under debate contains two or more points, it shall be divided 
at the request of any member, and the vote taken separately. 

7. Motions made and lost shall not be recorded. 

8. No one shall speak more than twice on the same subject without special leave of the 
Moderator. · 

9. All questions shall be dedded by a majority vote of all Members present. 
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BY-LAWS OF STATE ASSOCIATION 

1. The clerk or assistant clerk, or in their absence, the senior minister in years shall call the 
Association into conference, and if a quorum is present the moderator, or in his absence, the 
assistant moderator shall take charge; and ifneither of them is present the senior minister in 
years shall act as moderator. 

2. It shall be the duty of the clerk to enroll the delegates to the Association, who shall 
present themselves with proper evidence of their rights to seats therein, and those enrolled 
by the clerk shall compose the Association. 

3. It shall be the duty of every District belonging to this Association to send a letter to every 
annual session of this Association reporting in the same; spiritual condition, benevolent 
work and its statistics. Any District belonging to this Association, which shall fail to report 
itself for two successive sessions, may be dismissed from the Association by a two thirds 
vote of all members present. 

4. Each meeting shall be opened by reading a portion ofthe Bible and with prayer, and shall 
be closed with prayer. 

5. By a two-thirds vote of members present, a ruling of the moderator can be overruled. 

6. This Association may correspond by messenger or otherwise with other religious bodies. 

7. This Association shall sit with open doors except when it shall go into a committee of the 
whole. 

8. Any person not a member of this Association may be allowed to take part in its 
discussions by obtaining permission from the moderator. 

9. It shall be the duty of all the Association to be present at the time appointed for each 
meeting, and anyone wishing to retire shall first obtain leave of the moderator. 

10. No person shall be allowed to nominate more than one member of any committee, 
provided the person nominated be elected. 

11. The moderator shall not allow discussions when not carried on in a Christian spirit or 
when he thinks it will cause discord or division. 

12. Anyone desiring to speak shall rise to his feet and address the moderator by the 
appellation "Brother Moderator," but shall not speak further until recognized by the 
moderator. 

13. No member of this association shall be allowed to speak more than then minutes or twice 
on the same subject without permission from the moderator. 

14. This association shall meet annually beginning on Tuesday following the second Sunday 
in October. 

15. These By-Laws may be altered or amended at any regular or adjourned session of this 
Association by a two-thirds vote of the members present. 
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CONSTITUTION OF STATE ASSOCIATION 

PREAMBLE: From long experience, we the members of the Free Will Baptist 
denomination, being regularly baptiz.ed upon a profession of our faith in Jesus Christ, and 
realizing the necessity of a bond in union and fellowship among us as a church; and to 
preserve and maintain correspondence and coordination with us, do therefore ordain this 
Constitution for our better denomination government. 

ARTICLE! 
NAME: 

This organization shall be known as the OKLAHOMA STATE ASSOCIATION OF 
FREE WILL BAPTISTS. 

ARTICLEII 
PURPOSE: 

The object and purpose of this organization shall be to unify the work of the various 
bodies composing this State Association, and to devise and execute measures for the 
extension of the Kingdom of God in connection with various bodies in the Association, or 
that may hereafter be represented therein. 

ARTICLEID 
REPRESENTATION: 

Section I. This Association shall be composed of all ordained ministers and deacons with 
membership in some local church which is a member of a District Association with 
membership in the State Association. 

Section 2. Each District Association shall be entitled to a number of elected delegates 
equal with the number of churches composing said Association. These delegates may be 
recommended by the local churches and shall be endorsed by their District Association. 

ARTICLEIV 
FINANCE: 

Each District Association shall be responsible for sending appropriate fees as stipulated 
by the State and National to the annual State Association and National Convention for each 
church comprising its membership. 

ARTICLEV 
DISCIPLINE: 

Section I. This State Association shall have the right to settle any question of discipline, 
doctrine or practices that may properly come before it from any of the bodies composing 
said organization; furthermore, if there be any question of discipline, doctrine or practices on 
the part of an affiliated association, delegates of that association shall not be seated until 
these questions have been settled to the satisfaction of the General Board. 

Section 2. Decisions of the General Board may be appealed in this manner. All appeals 
shall come before the State Association when sitting in a committee as a whole. 

ARTICLEVI 
OFFICERS: 

A. The officers of the State Association shall consist of a Moderator, Assistant 
Moderator, Clerk, Assistant Clerk and an Executive Director. Each of these shall be elected 
at the close of each regular session except the Executive Director. 
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B. (1) The Executive Director shall be elected for an indefinite term. It shall be the 
responsibility of the Executive Board to seek out a prospective candidate and make their 
recommendation to the body at the State Association in its regular session, with privilege of 
nominations from the floor. 

(2) In the event ofa vacancy occurring during the course of the year, the Executive 
Board shall fill the vacancy until the annual setting of the Association. 

(3) Any time a majority of the Executive Board, or seven (7) members of the General 
Board requests a vote of confidence on the Executive Director, a vote shall be taken. If such 
action results in the termination of the Executive Director, he shall be given sixty (60) days 
severance pay. 

( 4) In the eventofimmorality on the part of the Executive Director, or of him teaching 
or preaching doctrine contrary to the Free Will Baptist Treatise, he may be dismissed by a 
majority vote of the Executive Board with no severance pay. 

ARTICLEVII 
BOARDS: 

All standing boards and committees shall be composed of seven (7) elected members who 
shall serve terms of 7, 6, 5, 4, 3, 2, and 1 years with such ex-officio members as may be 
provided for elsewhere with no member serving more than two (2) consecutive terms of 
office or portion thereof, except: 

A. (I) the Board of Christian Education which shall consist oflO members who shall 
serve five (5) years with two members elected annually, 

(2) the General Board which shall be composed ofone (1) member from each 
affiliated association, the chairman of each standing board, and the current general officers of 
this association, and 

(3) the College Board ofTrustees which shall be composed as provided for in the 
Articles oflncorporation of Hillsdale Free Will B_aptist College, Inc. 

B. (I) The officers of this association shall serve as the Committee on Committees. 
(2) This Committee on Committees in tum shall select the following committees 

that are authorized by, but function only, during the annual state convention - Resolution, 
Obituary, and Nominating Committee. These committees shall consist of 5 member per 
committee, each member being from a different District Association' within the State 
Association. 

(3) The Nominating Committee shall annually present one name to the assemble 
for each vacant office except General Board, with nominating privilege form the floor. 

The standing boards of this association shall be: Executive Board; Board of Church 
Extension, Missions and Evangelism; Board of Christian Education; and College Board of 
Trustees. 

No standing board shall meet in a functional meeting during the session of the association. 

ARTICLE VIII 

DUTIES, SCOPE OF ENDEAVOR AND QUALIFICATIONS 
OF STANDING BOARDS 

Section I. 
EXECUTIVE BOARD: The Executive Board shall be composed of seven (7) members 

who are members of an affiliated association and in good standing with the association of 
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which they are members. They shall be elected at the discretion of this association. 
It shall be the duty of this board to act in behalf of the association when it is not in 

session. It shall be bound to carry out the directions of the association and shall hold itself 
bound by every consideration of morality and honor to carry out the wishes of this 
association and to act under its instructions in whatever technical rights, civil laws and the 
decisions of courts may give it in certain emergencies. It shall be the duty of this board to 
sign their signatures to any and all papers concerning properties, indebtedness, bonds, or 
other legal documents pertaining to the execution of the will of this association, exclusive of 
the College Board of Trustees. 

This board shall have the oversight of the Executive Department of this association. The 
members shall assist and direct such work for the general promotion of this association as is 
deemed needful or necessary as the means available shall permit The Executive Department 
shall serve as the coordinating agency of this association to correlate the work of all standing 
boards and agencies. 

This board shall have the oversight of The Free Will Baptist Literature Center and shall 
endeavor to serve affiliated associations and churches and the community with literature and 
church supplies. Merchandising procedures shall be those accepted as normal retail 
procedures with the board being cognizant of the spiritual contribution of the store in 
distributing Christian literature. 

All decisions of this board shall be governed by the general tenets of this association and 
shall not violate this constitution. 

This board shall organize itself and elect such officers as necessary to the orderly conduct 
of its affairs and labors. This board shall keep an accurate record of all meetings, decisions, 
and work done and shall make a report in writing at each annual session of this association. 
All records shall be available to this association at its request 

Whereas this board represents the association when not in session, it and it alone shall 
have the power to call the association into special conference provided each affiliated 
association shall be given notice at least ten (10) days prior to the meeting of such special 
conference. 

Section 2. 
GENERAL BOARD: This board shall be composed of one (1) member from each 

affiliated association, the chairman of each standing board, and the current general officers of 
this association. Each member must be a member of an affiliated association and in good 
standing with the association of which he is a member. The members shall be elected at the 
discretion of this association. 

The duties of this board shall be to meet on Tuesday afternoon during the annual session 
of this association. This board shall serve as the credential committee with the duties and 
responsibilities and assigned by Article V of this constitution. This board shall hear reports 
of all standing boards. It shall serve as budget committee and shall make such 
recommendations as deemed pertinent to this association. A complete and accurate record 
shall be kept of meetings of this board and a report shall be made in writing to this association 
in its annual session. 

The moderator of the association shall serve as chairman of this board, and the clerk of the 
association shall serve as its clerk. 

Section 3. 
BOARD OF CHURCH EXTENSION, MISSIONS AND EVANGELISM: 

This board shall be composed of seven (7) members who are members of affiliated 
associations and in good standing with the associations of which they are members. They 
shall be elected at the discretion of this association. 

It shall be the duty of this board to labor to further the Gospel of Jesus Christ into the 
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uttennost parts of the earth. In accomplishing this, they are to endeavor to establish 
missions and churches in communities within the bounds of this association with whatever 
moral and financial assistance that may be theirs. In cases of small churches failing to 
function, whatever assistance deemed appropriate shall be rendered to maintain the effective 
witness of that church by either direct labor with the church or with an associational board 
in instance where the affiliated association has a functional board or agency. 

This board shall be empowered to receive and convey title to real property in the area of 
its labors. 

The promotion of missionary endeavors from a local, state or national level shall come 
within the scope of endeavor of this board. This board shall assist in maintaining prayer and 
financial support of missionary enterprises through whatever channels available. 

Whereas missionary and evangelistic labors are so intimately related, this board shall 
assist through participation or assistance in maintaining a strong evangelistic thrust in the life 
of affiliated association. 

This board shall organize itself and elect such officers as necessary to the orderly conduct 
of its affairs and labors. This board shall keep an accurate record of all meetings, decisions, 
work done, funds received and disbursed and shall make a report in writing at each annual 
session of this association. All records shall be available to this association at its request. 

Section 4. 
COLLEGE BOARD OF TRUSTEES: The College Board ofTrustees shall be composed 

as provided for in the Articles oflncorporation of Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College, Inc. 

Hillsdale Free Will Baptist College, Inc. is an agency of the Oklahoma State Association of 
Free Will Baptists and is incorporated under the corporate laws of the State of Oklahoma 
The articles of incorporation are a part of this association's record and delineates the 
purpose, duty and scope of endeavor of the members of this board. 

Section 5. 
BOARD OF CHRISTIAN EDUCATION: This board shall consist of 10 members who 

are members of affiliated associations and in good standing with the association of which 
they are members. The members shall serve five years with two members elected annually. 

The duties of this board shall be to promote and provide assistance for the development 
and sustaining of a total Christian Education program in the local church and district 
association. 

This board shall also administer state-wide activities such as, but not limited to, youth 
camps, seminars, and training programs, working with local agencies to. distribute and 
employ effective methods and materials. 

This board shall organize itself and such officers as necessary to the orderly conduct of 
its affairs and labors. This board shall keep accurate record of all meetings, discussions, 
work don, funds received and disbursed and shall make a report I writing at each annual 
session of this association. All records shall be available to this association at its request. 

Section 6. 
VACANCIES: Vacancies shall occur when a member moves from the territorial bounds 

of this association, by death, by resignation or by removal from office by this association. In 
the event of disciplinary action where charges concerning misconduct, doctrine or practice 
shall have been lodged against a member of any board, his office shall be held in abeyance 
until such charges shall be concluded or as detennined by this association. 
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All boards shall have power to fill vacancies arising between sessions of this association. 
Such appointment shall terminate at the next session of this association and shall be filled by 
this association. 

Section 7. 
EMPLOYEES: All employees of boards or agencies of this association shall be 

employed by agreement or contract with employing board or agency upon approval of this 
association except those elected by this association and the conditions of their employment 
shall be those approved by this association. 

The duties of the Executive Director of this association shall be: 
( l) He is to represent, or cause to be represented, the association at all affairs 

of interest to the association. 
(2) He is to promote the work of the association in such a manner so as to unify 

the efforts of the association. 
(3) He is to serve with all standing boards and committees of the association in 

and ex-officio capacity. 

( 4) He is to aid in planning the work of the association by relating the activities 
and plans of one board to another. 

( 5) He is to report to the association during each annual session. 
(6) He is to communicate to the affiliated members of this association the 

pressing causes and events before the association. This can be in person or by means of a 
periodical bulletin or both. 

(7) He shall serve as treasurer of this association. An accurate and complete 
record of all funds received and disbursed shall be kept and a written report shall be included 
in his report to this association in its annual session. 

(8) The conditions of employment shall be determined by the Executive Board. 
(9) He shall serve annually as Oklahoma's General Board member to the 

National Convention. 

ARTICLEIX 
DISSOLUTION: 

Should this association cease to function, all properties and holdings shall go the National 
Association ofFree Will Baptists after all creditors are satisfied and indebtedness cleared. 

ARTICLEX 
AMENDMENTS: 

This constitution may be amended or altered at any regular session of the association by 
a two-thirds (2/3) majority vote of members present and voting, provided proposed 
amendment or alteration be presented in writing to the body one ( 1) day in advance. 

ARTICLEXI 
SPECIAL SESSIONS: 

Elected delegates to the last session of this !15sociation shall be retained as standing 
delegates for special called sessions. 
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Ministers 
'Pastors 

A Abel, Eldie '35398 E.181stS., Porter, OK 74454 Salina First 
918-486-4643 South Grand River 

Adair, Maxi • 241 W. 61st ST., Muskogee, OK 74401 Muskogee, First 
918-683-1165 New life 

Adcock, Bill 'Rt 5, Box 1290, Muldrow, OK 74948 Mineral Springs 
918-427-3979 Poteau River Vallev 

Akin, Delbert 1809 Meadowlark Lane, MWC, OK 73130 Harrah 
405-7 41-0850 First Oklahoma 

Allison, Charles '104 W. Boston, Broken AJrow, OK 74012 Northside FWB 
918-258-9743 South Grand River 

AJcher, David '2832 N.W. 170th Ct., Edmond, OK 73003 Oak Hills 
405-341-4673 First Oklahoma 

AJcher, Zack 2832 NW 170th Cl, Edmond, OK 73003 Oak Hills 
405-604-3365 First Oklahoma 

Arter, Roger 'P.O. Box 153, Fitzhugh, OK 74843 Bvng 
580-320-8306 Center 

Ashbv, Stephen 2309 S.W. 93rd, OKC, OK 73159 Newcastle 
405-692-5416 First Oklahoma 

B Baccus, Matt P.O. Box 117, Poteau, OK 74953 Poteau, First 

918-647-8181 Poteau River Vallev 
Bailes, Bob '40017 E. 1250 RD., Stigler, OK 74462 Rose Hill 

918-967-3276 Eureka 
Baine, Ed '219 N.E. 1st., Moore, OK 73160 Victorv 

405-799-1281 First Oklahoma 
Baker, Dovie '1120 N. Main, Sapulpa, OK 74066 Garden Heights 

918-224-3581 First Mission 
Ballard, John '2447 County St. 2985, Blanchard, OK 73010 Lexington, First 

405-222-0268 First Oklahoma 
Ballard, Roger 'P.O. Box 1001, Catoosa, OK 74015 Woodcrest 

918-266-5944 Greater Tulsa 
Ballard, Thomas '201 N. Rowe ST., Pryor, OK 74361 Pryor, First 

918-825-7355 South Grand River 
Barks, Danny '2301 E. 116th South, Muskogee, OK 74403 Keefeton 

918-989-5529 South Grand River 
Bartjett, Oran P.O. Box 535, Quinton, OK 74561 Heaven Bound 

918-469-3406 Kiamichi 
Battice, Scott '125 "D" Street S.W., Ardmore, OK 73401 Healdton 

580-465-2352 Hopewell#2 
Baumert, John 'P.O. Box 243, Cushing, OK 74023 Cushing, First 

918-225-1679 First Mission 
Beaver, Edgar 'P.O. Box 345, Barnsdall, OK 74005 Barnsdall, First 

918-847-2648 TulsaAJea 
Bellville, Rick 17820 CR 3440, Ada, OK 74820 Byng 

580-759-2642 Center 
Benson, Eugene '18473 Hontubby Road, Heavener, OK 74937 Royal Oak 

918-413-2030 Roberts McGee 
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Berka, Francis '2470 E. 470, Pryor, OK 74361 Hillcrest 
918-825-7941 South Grand River 

Bevan, Paskel '11552 N.S. 3640, Seminole, OK 74868 Friends 
405-944-5873 Fellowship 

Biooer, Charles '4806 E. Franklin Road, Norman, OK 73026 Pleasant Hill 
405-360-8707 First Oklahoma 

Bigoer, David '1118 Young Ave., Ponca Citv, OK 74601 Ponca Citv 
580-765-2793 First Mission 

Bilby, David '10423 S. 4072 Road, Talihina, OK 74571 Shelter 
918-371-1751 

Bilby, Johnny '7001 Hwv 97, Sapulpa, OK 74066 Allen, Sapulpa 
918-224-2752 First Mission 

Bingham, Roy 37145 W. Hwy 33, Mannford, OK 74044 Libertv, Mannford 
918-352-4229 First Mission 

Blackford, Garv 4002 S. 4473, Salina, OK 74365 Locust Grove 
918-479-6212 South Grand River 

Blair, Jeff '6727 E. 570 Road, Locust Grove, OK 74352 Locust Grove 
918-479-3250 South Grand River 

, Bolin, Derek #120 Sooner Drive, Stroud, OK 7 4079 Stroud, First 
580-320-0609 First Mission 

Bookou~ Kevin '1206 S. 12th, Blackwell, OK 74631 Blackwell 
580-363-5088 First Oklahoma 

Bowman, Donnie 2408S. NooalesAve., Tulsa, OK 74107 Central 
918-295-4980 Northeast 

Braisher, Henrv 1329 S.W. 116th Terr., OKC, OK 73170 CrossPointe 
405-692-1204 First Oklahoma 

Brake, Larry 632 S.W. 8th, Moore, OK 73160 Sunnylane 
405-793-1648 First Oklahoma 

Brake, Perry '1718 S. 138th E. Ave., Tulsa, OK 74108 Southeast 
918-234-1405 Greater Tulsa 

Bratcher, Lorene 1031 N. Oak, Ada, OK 74820 Campground 
580-436-2613 Center 

Bratcher, William 1031 N. Oak, Ada, OK 74820 Campground 
580-436-2613 Center 

Bratton, Glenn '20347 N. Airport Rd, Stigler, OK 74462 Tamaha 
918-967-3926 Eureka 

Brawley, Mark 5918 McMillin, Tuttle, OK 73089 Newcastle 
405-381-4937 First Oklahoma 

Brazeal, Chartes '10823 E. 156st N. Collinville, OK 74021 Skiatook 
1918-371-9397 Tulsa Area 

Brooks, Atha P.O. Box 554, Mccloud, OK 74851 Spencer Road 
405-964-5116 First Oklahoma 

Bryant, Roy 253 E. 51 st, Sand Springs, OK 7 4063 Garden Heights 
918-241-4474 First Mission 

Bull, Jeremy '9155 S. State Hwy 48, Coleman, OK 73432 Folsom 
580-937-4241 Hopewell#1 

Bullard, Chris 'Rt 2, Box 1, McAlester, OK 74501 , North McAlester 
918-423-0770 Kiamichi 

Burgess, William '505 Pleasant Valley Road, Poteau, OK 74953 Pleasant Valley 
918-649-3445 Roberts McGee 

Butler, Mike 704 Golden Eagle, Norman, OK 73072 Cross Pointe 
405-872-8441 , First Oklahoma 
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Butler, Pete '22426 Church Lane, Spiro, OK 74959 Spiro 
918-962-5250 Poteau River Valley 

C Campbell, Max '9905 N. Harvard, Sperry, OK 74073 Dawson 
918-288-6110 Northeast 

Cane, Lucas 4375 CR 1550, Ada, OK 74820 Gaar Comer 
580-320-3002 Center 

Carev, Doug '6910 S. 29th W. Ave., Tulsa, OK 74132 Crossroad 
918-445-6259 Greater Tulsa 

Cariker, Connie 2007 W. "G", Jenks, OK 74037 Cornerstone 
918-298-1613 Greater Tulsa 

Cariker, Casey 13413 E. 106th St. N., Owasso, OK 74055 Reioice 
918-371-8456 Greater Tulsa 

Cariker, Dennis '1709 Davinbrook, Norman, OK 73072 Heartland 
405-364-2836 First Oklahoma 

Cheshier, Carl '302 Rose Dr., Pocola, OK 7 4902 Community 
918-626-3988 Poteau River Valley 

Christian, Doug 611 Quail Drive, McAlester, OK 74501 McAlester, First 
918-423-4462 Kiamichi 

Christian, J.E. Rt 4, Box 1855, CushinQ, OK 74023 CushinQ, First 
918-225-1014 First Mission 

Clark, Wilburn 'P.O. Box 73, Porter, OK 7 4454 WaQoner First 
918-483-7501 Northeast 

Coats, Ravmond '4105 W. Universitv, Durant, OK 74701 University 
405-590-7648 Hopewell#1 

Coffelt, James '511 Rhonda St, Pryor, OK 74361 The GatherinQ 
918-825-2428 Greater Tulsa 

Cole, Mark P.O. Box 737, Blanchard, OK 73010 Christ Chaoel 
405-485-3980 Canadian 

Collier, Albert Rt. 1, Box 229AB, Okemah, OK 74859 Okemah 
918-623-1194 Progressive 

Collin, Paul '4484 W. 51st ST. S., JenninQs, OK 74038 Silver City 
918-865-3816 First Mission 

Condi~ E.B. Rt 1, Box 267-3, Pryor, OK 74361 Reioice 
918-824-1692 Greater Tulsa 

Condi~ Rick '8431 S 440, Locust Grove, OK 74352 Little Rock 
918-479-8661 South Grand River 

Conn, Joe 'Rt 1, Box 26-A, Cleveland, OK 7 4020 Lake Area 
918-358-2120 First Mission 

Cook, Leonard 1056 S. Hopewell Road, Coleman, OK 73432 Hopewell 
580-937-4401 Hopewell#1 

Cook, Victor '1171 S. Pacific Road, Kenefic, OK 74748 Pleasant View 
580-937-9932 Hopewell#1 

Cope, Earl P.O. Box 537, Haskell, OK 74436 Grovania 
918-482-3431 New Life 

Cottom, Chet 18542 S. Sheridan Road, Bixbv, OK 74008 Bixbv 
918-366-9138 South Grand River 

Cox, Lewis 'P.O. Box 152, Dibble, OK 73031 Dibble 
405-224-0606 Dibble 

Craia, N.L. 'P.O. Box 101, Stigler, OK 74462 McCurtain 
918-967-2079 Kiamichi 
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Crook, Richard 'P.O. Box 215, Crowder, OK 74430 Crowder 
918-334-3307 Kiamichi 

Crow, James '4930 W. 1st ST., Tulsa, OK 74127 The Living Way 
918-585-5823 South Grand River 

D Davidson, Garland 'P.O. Box 235, Velma, OK 73491 Countryside 
580-444-3530 Hopewell#2 

Davis, Eddie '2022 N. 48th ST., Springdale, AR 72762 FWB Worship Center 
479-751-9383 South Grand River 

DaVoult, Lonnie '745 Wood Hollow Lane, Moore, OK 73160 Charity 
405-799-4254 Dibble 

Day, Cecil '7210 Blanco Road, McAlester, OK 74501 Stuart 
918-423-9396 Gaines Creek 

Deathridge, James Rt. 1, Box 324A, Eufaula, OK 74432 Eufaula 
918-689-4140 Kiamichi 

Deeds, Eamie '308 Pauline Renee, Moore, OK 73160 Westgate 
405-799-0709 First Oklahoma 

Deskin, Dan P.O. Box 215, Dibble, OK 73031 Dibble 
405-224-3559 Dibble 

Dixon, Jay 'Rt 3, Box 1442, Haskell, OK 74436 Haskel First 
918-482-3179 South Grand River 

Dodson, Gary 1801 Jackson Drive, Norman.OK 73071 Non 
405-321-6387 Center 

Donahoo, Chad 938 County Street 2990, Blanchard, OK 73010 Newcastle 
405-392-2854 First Oklahoma 

Doss, Dale '722 W. 26th Ave., Stillwater, OK 74074 Fellowship 
405-372-9248 First Mission 

Doss, Daniel 3730 S. Telephone Road, Moore, OK 73160 Pleasant Hill 
405-250-8529 First Oklahoma 

Drake, Buddy '501 W. Broadway, Allen, OK 74825 Richmond Ave. 
580-857-2476 Progressive 

Drake, Ronnie 'HC63, Box 237E, Eufaula, OK 74432 Eufaula, First 
918-689-7504 Kiamichi 

Drake, Tom '301 S.W. 148th, OKC, OK 73170 Windwood 
405-794-9180 First Oklahoma 

Duncan, Rick 720 Eastridge, Yukon, OK 73099 Yukon, First 
405-354-3300 First Oklahoma 

Duncan, Bob 1011 Mngton, Yukon, OK 73099 Yukon, First 
405-556-0678 First Oklahoma 

E Eakel, Delman '20452 E. Tamaha Road, Stigler, OK 74462 Cass 
918-967-4720 Eureka 

Earp, Steve '1836 Sunrise, Moore, OK 73160 Grace 
405-912-1797 First Oklahoma 

Eaton, Tim 300 Victory Ct, Norman, OK 73072 Newcastle 
405-307-9631 First Oklahoma 

Everett, Gary '108 Doe Run, Powderly, TX 75473 HallFWB 
903-732-3770 Southeastern 

F Farmer, Dan '4600 S.E. 139th, OKC, OK 73165 Moore, First 
405-794-3881 First Oklahoma 
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Fassio, Cecil 102 South Oak, Hartshorne, OK 74547 
918-297-7116 

Feraueson, J. George *10062 Lake West Rd., Boswell, OK 74727 
580-566-2586 

Ferauson, Cecil RR1, Valliant, OK 
580-933-4821 

Ford, Devlen HC 73, Box 31, Marietta, OK 73448 
580-276-9803 

Freeman, Gaylon 2500 George Ave., Pocola, OK 74902 
918-436-2096 

G Gardner, David *Aster 58, Lone Grove, OK 73443 

580-657-2971 
Gardner, Dustin 3545 Brock Road, Ardmore, OK 73401 

580-675-3881 
Garner, Mike 222 Barb Court, Norman, OK 73071 

405-307-9577 
Gilbert, Brian '10515 S. 83rd E. Circle, Tulsa, OK 74133 

918-369-6557 
Giles, Frank *Box 458, Newcastle, OK 73065 

405-392-4733 
Giles, Ryan 1049 NW 7th, Moore, OK 73160 

405-912-2368 
Gillespie, Tim *139 E. Drumright, Drumriaht, OK 74030 

918-352-2666 
Gleason, David *20012 S. 4230 Rd, Claremore, OK 74019 

918-283-2541 
Goddard, Don *11010W. 670 Rd., Hulbert, OK 74441 

918-598-3771 
Goode, Mark '28 E. Church Ave., Fairland, OK 74343 

918-676-5381 
Grav, Roger 12201 CR 3480, Ada, OK 74820 

580-332-1465 
Green, Randy 'P.O. Box 204, Kiefer, OK 74041 

918-321-3117 
Greeson, Shelbv *5308 E. Monte Pl., OKC, OK 73119 

405-685-5675 
Griffin, Bill *P.O. Box 206, Allen, OK 74825 

580-857-2303 
Griffith, John 507 Smith Cir., Lindsay, OK 73052 

405-756-4515 
Grizzle, Joe *2804 Stonebridge Ct., Norman, OK 73701 

405-364-9620 
Gutierrez, Victor 4708 Creekwood Dr., OKC, OK 73135 

405-677-3239 
Gwartney, Curt P.O. Box 1162, Locust Grove, OK 74352 

918-479-3105 
Gwartney, Ray 604 Grove Crest Rd., Prvor, OK 74361 

918-825-6622 

H Haas, Harold 11301 N. WestemAve., OKC, OK 73114 
405-463-0680 
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Haddox, Bill 'P.O. Box 24, Rattan, OK 74562 Centerpoint 
580-587-2766 Southeastern 

Haggard, Larry '1407 W. Gentry, Checotah, OK 74426 Westside 
918-473-2965 Kiamichi 

Hall, Tandell P.O. Box 74, Blanchard, OK 73010 Blanchard 
405-485-9489 Dibble 

Hanna, Brad 7185 Orchard View, Edmond, OK 73003 Oak Hills 
405-340-7960 First Oklahoma 

Harper, Dan '806 Meadowlake, Noble, OK 73068 Christ Chapel 
405-872-3367 Canadian 

Harper, Kevin '1412 Chambers, Norman, OK 73071 Calvarv 
405-292-9978 First Oklahoma 

Harris, Jim '706 N. Morgan Road, Mustang, OK 73064 Clear Spring 
405-745-2252 First Oklahoma 

Harrison, Clint 610 ·o· Sl s.w., Ardmore, OK 73401 Maranatha 
580-226-6812 Center 

Harrison, Ernest '29745 CR 1540, Allen, OK 74825 Non 
405-812-7523 Center 

• Haskins, Andrew 7420 N. 46th, Cushing, OK 74023 Cushing, First 
918-399-0471 First Mission 

Haskins, Rick 11932 S. 1st., Jenks, OK 74037 Bethany 
918-299-0165 Greater Tulsa 

Hatcher, Robert Rl 6, Box 119, Ada, OK 74820 Happyland 
580-436-2878 Center 

Haynes, Bill '10437 S. Garnett Rd., Tulsa, OK 74011 Collinsville 
918-252-7758 Northeast 

Hearod,Arl!/ '6645 E. 134 Rd., Holdenville, OK 74848 Lone Grove 
405-379-6124 Kiamichi 

Heath, Dennis '15135 CR 3670, Stonewall, OK 74871 Stonewall 
580-265-4873 Center 

Hesson, Bill 901-B W. McKenzie, Pocola, OK 74902 Christian Grove 
918-436-2035 Poteau River Vallev 

Hester, Dannv '24288 N. 3965 Rd., Bartlesville, OK 74006 Faith, Bartlesville 
918-333-7590 Northeast 

Hester, R.D. 24228 N. 3965 Rd., Bartlesville, OK 74006 Faith, Bartlesville 
918-438-0291 Northeast 

Hewett, John 405 Magnolia, Tahlequah, OK 7 4464 Locust Grove 
918-453-0763 South Grand River 

Hidde, Rbert D. 'P.O. Box 50926, Tulsa, OK 74150 City Church 
918-834-2312 

Hobbs, Travis 19852 E. 370 Road, Chelsea, OK 74016 
918-864-0558 

Hogue, Curtis 18838 CR 1505, Ada, OK 74820 Ada, First 
580-332-2889 Center 

Holbrook, Jimmy '2335 Janene ST., Harrah, OK 73045 Harrah 
405-454-6690 First Oklahoma 

Holdemeld, John 'P.O. Box 16, Pocola, OK 74902 Heavener 
918-436-2023 Poteau River Valley 

Holland, Ernest 15605 S. Mingo, Bixby, OK 74008 Bethany 
918-366-8801 Greater Tulsa 

Hollie, Ed R~ 4, Box 776, Whitefield, OK 74472 Heaven Bound 
918-967-4398 Kiamichi 
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Holman, Leroy '701 Sherwood, Ardmore, OK 73401 Maranatha 
580-226-1423 Center 

Honeycutt, Tommy 'P.O. Box 1662, Fl Gibson, OK 74434 Ft. Gibson 
918-478-8975 South Grand River 

Hood, Eart '14510 CR 3490, Ada, OK 74820 Center 
580-436-4979 Center 

Hood, Glen 2484 W. 115th St, Jenks, OK 74037 Lawnwood 
918-298-8895 Greater Tulsa 

Hood, Richard 4330 CR 1553, Ada, OK 7 4820 Center 
580-759-8865 Center 

Horton, Leland 2300 SW. 90th, OKC, OK 73159 Sunnylane 
40~92-7925 First Oklahoma 

Howeth, Joev '21626 160th Stree~ Purcell, OK 73080 Iron Chapel 
405-527-5133 Dibble 

Humble, Rvan 'P.O. Box 356, Oilton, OK 74052 Oilton 
918-862-3218 First Mission 

Hutsell, Jason P.O. Box 743, Bristow, OK 74010 Bristow, First 
918-367-8897 First Mission 

Hutsell, Mike '2516 W. Mobile Pl., Broken Arrow, OK 74011 Grace 
918-455-9098 Greater Tulsa 

J Jackson, Gene •434 West 2nd, Bristow, OK 74010 Bristow, First 
918-367-3755 First Mission 

Jamison, Charlie '20889 w. Hwv 33, Sapulpa, OK 74066 Blue Bell 
918-247-8676 First Mission 

Jarrett, Brent 'Rt 2, Box 132, McAlester, OK 74501 Canadian Shores 
918-823-4232 Gaines Creek 

Jenkins, Bobby '40728 E/ 211th ST. S., Porter, OK 74454 Porter 
918-483-2609 New life 

Jenkins, Ed 37145 W. Hwv 33, #7 Mannford, OK 74044 Oilton 
918-352-4209 First Mission 

JenninQs, Walter 705 SW69th, OKC, OK 73139 Southwest 
40~31-8950 First Oklahoma 

Johnson, Lonnie '702 Amily Lane, El Reno, OK 73036 El Reno, First · 
405-262-7344 First Oklahoma 

Jones, Bill 111 Todd, Poteau, OK 74953 Poteau, First 
918-849-3584 Poteau River Valley 

Jones, Chartes 18598 CR 1500 Ada, OK 74820 Byng 
580-332-1748 Center 

Justice, Dale '1472 CR 1190, Tuttle, OK 73089 Kingsview 
405-381-9506 First Oklahoma 

K Kates, Glenn '20122 N. Tamaha Road, Stigler, OK 74462 Stigler, First 

918-967-8541 Poteau River Valley 
Kates, Henry '20374 E. Hwv 9, Stigler, OK 74462 Rockford 

918-967-2387 Eureka 
Kay, Quinton Rt. 1, Box 158, Konawa, OK 74849 Campground 

580-925-2080 Center 
Kellett, Myrt '2603 SW 'A" Ave, Lawton, OK 73505 Lawton 

580-355-4668 Hopewell#2 
Kelton, Bill '2861 N. 24th St, Muskogee, OK 74403 Central 

918-887-4339 Arkansas Valley 

134 

_______,__ 



Kennedy, Michael Rt 2, Box 4390, Talihina, OK 74571 
918-567-2086 

Ketcher, Sam '1310 N.E. 4th, Pryor, OK 74361 Valley Heights 
918-864-1547 South Grand River 

Ketchum, Bob 110 S. A Ave., Bixby, OK 74008 
918-364-2836 

King, Mike '3005 Erica Circle, Duncan, OK 73533 Duncan, First 
580-255-8020 Southwest 

Kirby, Mike '601 S. Oklahoma, Okmulgee, OK 74447 Okmulgee, First 
918-756-5014 First Mission 

Kircher, Joel '2237 Green Meadows Cir., McAlester, OK 74501 McAlester, First 
918-423-3225 Kiamichi 

Kirk, Bill 612 Short Stonewall, McAlester, OK 74501 McAlester, First 
918-423-5051 Kiamichi 

Kirkpatrick, Jamie 'Rt. 1, Box 398A, McAlester, OK 74501 Fellowship 
918-429-2047 Gaines Creek 

Konopinski, Stan '4200 S.E. 47th, OKC, OK 73135 Trinity 
405-677-0914 First Oklahoma 

• Kuhl, Brad '5524 Boone Road, Hachett AR 72937 Rock Island 
501-996-6274 Poteau River Valley 

Kuhlman, Buddy '20509 E. Reno, Harrah, OK 73045 Crosswalk 
405-250-57 48 Canadian 

Kulp, Sam 13310 Adams Road, Mounds, OK 74047 
918-366-3285 

L Lawrence, Gilbert 418 Wooley Ave., Stuart, OK 74570 Stuart 
918-546-2822 Gaines Creek 

Lawrence, James 'P.O. Box 113, Calvin, OK 74531 Calvin 
405-645-2457 Progressive 

Layne, Jimmy '305 N.E. Second, Wagoner, OK 74467 Wagoner, First 
918-485-4267 Northeast 

Leforce, Don 'P.O. Box 176, Earlsboro, OK 74840 Allen 
405-997-5464 Fellowship 

Lewis, Glenn 4635 S. 85th E. Ave., Tulsa, OK 74145 Bethany 
918-660-8988 Greater Tulsa 

Lewis, Kevin 613 P N.W., Miami, OK 74354 
918-541-6174 

Lindsey, Chris 'P.O. Box 152, Kellyville, OK 74039 Fellowship 
918-247-4318 First Mission 

Linton, Curtis '8050 N. Whirlpool Dr., Sperry, OK 74073 Cornerstone 
918-27 4-8050 Greater Tulsa 

Lippard, John Henrv '8594 CR 3460, Ada, OK 74820 Gaar Corner 
405-818-9051 Center 

Lopes, S. Ivan 3570 Lone Star Road, Sapulpa, OK 74066 Liqhthouse 
918-227-1042 

Louviere, Chuck 921 N.W. 15th, Moore, OK 73160 Moore, First 
405-823-7950 First Oklahoma 

Loveless, Steve '4115 W. Edison, Tulsa, OK 74127 Lawnwood 
918-585-1311 Greater Tulsa 

M Mabra, Allen '108 Sunset Lane, Woodward, OK 73801 Woodward 

580-254-9197 Union 
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Major, Kenneth '321 E. Park, McAlester, OK 74501 Fanshawe 
918-426-4579 Roberts McGee 

Mann, Marvin 10405 E. 114 Pl. S. Bixby, OK 7 4008 Liberty 
918-369-0410 Arkansas Valley 

Maxwell Jr., John '10276 N. Perry Road, Stigler, OK 7 4462 Rock Ford 
918-967-8702 Eureka 

Mayhew, Steve 1118 w. Ridge, McAlester, OK 74501 McAlester, First 
918-426-4676 Kiamichi 

Maynor, Brian 'P.O. Box 405, Ninnekah, OK 73067 Hawkins 
405-222-1778 Dibble 

McAlister, Lonnie 141 Philbrooke Dr., OKC, OK 73109 Southern Oaks 
405-631-3830 First Oklahoma 

McCauley, Mike 2309 Libra, Shawnee, OK 74804 Crosswalk 
405-919-2801 Canadian 

McClendon, Royce P.O. Box 1604, Lone Grove, OK 73443 Stobtown 
580-657-8214 Hooewell#2 

McClure, Robert '401 Patton Ave., Wewoka, OK 74884 Wewoka First 
405-257-5338 ProQressive 

McCrarv, Troy 11663 S. 73rd. E. Ave., Bixby, OK 74008 Dawson 
918-369-2867 Northeast 

McDouQal, David '2321 N. Milt Phillips, Seminole, OK 74868 Seminole 
405-382-2342 First Oklahoma 

McDouQal, RoQer '13839 S. 294th E. Ave., Coweta, OK 74429 New Home 
918-279-6332 New life 

McEntire, Jonathan '1402 E. 6th Ave., Stillwater, OK 74074 Highland Park 
405-372-6721 First Mission 

Meadows, GreQ '12624 S. 305 E. Ave., Coweta, OK 74429 Coweta First 
918-486-4316 New life 

Meek, Jerry 505 N. Franklin, Sand Springs, OK 74063 Blue Bell 
918-245-9930 First Mission 

Messer, Larry 'Rt. 1, Box 701, Eufaula, OK 74432 Heaven Bound 
918-452-2715 Kiamichi 

Miller, Randall 'Rl 2, Box 242-B2, PraQue, OK 74864 Prague 
405-567-4169 Canadian 

Milner, Carroll '1217 Tuggle, Purcell, OK 73080 Purcell 
405-527-8544 Dibble 

Money, Bill '408 W. Blair, Wilburton, OK 74578 Wilburton First 
918-465-2285 Kiamichi 

Montgomery, Larry '212 S. New Betha! Blvd., Ada, OK 74820 Ada, First 
580-310-0911 Center 

Moran, Jason 1540 Southminster, Moore, OK 73160 Windwood 
405-759-2168 First Oklahoma 

MorQan, J.C. 6636 E. 151st ST. S, Bixby, OK 74008 Bixby 
'918-366-8972 South Grand River 

Morris, Lloyd '13010 S. 79th E. Ave., Bixby, OK 74008 Shellenbarger 
918-369-2381 South Grand River 

Morrison, Fred 'P.O. Box 82, Indianola, OK 74442 New Hope 
918-823-4565 Gaines Creek 

Moss, Lynn '32230 E. 161st. ST., Coweta, OK 74429 Northside 
918-279-8026 Eureka 

Muck, Joey Rl 2, Box 437, Sulphur, OK 73086 Sulphur 
580-622-3471 Center 
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Murphv, Chartes '207 Rawlinas Dr., Clinton, OK 73601 Clinton 
580-323-6111 Union 

Murray, James '8316 NW 77th, OKC, OK 73132 Yukon 
405-773-4949 First Oklahoma 

Murray, Reece 5050 S. 273rd E. Ave., Broken Arrow, OK 74014 Liberty 
918-357-3355 Arkansas Valley 

Myers, Clifford 'P.O. Box 455, Pocola, OK 74902 Pocola Heights 
918-436-2365 Poteau River Valley 

Myers, Jason 'Rl 1, Box 735, Valliant OK 7 4 764 FelkerFWB 
580-933-4821 Little River 

N Nabors, Mike 'Rl 2, Box 1571, Roland, OK 74954 Maple 
918-427-1711 Poteau River Valley 

Newby, Jarrod P.O. Box 492, Roff, OK 74865 Byng 
580-310-1173 Center 

Nichols, Andy '912 Thurman Sl, Pryor, OK 74361 Westside 
918-824-1024 South Grand River 

Nichols, Jimmy 1323 Nadine Drive, Ada, OK 74820 Ada, First 
580-332-9566 Center 

.Nipps, Douglas '606 N. Division, Coweta, OK 74429 Shahan 
918-279-0802 South Grand River 

Nolan, David 'P.O. Box 476, Panama, OK 74951 Panama 
918-963-2404 Poteau River Vallev 

p Pack, Ed 3004 St. John, Moore, OK 73160 Newcastle 
405-793-8888 First Oklahoma 

Palmer, Dean 15920 Vicki Dr., OKC, OK 73170 Oak Hills 
405-790-0689 First Oklahoma 

Parker, Daniel P.O. Box 183, Oilton, OK 74052 Oilton 
918-862-3188 First Mission 

Parker, Doug 'P.O. Box 42, Locust Grove, OK 74352 Smith Chapel 
918-386-2232 South Grand River 

Patton, Wayne '10345 Sl HWY 19, Ada, OK 74820 Wilson 
580-436-6173 Center 

Payne, Russell '800 S. Creek, Holdenville, OK 74848 Holdenville 
405-379-2230 First Mission 

Peace, Everett '1223 N. Front St, Dewev, OK 74029 Dewev 
918-534-1618 Northeast 

Perrv, Burton 'P.O. Box 746, Okemah, OK 74859 Okemah 
918-623-2403 Proqressive 

Perrv, Jamie 4760 CR 3565, Ada, OK 74820 Bvng 
580-332-5079 Center 

Perrv, Lewis 'Rl 3, Box 268, Stratford, OK 74872 Stratford 
580-759-3020 Center 

Phillips, Adam 120 Barbour St., Moore, OK 73160 Calvarv 
405-7 40-5569 First Oklahoma 

Phillips, Daniel '8320 S. Kalanchoe, Broken Arrow, OK 74011 Airport 
918-449-1117 GreaterTulsa 

Phillips, Junior 'P.O. Box 117, Poteau, OK 74953 Poteau, First 
918-647-2355 Poteau River Valley 

Pirtle, Leonard '8922 N. 130th East Ave., Owasso, OK 74055 Reioice 
918-272-3045 Greater Tulsa 
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Points, James 9811Lost City Rd. 430, Hulbert, OK 74441 Clear Creek 
918-598-3170 Arkansas Valley 

Puckett, Jim 301 Paxton Cl, Norman, OK 73069 CrossPointe 
405-579-5514 First Oklahoma 

R Ransom, Brad 917 CS 2934, Tuttle, OK 73086 
405-381-2757 

Redfearn, Fred 'P.O. Box 3, Oakhurst, OK 74050 Welcome Home 
918-446-4334 Arkansas Valley 

Redfearn, Wilburn P.O. Box 486, Oakhurst, OK 74050 Welcome Home 
918-446-7876 Arkansas Valley 

Reid, Gene 620 N. Rockwell, Newcastle, OK 73065 Newcastle 
405-387-5040 First Oklahoma 

Reid Jr., Havner 'NBU 6008, Prague, OK 74864 Earlsboro 
405-567-2163 Canadian 

Reierson, Mark Rt. 1, Box 33, Stratford, OK 74872 Stratford 
580-759-2871 Center 

Rhoades, Jerrv 309 Wewoka Dr., Norman, OK 73071 CrossPointe 
405-329-7966 First Oklahoma 

Richey, Jack 3201 Jason Ryan Circle, Moore, OK 73160 Newcastle 
405-378-2307 First Oklahoma 

Richmond, Norman 1602 N. Henderson, Stillwater, OK 74075 , Highland Park 
405-377-2789 First Mission 

Riddle, Fred 'P.O. Box 121, Stigler, OK 74462 Perry 
918-967-4800 Eureka 

Ridley, Garv '1317 Mulberry, Muskogee, OK 74403 Spring Valley 
918-687-3357 New life 

Robinson, A. J. '20692 E. CR 1160, Stigler, OK 74462 Iron bridge 
918-967-2939 Eureka 

Robinson, Steve '8517 N.E. 25th, Spencer, OK 73084 Spencer Road 
405-769-8326 First Oklahoma 

Rogers, Bemeil 20243 E. 640 Rd., Tahlequah, OK 74464 FWB Worship Center 
918-456-4429 South Grand River 

Rogers, Lance 'P.O. Box 155, Twin Oaks, OK 74368 Lowerv 
918-868-2703 South Grand River 

Romine, Orvel 'Rt. 1, Box 368-D, McAlester, OK 74501 Hoyt 
918-426-5912 Poteau River Valley 

Ross, Stacy '103 S. Sunset Lane, Guvmon, OK 73942 Northridge 
580-468-8469 Union 

Ryker, Russell '1404 S. Okfuskee, Wewoka, OK 74884 Hilltop 
405-257-2875 Progressive 

s Sagely, Bill '905 East Gilmore, Allen, OK 74825 Bethel 
580-857-267 4 Gaines Creek 

Shotzman, Steven P.O. Box 358, Blanchard, OK 73010 
405-485-9443 

Schultz, Rick '16900 120th, Lexington, OK 73051 Spring Hill 
405-527-3665 First Oklahoma 

Schulze, Tom '10605 S. 4240 Road, Chelsea, OK 74016 Calvary, Claremore 
918-341-6393 Northeast 

Scowden, Phil 1412 Northern Hills Rd., Norman, OK 73071 CrossPointe 
405-329-1195 First Oklahoma 

138 



Scroqgins, Earl 'P.O. Box 23, Francis, OK 74844 Faith 
580-436-3500 Progressive 

Shade, J.R. 1701 E. 75th St. N., Tulsa, OK 74130 Collinsville 
918-425-3979 Northeast 

Shany, Robert 2208 Oak Dr., Moore, OK 73170 Pleasant Hill 
405-794-9900 First Oklahoma 

Shaw, Craig 1309 S.E. 3rd, Moore, OK 73160 Calvary 
405-793-0729 First Oklahoma 

Shaw, Steve '213 Morningside Dr., Noble, OK 73068 Skyridge 
405-872-5102 First Oklahoma 

Shepherd, Clarence '1112 Camelo~ Clinton, OK 73601 Antioch 
580-323-0563 Union 

Sheppard, Leon 'Rt 1, Box 1260, Wister, OK 74966 Salonia 
918-753-2643 Kiamichi 

Shivers, Carl P.O. Box 225, Stratford, OK 74872 Stratford 
580-759-2195 Center 

Simmons, Ancil '108 E. Apache, Lindsay, OK 73052 Lindsay, First 
405-756-1996 Dibble 

• Smith, Charles '37132 E. 231st S., Porter, OK 74454 Clarksville 
918-483-4075 New life 

Smith, Dale 'P.O. Box 493, Weleetka, OK 74880 Weleetka, First 
405-786-2588 Proqressive 

Smith, N.R. 8517 S. Chartel, OKC, OK 73139 Moore, First 
405-635-9611 First Oklahoma 

Smith, Roy Dale '3110 S. 65th W. Ave., Tulsa, OK 74107 New Home 
918-446-0758 'Greater Tulsa 

Sparks, Anthony '301 West Ottawa, McAlester, OK 74501 Tannehill 
918-423-0788 Gaines Creek 

Staggs, Ed 5624 S.E. 2nd ST., Midwest City, OK 73110 Countyline 
405-737-2190 Hopewell#2 

Staggs, John HC 60, Box 1556, Checotah, OK 74426 Westside 
918-473-4260 Kiamichi 

Stahl, Henry '37145 W. Hwy 33, Mannford, OK 74044 Liberty 
918-352-2979 First Mission 

Staires, Troy 205 South Kalanchoe, Broken Arrow, OK 74012 Lewis Ave. 
918-250-1893 First Mission 

Stepp, Lonnie 'RR 2, Box 5020, Talihina, OK 74571 United 
918-567-2728 Roberts McGee 

Stone, Dean 11960 CR 3536, Ada, OK 74820 Cross Pointe 
580-310-9786 First Oklahoma 

Sutton, David '1412 E. Main, Moore, OK 73160 Southern Oaks 
405-793-6066 First Oklahoma 

Sweet, Daniel 508 9th Street, Woodward, OK 73801 ,Woodward 
580-256-2922 iUnion 

T Tadlock, Randy '9715 S. State HWY 48, Coleman, OK 73432 Hopewell FWB 

580-937-4412 ·Hopewell#1 
Tate, Rodney 'HC 64, Box 4220, Tuskahoma, OK 74574 Tate Chapel 

918-522-4453 Hopewell#1 
Teny, Dick '2023 W. 14th ST., Sulphur, OK 73086 Sulphur, First 

580-622-4256 Center 
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Thomas, Bob P.O. Box 524, Noble, OK 73068 Calvary 
405-872-1464 First Oklahoma 

Thomas, Bob Sr. 10325 Windridge Dr., Lexington, OK 73051 Calvary 
405-872-5822 First Oklahoma 

Thomas, C.L. '18855174th Ave., Soiro, OK 74959 Murry Spur 
918-962-3638 Poteau River Valley 

Thompson, Bailey 105 Trayce, Poteau, OK 74953 Poteau, First 
91~9--0142 Poteau River Valley 

Thompson, Bob 12508 S. Barnes Terr., OKC, OK 73170 Sunnylane 
405-691-7871 First Oklahoma 

Thompson, Dean '1920 Chesholm Dr., Duncan, OK 73533 Brockland 
580-255-6696 Southwest 

Thornburgh, Bob 'Rt 2, Box 694, Vallian~ OK 74764 Watermill 
580-933-4321 Little River 

Ticer, James '6101 S.E. 9th ST., Midwest City, OK 73110 Shadynook 
405-736-1044 Canadian 

Ticer, Jimmv '544 N. Elm, Shawnee, OK 74801 Northeast 
405-275-5094 Canadian 

Turner, Justin '306 S. Thompson, Vinita, OK 74301 Vinita, First 
918-323--0228 Northeast 

Turpin, Kenneth '327 E. BK 1240 Rd., Stigler, OK 74462 Brooken 
918-799-5265 Eureka 

Tuttle, Larry '12731 S. 241st W. Ave., Kellyville, OK 74039 Pretty Water 
918-247-3093 First Mission 

u Umsted, Robert 'P.O. Box 102, Caney, OK 74533 Caney 
580-889-2839 Hopewell#1 

Underwood, Paul 'P.O. Box 713, Healdton, OK 73438 Midway 
580-229-1144 Hopewell#2 

V Vandivort, Mark 414 N. 6th, Noble, OK 73068 CrossPointe 
405-872-5684 First Oklahoma 

Viles, Oma 304 S.W. 5th St., Muldrow, OK 74948 
918-427-3289 Eureka 

Voss, Daniel '2332 S. Nogales Ave, Tulsa, OK 74107 West Tulsa 
918-585-8094 Greater Tulsa 

w Wade, Edwin 2929 Weymouth Way, Norman, OK 73071 Calvary 
405-329-1610 First Oklahoma 

Wade, Mike 3900 E. Franklin, Norman, OK 73026 Sunnylane 
405-329-8173 First Oklahoma 

Waldrop, Jimmy 'RI. 1, Box 91, Muldrow, OK 74948 Christian Grove 
918-427-6716 Poteau River Valley 

Wallis, Jessie '2312 S. Anderson Rd., Midwest Citv, OK 73130 Minneha 
405-769-2375 Canadian 

Warren, John P.O. Box 66, Oilton, OK 74052 'Oilton 
918-862-3368 First Mission 

Washingtn, D. Van '9800 W. 128th St S., Oktaha, OK 74450 Checotah 
918-473-7950 South Grand River 

Wendlandt, Dale '30522W. CR 1330, Unit A, Kinta, OK 74552 Lafavette 
918-768-3123 Eureka 
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White, Mark '12750 S. Folsom Rd., Coleman, OK 73432 Atoka 
Hopewell#1 

White, Willie 'P.O. Box 147, Francis, OK 74844 Cedar Grove 
580-332-9536 Center 

Wickham, Louis 3801 60th Ave. N.E., Norman, OK 73071 
405-321-5460 

Wiley, Frank '5604 Woodmont Drive, OKC, OK 73135 Sunnylane 
405-869-9389 First Oklahoma 

Williams, Anthony '112644 S. 4750 RD, Muldrow, OK 74948 Eastside 
918-427-8054 Poteau River Valley 

Wilson, Randy '2901 S. Aspen Ct, Broken Arrow, OK 74012 Bethany 
918-451-0200 Greater Tulsa 

Withers, Harry 'Rt 2, Box 782, Coweta, OK 7 4429 Liberty 
918-486-2425 Arkansas Valley 

Wolf, Ken '19020 CR 3557, Ada, OK 74820 Harmony 
580-272-9611 First Oklahoma 

Womack, Gene 1676 S. Main ST., Goldsby, OK 73093 CrossPointe 
405-288-2539 First Oklahoma 

Wood,Allen '908 Spurr, Seminole, OK 74868 Wolf 
405-382-7817 Progressive 

Wood, Hermon '15317 N. 137th E. Ave., Collinsville, OK 74021 Collinsville 
918-371-6416 Northeast 

Wood.John 23002 East 75th South, Broken Arrow, OK 74014 Northside 
918-357-1550 South Grand River 

Wood, Lynn 8813 N. 130th E. Ave., Owasso, OK 74055 Reioice 
918-272-5291 Greater Tulsa 

Wrigh~ Ollie P.O. Box 963, Locust Grove, OK 74352 Locust Grove 
918-479-6881 South Grand River 

y Yandell, DeArthur '1420 W. Idaho Ave., Chickasha, OK 73018 Chickasha, First 
405-222-4386 Dibble 

Yandell, Jimmy '9112 N. Pine, Spencer, OK 73084 Heartland, MWC 
405-771-4009 Dibble 

Yandell, LD. 2629 S.W. 40th, OKC, OK 73119 Heartland, MWC 
405-681-0642 Dibble 

Youno, Frank '624 Lorraine Road, Ardmore, OK 73401 Ardmore, First 
580-226-9699 Hopewell#1 

Young, Waldo '4924 NW 36th, OKC, OK 73122 Northwest 
405-942-4038 First Oklahoma 

Youngblood, Toby '1901 W. 171st ST. S., Glenpool, OK 74033 Faith 
918-827-7904 Greater Tulsa 

z Zickefoose, Don 1930 Monroe, Lawton, OK 73501 Brock land 
!580-248-3601 Southwest 
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State Ministries 

State Office 
P.O. Box 7527 

Moore, OK 73153 
(405) 912-9400 Fax (405) 912-9297 

email: director@okfwb.org 

Missions Office 
P.O. Box 7527 

Moore, OK 73153 
(405) 912-9036 Fax (405) 912-9297 

email: missions@okfwb.org 

Literature Center 
P.O. Box 7527 

Moore, OK 73153 
(405) 912-9100 Fax (405) 912-9200 

1-(800)-344-6186 

Hillsdale College 
P.O. Box 7208 

Moore, OK 73153 




